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EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES
PART I
Item 1. Business
Overview and General Discussion of the Business
Exide Technologies (referred to together with its subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise, as “Exide” or the
“Company”) is a Delaware corporation organized in 1966 to succeed to the business of a New Jersey corporation
founded in 1888. Exide’s principal executive offices are located at 13000 Deerfield Parkway, Building 200, Milton,
Georgia 30004.
The Company is a global leader in stored electrical energy solutions, and one of the largest manufacturers and
suppliers of lead-acid batteries for transportation and industrial applications in the world, with fiscal 2014 net sales of
approximately $2.9 billion. The Company’s operations in the Americas and Europe and Rest of World (“ROW”)
represented approximately 39.4% and 60.6%, respectively, of fiscal 2014 net sales.
Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context otherwise requires, references to “fiscal year” refer to the twelve
months ended March 31 of that year (e.g., “fiscal 2014” refers to the period beginning April 1, 2013 and ending March
31, 2014). Unless the context indicates otherwise, the “Company,” “Exide,” “we,” "our," or “us” refers to Exide Technologies
and its subsidiaries.
Chapter 11 Case
On June 10, 2013 (“Petition Date”), Exide Technologies ("Debtor") filed a voluntary petition for relief (“Chapter 11
Case”) under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (“Bankruptcy Code” or “Chapter 11”), in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (“Bankruptcy Court”) under the caption In re Exide Technologies, case
number 13-11482. The Company's subsidiaries, foreign and domestic, have been excluded from the Chapter 11 Case
continue to operate their businesses without supervision from the Bankruptcy Court, and are not subject to the
requirements of the Bankruptcy Code.
The Company filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 as it offered the most efficient alternative to restructure the
Company's balance sheet and access new working capital while continuing to operate in the ordinary course of
business. Factors leading to the reorganization included the Company's significant debt burden, the adverse impact of
economic conditions on the Company's markets, particularly the U.S. and European markets, ongoing competitive
pressures, loss of key customers over several years, the unplanned temporary suspension of operations at one of the
Company's facilities, and higher commodity costs including purchased spent batteries. These factors contributed to
higher costs and lower revenues and resulted in significant operating losses and material adverse reductions in cash
flows, severely affecting the Company's financial condition and its ability to make debt payments coming due.
Downgrades of the Company's credit rating and loss of credit insurance used by certain suppliers adversely affected
supplier trade credit terms, further affecting the Company's liquidity.
Exide is currently operating as a debtor-in-possession under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and the
applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code. In general, as a debtor-in-possession, Exide is authorized to continue to
operate as an ongoing business, but may not engage in transactions outside the ordinary course of business without the
prior approval of the Bankruptcy Court.
Exide has received Bankruptcy Court approval for, among other things, access to a $500.0 million
debtor-in-possession financing facility ("DIP Credit Facility") on the terms set forth in the Amended and Restated
Superpriority Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement ("DIP Credit Agreement"), the ability to pay pre-petition and
post-petition employee wages, salaries and benefits, and to honor customer warranty, sales returns and rebate
obligations. Subsequent to the Petition Date, the Company received approval from the Bankruptcy Court to pay or
otherwise honor certain pre-petition obligations generally designed to stabilize the Company's operations including
employee obligations, taxes, and from limited available funds, pre-petition claims of certain critical vendors, certain
customer programs, limited foreign supplier obligations, adequate protection payments, and certain other pre-petition
claims. Additionally, the Company has been paying and intends to continue to pay undisputed post-petition
obligations in the ordinary course of business.
Effective July 24, 2013, the DIP Credit Agreement was amended to permit an increase in the quarterly maximum
capital expenditure limits of $25.0 million by $2.5 million should the preceding quarter's EBITDA exceed 110.0% of
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the DIP budget, with the rolling four quarter maximum capital expenditures increased to $90.0 million for the four
quarters ending after March 31, 2014.
Effective October 9, 2013, a second amendment provided additional flexibility to the Company with regard to certain
non-core asset transactions and further clarified certain terms of the DIP Credit Agreement. The second amendment
revised the definition of "Permitted Liens" to permit contractual encumbrances in connection with certain permitted
dispositions under the DIP Credit Agreement. The second amendment further changed the definition of "Total
Adjusted Operating Cash Flow" to exclude the effect of Frisco Escrow Account receipts from "Total Adjusted
Operating Cash Flow."

3

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

5



Effective May 28, 2014, the Company entered into the third amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which, among
other things, extended to June 30, 2014 the milestone for the Company to file a plan of reorganization with the
Bankruptcy Court. The third amendment increased the quarterly and rolling four quarter capital expenditure limits
from $25.0 million and $90.0 million to $36.0 million and $120.0 million, respectively. The third amendment also
excluded from the definition of "Capital Expenditure" expenditures made in connection with the replacement,
substitution, restoration or repair of assets funded through the receipt of insurance proceeds or other compensation
awards paid on account of a casualty loss. Finally, the third amendment increased the European factoring basket to
Euro 100.0 million from Euro 75.0 million and expanded the subsidiaries whose receivables can be factored to include
subsidiaries domiciled in Belgium, Denmark, Finland, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, and Sweden.
Effective June 27, 2014, the Company entered into the fourth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which
extended to July 31, 2014 the deadline for filing a plan of reorganization and eliminating the milestone related to
soliciting acceptance of the plan of reorganization. The fourth amendment also increased to $85.0 million from $75.0
million the letters of credit sublimit.
Also, effective on June 27, 2014, the Company entered into the fifth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which,
among other things, extended to August 15, 2014 the date by which the Company is required to deliver annual audited
financial statements and the related Compliance Certificate for the fiscal year of the Company ended March 31, 2014.
On July 22, 2014, the Company entered into the sixth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which, among other
things, sought to modify the DIP Credit Agreement as follows:

• eliminate restrictions on capital expenditures, modify the definition of EBITDA and adjust the minimum
EBITDA covenant to address lower anticipated future period earnings, and provide other covenant relief;

•

extend the maturity date of the loans made under the DIP Credit Agreement to December 31, 2014 ("the Extension
Amendment") effective upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, including, among other things, the Company and
members of the Unofficial Committee of Senior Secured Noteholders (“UNC”) holding a majority in principal amount
of the Company's Senior Secured Notes entering into a customary plan support agreement with respect to an
Acceptable Plan of Reorganization, as that term is defined in the amended DIP Credit Agreement; and

•

provide for $60.0 million in additional term loan financing (the "Upsizing Amendment"), which will be funded
pursuant to a commitment letter executed by certain members of the UNC to provide additional term loan financing
with net cash proceeds of $60.0 million, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions including approval by the
Bankruptcy Court.
On July 28, 2014, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the Upsizing Amendment.
On July 25, 2014, Exide entered into the seventh amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which eliminated the
milestone related to filing a plan of reorganization.
The DIP Credit Facility is used to supplement cash flows from operations during the reorganization process including
the payment of post-petition ordinary course trade and other payables, the payment of certain permitted pre-petition
claims, working capital needs, letter of credit requirements, and other general corporate purposes. The DIP Credit
Facility contains certain financial covenants. Failure to maintain compliance with these covenants would result in an
event of default which would restrict the availability of funds necessary to maintain the Company's operations and
assist in funding the Company's reorganization plans.
The Chapter 11 petition triggered defaults on substantially all debt obligations of the Company and, as a result, the
Company's Senior Secured Notes (“Senior Secured Notes” or “Notes”) and convertible senior subordinated notes
("Convertible Notes") have been accelerated and are due and payable. Under Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code,
actions to collect pre-petition indebtedness, as well as most other pending litigation, are stayed. Absent an order of the
Bankruptcy Court, substantially all pre-petition liabilities are subject to settlement under a plan of reorganization
approved by the Bankruptcy Court. There can be no assurance that a plan will be proposed by the Company or
confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court or that any such plan will be successfully implemented.
On August 9, 2013, the Company filed with the Bankruptcy Court schedules and statements of financial affairs setting
forth, among other things, the assets and liabilities of the Company as shown by the Company's books and records on
the petition date, subject to the assumptions contained in certain Notes filed in connection therewith. The schedules
and statements of financial affairs are subject to further amendment or modification. On September 13, 2013, the
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Bankruptcy Court entered an order which, among other things, established October 31, 2013, as the general bar date
for filing claims and December 9, 2013 as the bar date for claims by certain governmental authorities. The claims bar
date order was supplemented by a further order on October 24, 2013 extending the bar date to January 31, 2014 solely
with respect to personal injury claims related to the Company's secondary lead recycling facility in Vernon,
California. As the distribution to holders of allowed claims will likely
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be addressed by a plan of reorganization that has not yet been filed, the amount of distribution with respect to allowed
claims is not presently ascertainable.
On June 30, 2014, the Company received a non-binding proposal for a plan of reorganization (“POR Proposal”) from
the UNC, whose members hold a substantial majority of the term loan component of the DIP Credit Facility and
pre-petition senior secured notes. The POR Proposal, which is subject to completion of definitive documentation and
certain other conditions, would provide approximately $485.0 million in new capital, and is currently expected to be
comprised of the following:

•
A preferred convertible equity capital commitment of approximately $300.0 million (a portion of which will be in the
form of a rights offering backstopped by certain members of the UNC and another portion in the form of a direct
investment by certain members of the UNC);
•A $185.0 million bond issuance also backstopped by certain members of the UNC; and

•An asset based loan facility for which commitments would be obtained from potential lenders in conjunction with theplan confirmation process.
At this time it is not possible to predict the ultimate effect of the Chapter 11 reorganization on the Company's
business, various creditors and security holders, or when it may be possible to emerge from Chapter 11. The Company
believes that under any reorganization plan the Company's common stock would likely be substantially diluted or
canceled in its entirety. Accordingly, the Company urges that caution be exercised with respect to existing and future
investments in any of these securities or other Company claims. In addition, the Company's common stock has been
delisted from trading on the Nasdaq Stock Market ("NASDAQ"). Further, it is also expected that the Company's
Senior Secured Notes and Convertible Notes will suffer substantial impairment.  
Additional information about the Company's Chapter 11 Case is available on www.exiderestructures.com and
www.exiderestructuringinfo.com. See also Item 7 - Chapter 11 Case for further information regarding the Chapter 11
Case.
Company Products and Business Segments
The Company reports its financial results through four principal business segments: Transportation Americas,
Transportation Europe and ROW, Industrial Energy Americas, and Industrial Energy Europe and ROW. Refer to Note
21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for financial information about the Company’s business segments and the
geographic areas in which the Company operates.
Transportation
The Company’s transportation batteries include starting lighting and ignition (“SLI”) batteries for cars, trucks, off-road
vehicles, agricultural and construction vehicles, motorcycles, recreational vehicles, marine, and other applications
including Micro-hybrids (Start & Stop vehicles). The Company’s principal batteries sold in the transportation markets
are represented by the following brands: Exide, Exide Extreme, Exide NASCAR Select, Centra, DETA, Orbital,
Fulmen, and Tudor, as well as other brands under various private labels. The market for transportation batteries is
divided between sales to aftermarket customers and original equipment manufacturers (“OEM”). Transportation
segments represented approximately 59.2% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal 2014. Within the transportation
segments, aftermarket and OEM net sales, including original equipment service ("OES") represented approximately
73.0% and 27.0% of fiscal 2014 net sales, respectively.
Aftermarket sales are impacted by a number of factors, including the number of vehicles in use, average battery life,
average age of vehicles, weather conditions, and population growth. Aftermarket demand historically has been less
cyclical than OEM demand due to the typical four to five year replacement cycle. Some of the Company’s major
aftermarket customers include Bosch, Tractor Supply, Canadian Tire, ADI, ATR International, GroupAuto
International, and The Home Depot. In addition, the Company is also a supplier of authorized replacement batteries
for major OEMs including the BMW Group, Fiat Group, Honda, Iveco, John Deere, PSA Group, Scania, Volvo
Trucks, Toyota, Volkswagen Group, Renault-Nissan, PACCAR, and many others.
OEM sales are primarily impacted by new vehicle manufacturing builds, based on consumer demand for new
vehicles. The Company believes that the OEM market increasingly prefers suppliers with innovative energy storage
technology supporting carbon dioxide reductions and suppliers with established global production capabilities that can
meet their needs as they expand internationally and increase platform standardization across multiple markets. The
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Company supplies batteries for five of the 10 top-selling vehicles in Europe. Some of the Company’s significant OEM
customers include the BMW Group, Fiat Group, International Truck & Engine, the PSA Group (Peugeot
S.A./Citroën), Case/New Holland, John Deere, Renault, Nissan, Scania, Volvo Trucks, Volkswagen Group, Chrysler,
Toyota, Jaguar, Land Rover, among others.
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Transportation Americas
In the Americas, the Company sells aftermarket transportation products through various distribution channels,
including mass merchandisers, auto parts outlets, wholesale distributors, and battery specialists. The Company sells its
OEM transportation replacement products principally through dealer networks. The Company’s Americas operations
include a network of 69 branches which sell and distribute batteries and other products to the Company’s distributor
channel customers, battery specialists, national account customers, retail stores, and OEM dealers. In addition, these
branches collect spent batteries for the Company’s recycling facilities.
The Company currently operates three recycling facilities in North America. These operations supply recycled lead for
a significant portion of Exide’s Transportation and Industrial Energy products manufactured in North America. The
recycling facilities also recover and recycle battery acid as well as plastic materials that are used to produce new
battery covers and cases. The remaining lead requirements are secured from external sources under one to three year
supply agreements.
Transportation Europe and ROW
In Europe and ROW, the Company sells OEM batteries to the light vehicle, light commercial vehicle and commercial
vehicle industries. The commercial vehicle industry includes truck manufacturers as well as construction and
agriculture vehicle manufacturers. Exide supplies most of its OEM batteries directly to the assembly plants of its
customers. The Company also delivers service and replacement batteries into this segment. Those are either
distributed by the OEM customers themselves or delivered directly to the service points through the Exide logistics
network. The Company also supplies advanced lead-acid batteries for micro-hybrid vehicles equipped with carbon
dioxide reducing technologies such as Start & Stop with and without regenerative braking systems and other fuel
saving technologies, which require advanced battery technologies.
The Company sells Europe and ROW aftermarket batteries primarily through automotive parts and battery
wholesalers, mass-merchandisers, auto centers, service installers, and international buying groups. Wholesalers have
traditionally represented the majority of this market, but sales through hypermarket chains and automotive parts
stores, most often integrated in European-wide buying groups, have increased. Many automotive parts wholesalers are
also increasingly organized in European organizations active in purchasing and merchandising programs. Battery
specialists sell and distribute batteries to a network of automotive parts retailers, service stations, independent
retailers, and garages throughout Europe.
Industrial Energy
The Company’s Industrial Energy segments supply both Motive Power and Network Power applications. Industrial
Energy represented 40.8% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal 2014. Within the Industrial Energy segments, Motive
Power and Network Power net sales represented approximately 55.1% and 44.9% of Industrial Energy net sales,
respectively.
Motive Power batteries are used in the material handling industry for electric forklift trucks, and in other industries,
including floor cleaning machinery, powered wheelchairs, railroad locomotives, mining, and the electric road vehicles
market. The battery technologies for the Motive Power markets include flooded flat plate products, tubular plate
products, absorbed glass mat (“AGM”) products, and gel electrolyte products. The Company also offers a complete
range of battery chargers and related equipment for the operation and maintenance of battery-powered vehicles.
Network Power batteries are used to provide back-up power for use with telecommunications systems, computer
installations or data centers, hospitals, air traffic control systems, security systems, utilities, railway and military
applications. Telecommunications applications include central and local switching systems, satellite stations, wireless
base stations and mobile switches, optical fiber repeating boxes, cable TV transmission boxes, and radio transmission
stations. The Company’s strongest Network Power battery brands, Absolyte and Sonnenschein, offer customers the
choice of AGM or gel electrolyte valve regulated battery technologies and deliver among the highest energy and
power densities in their class.
Industrial Energy Americas
In the Americas, the Company distributes Motive Power products and services through multiple channels. These
include sales and service locations owned by the Company that are augmented by a network of independent
manufacturers’ representatives. The Company serves a wide range of customers including OEM suppliers of lift trucks,
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large industrial companies, retail distributors, warehousing companies, and manufacturers. Significant Motive Power
customers in the Americas include Toyota, MCFA, NACCO, Walmart, and Target. The Company distributes Network
Power products and services through sales and service locations owned by the Company augmented by a network of
independent manufacturers’ representatives. The Company’s largest Network Power customers in the Americas include
AT&T, APC, Emerson Electric, and Verizon Wireless.
Industrial Energy Europe and ROW
The Company distributes Motive Power products and services in Europe through in-house sales and service
organizations and utilizes distributors and agents for the export of products from Europe to ROW countries. Motive
Power products in
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Europe are also sold to a wide range of customers in the aftermarket, ranging from large industrial companies and
retail distributors to small warehousing and manufacturing operations. Motive Power batteries are also sold in
complete packages, including batteries, chargers, and increasingly through on-site service. The Company’s major OEM
Motive Power customers include Toyota Material Handling, the KION Group, and Jungheinrich. The Company
distributes Network Power products and services in Europe and batteries and chargers in Australia and New Zealand
through in-house sales and service organizations. In Asia, products are distributed through independent distributors.
The Company utilizes distributors, agents, and direct sales to export products from Europe and North America to
ROW. The Company’s major Network Power customers in Europe and ROW include Deutsche Telecom, Alcatel,
Emerson Electric, Ericsson and Siemens Nokia Networks.
Quality
The Company recognizes that product performance and quality are critical to customer satisfaction and ultimately to
its success. The Company has a standardized global Quality Management System (“QMS”) which it utilizes in
conjunction with the deployment of lean manufacturing principles and new product development systems to drive
improved levels of quality, productivity and services to the global transportation and industrial energy markets. The
Company has an established history of utilizing lean manufacturing and six sigma tools and techniques that are now a
standard part of its operations, are coordinated globally, and have also been applied to areas such as maintenance and
energy management. The Company also utilizes a disciplined Value Analysis Value Engineering (“VAVE”) process in
conjunction with the QMS to ensure that its customers are receiving high quality, competitive products and services.
The Company’s quality commitment begins in the design phase with an in-depth understanding of customer and
application requirements. The Company’s products are designed using carefully selected processes, tools, and
materials in order to meet required performance, industry, and customers' quality and durability standards. The
Company’s focus on quality continues through the manufacturing process. The Company has quality audit processes
and standards in each of its production and distribution facilities. The Company’s quality process extends throughout
the entire product life cycle including operation in service as well as recycling.
All of the Company’s major production facilities are approved under ISO/TS 16949 and/or ISO 9001 quality standards.
The Company has also obtained ISO 14001 Environmental Health & Safety (“EH&S”) certification at the majority of its
manufacturing plants, and has received quality certifications and awards from a number of OEM and aftermarket
customers.
Research and Development
The Company is committed to delivering new and technologically advanced products, services, and systems that
provide superior performance and value to customers. To support this commitment, the Company focuses on
developing opportunities across its global markets and operating a number of product and process-development
centers of excellence around the world. These centers work cooperatively to define and improve the Company’s
product design and production processes. By leveraging this network, the Company is able to transfer technological,
product and process knowledge among its various operating facilities to adopt best practices for use throughout the
Company. Investment in Research, Development and Engineering capability continues to be an important priority.
Patents, Trademarks and Licenses
The Company owns or has a license to use various trademarks that are valuable to its business. The Company believes
these trademarks and licenses enhance the brand recognition of the Company’s products. The Company currently owns
approximately 243 trademarks worldwide, and maintains licenses from others to use approximately 20 trademarks
worldwide. The Company also acts as licensor under certain trademark licensing agreements.
The Company has generated a number of patents in the operation of its business and currently owns all or a partial
interest in greater than 343 patents and applications for patents pending worldwide. Although the Company believes
its patents and patent applications collectively are important to the Company’s business, and that technological
innovation is important to the Company’s market competitiveness, currently no operating segment is substantially
dependent on any single patent or group of patents.
In 2003, the Company served notices in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (“2002 Bankruptcy
Court”) to reject certain executory contracts with EnerSys, which the Company contended were executory, including a
1991 Trademark and Trade Name License Agreement (the “Trademark License”), pursuant to which the Company had
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licensed to EnerSys use of the “Exide” trademark on certain industrial battery products in the United States and 80
foreign countries. EnerSys objected to the rejection of certain of those contracts, including the Trademark License. In
2006, the 2002 Bankruptcy Court granted the Company's request to reject certain of the contracts, including the
Trademark License. EnerSys appealed those rulings. On June 1, 2010, the Third Circuit Court of Appeals reversed the
2002 Bankruptcy Court ruling, and remanded to the lower courts, holding that certain of the contracts, including the
Trademark License, were not executory contracts and, therefore, were not subject to rejection. On August 27, 2010,
acting on the Third Circuit's mandate, the Bankruptcy Court vacated its prior orders and denied the Company's motion
to reject the contracts on the grounds that the agreements are not

7

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

13



executory. On September 20, 2010, the Company filed a complaint in the 2002 Bankruptcy Court seeking a
declaratory judgment that EnerSys does not have enforceable rights under the Trademark License under Bankruptcy
Code provisions. EnerSys filed a motion to dismiss that complaint, which the 2002 Bankruptcy Court granted on
January 8, 2013.
On June 7, 2013, EnerSys Delaware Inc., formally known as EnerSys, Inc. filed suit against the Company in the Court
of Chancery for the State of Delaware seeking an accounting and restitution for alleged benefits received by the
Company and alleged losses incurred by EnerSys allegedly as the result of the granting by the 2002 Bankruptcy Court
in 2006 of an the Order which allowed the Company to reject the Trademark License and use the licensed "Exide"
trademark for Industrial battery products and the 2002 Bankruptcy Court's subsequent August 2010 Order vacating the
2006 Order and denying the Company's request to reject the Trademark License. On June 10, 2013, the Company filed
a voluntary petition for reorganization pursuant to Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the District of
Delaware, and the suit filed by EnerSys Delaware Inc. was automatically stayed pursuant to Section 362(a)(1) of the
Bankruptcy Code. For further information regarding this matter, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Manufacturing, Raw Materials and Suppliers
Lead is the primary material used in the manufacture of the Company’s lead-acid batteries, representing approximately
43.7% of the cost of goods sold. The Company obtains a significant portion of North American lead requirements
through the operation of three secondary lead recycling plants which reclaim lead by recycling spent lead-acid
batteries. In North America, the Company obtains spent batteries for recycling primarily from the Company’s
customers, through Company-owned branch networks, and from third party spent battery collectors. In Europe and
ROW, the Company obtains a small portion of its lead requirements through the operation of two lead recycling
plants. The majority of the Company’s lead requirements in Europe and ROW, however, are obtained from third-party
suppliers.
The Company uses both polyethylene and AGM battery separators. There are a number of suppliers from whom the
Company purchases AGM battery separators. Polyethylene battery separators are purchased primarily from one
supplier pursuant to a supply agreement expiring in fiscal 2016. There is currently no second source that could readily
provide the volume of certain polyethylene separators used by the Company. As a result, any major disruption in
supply from the Company’s primary supplier of certain polyethylene separators would have a material adverse impact
on the Company.
Other key raw materials and components in the production of batteries include lead oxide, acid, steel, plastics and
chemicals, all of which are generally available from multiple sources. The Company has not experienced any
significant material stoppage or disruption in production as a result of non-availability or delays in the availability of
raw materials.
Competition
Transportation
The Americas and European transportation markets are highly competitive. The manufacturers in these markets
compete on price, quality, technical innovation, service, and warranty. Well-recognized brand names are also
important for aftermarket customers who do not purchase private label batteries. Most sales are made without
long-term contracts.
In the Americas transportation segment, the Company believes it has the third largest market position. Other principal
competitors in this market are Johnson Controls, Inc. and East Penn Manufacturing. Competition is strongest in the
auto parts retail and mass merchandiser channels where large customers use their buying power to negotiate lower
prices and longer payment terms. Due to technical and production qualification requirements, OEMs change battery
suppliers less frequently than aftermarket customers, but because of their purchasing size, they can influence market
participants to compete on price and other terms. The Company also believes that it has the overall second largest
market position in Europe in transportation batteries for the light vehicles and commercial vehicles product categories.
The Company’s largest competitor in the European transportation markets is Johnson Controls, Inc.
Industrial Energy
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The Company believes that it is one of the significant participants in the global Motive Power battery market. 
Competitors in the Americas include EnerSys, Inc. and East Penn Manufacturing. Competitors in Europe include
EnerSys, Inc., Hoppecke, MIDAC, and TAB. In Asia, GS/Yuasa, Shinkobe, and EnerSys, Inc. are primary
competitors.
The Company is also one of the significant participants in the global Network Power battery market. Competitors in
the Americas include C&D Technologies, EnerSys, Inc., and East Penn Manufacturing. The major competitors in
Europe are EnerSys, Inc., Hoppecke, Fiamm and imported batteries mainly from Asia. In Asia, GS/Yuasa, Shinkobe,
and EnerSys, Inc. are primary competitors.
Seasonal Factors
The Company sells a disproportionate share of its transportation aftermarket batteries during the fall and early winter
(the Company’s third and a portion of its fourth fiscal quarters). Retailers and distributors buy automotive batteries
during these
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periods so they will have sufficient inventory for cold weather periods. Unusually cold winters and hot summers may
accelerate battery failure and increase demand for transportation replacement batteries. Mild winters and cool
summers, however, may have the opposite effect.
Environmental, Health and Safety Matters
As a result of its manufacturing, distribution, and recycling operations, the Company is subject to numerous federal,
state, and local environmental, occupational safety, and health laws and regulations, as well as similar laws and
regulations in other countries in which the Company operates (collectively, “EH&S laws”). For a discussion of the legal
proceedings relating to environmental, health, and safety matters, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Employees
The Company employed approximately 8,986 persons at March 31, 2014, compared to approximately 9,628 persons
at March 31, 2013.
Americas
As of March 31, 2014, the Company employed approximately 1,074 salaried employees and 2,381 hourly employees
in the Americas, primarily in the U.S. Approximately 32.0% of these salaried employees are engaged in sales, service,
marketing, and administration and 68.0% in manufacturing and engineering. Approximately 20.0% of the Company’s
hourly employees in the Americas are represented by unions. The Company believes that relations with its unions are
generally good. Union contracts covering approximately 3.2% of the Company’s domestic employees expire in fiscal
2015, and the remainder thereafter.
Europe and ROW
As of March 31, 2014, the Company employed approximately 2,166 salaried employees and 3,365 hourly employees
outside of the Americas, primarily in Europe. Approximately 33.0% of these salaried employees are engaged in sales,
service, marketing, and administration and 67.0% in manufacturing and engineering. Generally, the Company’s hourly
employees and some of its salaried employees in Europe and ROW are represented by unions. The Company meets
regularly with the European Works Councils. The Company believes that relations with its unions are generally good.
Contracts covering most of the Company’s non-U.S. union employees expire on various dates in fiscal 2015.
Backlog
The Company’s order backlog at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was approximately $55.9 million and $73.1
million for Industrial Energy Americas and approximately $128.3 million and $101.1 million for Industrial Energy
Europe and ROW. The Company expects to fill the March 31, 2014 backlogs during fiscal 2015. The Transportation
segments backlog at March 31, 2014 was not significant.
Available Information
The Company maintains a website at www.exide.com. The Company makes available free of charge through its
website, by way of a hyperlink to a third-party Securities Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filing website (www.sec.gov),
its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to
those reports electronically filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934. The
information on the Company’s website is not, and shall not be deemed to be, a part of this annual report on form 10-K
or incorporated into any other filings the Company makes with the SEC. The SEC website (www.sec.gov) contains
reports, proxy and other statements, and other information regarding issuers, including the Company, that file
electronically with the SEC. All of this information is available as soon as reasonably practicable after it is filed with
the SEC. In addition, the public may read and copy any materials the Company files with the SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington D.C., 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference
Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Company’s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct
may be accessed within the Investor Relations section of its website. Amendments and waivers of the Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct will also be disclosed within four business days of issuance on the website. Information found
in the Company’s website is neither part of this annual report on Form 10-K nor any other report filed with the SEC.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
We filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code on June 10, 2013 and are subject to the risks
and uncertainties associated with the Chapter 11 Case.
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For the duration of our Chapter 11 Case, our operations, including our ability to execute our business plan, are subject
to the risks and uncertainties associated with bankruptcy. Risks and uncertainties associated with our Chapter 11 Case
include the following:
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•our creditors or other third parties may take actions or make decisions that are inconsistent with and detrimental to theplans we believe to be in the best interests of the Company;
•we may be unable to obtain court approval with respect to certain matters in the Chapter 11 Case from time to time;
•the court may not agree with our objections to positions taken by other parties;
•we may not be able to confirm and consummate a Chapter 11 plan of reorganization or may be delayed in doing so;
•we may not be able to obtain and maintain normal credit terms with vendors, strategic partners and service providers;

•we may not be able to enter into or maintain contracts that are critical to our operations at competitive rates and terms,if at all; and

•
we may be exposed to risks associated with third parties seeking and obtaining court approval to (i) terminate or
shorten our exclusivity period to propose and confirm a plan of reorganization, (ii) appoint a Chapter 11 trustee or (iii)
convert the case to a Chapter 7 liquidation case.
These risks and uncertainties could affect our business and operations in various ways. For example, negative events,
the positions we take in court, or publicity associated with our Chapter 11 Case could adversely affect our sales and
our relationship with our customers, as well as with vendors and our employees, which in turn could adversely affect
our operations and financial condition, particularly if the Chapter 11 Case is protracted. Because of the risks and
uncertainties associated with our Chapter 11 Case, the ultimate impact of events that occur during these proceedings
will have on our business, financial condition and results of operations cannot be accurately predicted or quantified. If
any one or more of these risks materializes, it could affect our ability to continue as a going concern.
Operating under Chapter 11 may restrict our ability to pursue our business strategies.
Under Chapter 11, transactions outside the ordinary course of business will be subject to the prior approval of the
Bankruptcy Court, which may limit our ability to respond in a timely manner to certain events or take advantage of
certain opportunities. We must obtain Bankruptcy Court approval to, among other things:
•engage in certain transactions with our vendors;
•buy or sell assets outside the ordinary course of business;
•consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets; and

•borrow for our operations, investments or other capital needs or to engage in other business activities that would be inour interest.
Our employees face uncertainty due to the Chapter 11 Case.
As a result of the Chapter 11 Case, our employees are facing uncertainty. A material erosion of our employees'
commitment could have a material adverse affect on our business, particularly if the Chapter 11 Case is protracted.
The Company's businesses could suffer from a protracted restructuring.
The Company's future results are dependent upon the timely and successful filing, confirmation and implementation
of a plan of reorganization. If a restructuring is protracted, it could adversely affect the Company's operating results,
including its relationships with its employees, vendors, strategic partners and customers. If we experience a protracted
reorganization, there is a significant risk that the value of the Company's enterprise would be substantially eroded to
the detriment of all stakeholders.
We may be subject to claims that will not be discharged in the Chapter 11 Case.
The Bankruptcy Code provides that the confirmation of a plan of reorganization discharges a debtor from substantially
all debts arising prior to confirmation. With a few exceptions primarily relating to environmental claims, all claims
that arose prior to the filing of our Chapter 11 Case (i) will be subject to compromise, and/or discharge in the Chapter
11 Case in any plan of reorganization that may be certified, or (ii) will be discharged in accordance with the
Bankruptcy Code and the terms of the plan of reorganization. However, the aggregate amount of such claims that are
not subject to treatment under the plan of reorganization or that are not discharged may be material.
We may not have sufficient cash to maintain our operations during Chapter 11 and fund our emergence from the
Chapter 11 Case.
Because of our weakened financial condition, we will continue to have heightened exposure to, and less ability to
withstand, the operating risks that are customary in the industry, such as fluctuations in raw material prices. Any of
these factors could result in the need for substantial additional funding. A number of other factors, including our
Chapter 11 filing, our financial results in recent years, our substantial indebtedness and the competitive environment
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we face, adversely affect the availability and terms of funding that might be available to us during, and upon
emergence from, our Chapter 11 Case. As a result of these and other factors, we may not be able to source capital at
acceptable rates, on acceptable terms or at all, to fund our current operations and our exit from Chapter 11. An
inability to obtain necessary additional funding on acceptable terms
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would have a material adverse impact on us and on our ability to sustain our operations, both currently and upon
emergence from Chapter 11.
Trading in our securities during the pendency of the Chapter 11 Case is highly speculative and poses substantial risks.
It is probable our common stock will be canceled and that holders of such common stock will not receive any
distribution with respect to, or be able to recover any portion of, their investments.
At this time it is not possible to predict the ultimate effect of the Chapter 11 reorganization on our business, various
creditors and security holders, or when it may be possible to emerge from Chapter 11. The Company believes that
under any reorganization plan the Company's common stock would likely be substantially diluted or canceled in its
entirety and the holders thereof would not be entitled to receive, and would not receive or retain, any property or
interest in property on account of such equity interests. In the event of a cancellation of these equity interests, amounts
invested by such holders in our outstanding equity securities will not be recoverable. Consequently, our currently
outstanding common stock would have no value. Trading prices for our common stock are very volatile and may bear
little or no relationship to the actual recovery, if any, by the holders of such securities in the Chapter 11 Case.
Accordingly, we urge that extreme caution be exercised with respect to existing and future investments in our equity
securities and any of our other securities.
Our common stock was delisted from NASDAQ and will not be listed on any other national securities exchange.
The Company's common stock was suspended at the opening of business on June 24, 2013 and the Company's
securities were removed from listing and registration on NASDAQ
We may not be able to re-list our common stock on a national securities exchange, although our securities might begin
to trade in the over-the-counter ("OTC") market. The trading of our common stock in the OTC market rather than the
NASDAQ may negatively impact the trading price of our common stock and the levels of liquidity available to our
stockholders. In addition, securities that trade in the OTC market are not eligible for margin loans and make our
common stock subject to the provisions of Rule 15g-9 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange
Act”), commonly referred to as the “penny stock rule".
Risks of trading in an OTC market.
Securities traded in the OTC market generally have significantly less liquidity than securities traded on a national
securities exchange due to factors such as the reduced number of investors that will consider investing in the
securities, the reduced number of market makers in the securities, and the reduced number of securities analysts that
follow such securities. As a result, holders of shares of our common stock may find it difficult to resell their shares at
prices quoted in the market or at all. Furthermore, because of the limited market and generally low volume of trading
in our common stock that could occur, the share price of our common stock could be more likely to be affected by
broad market fluctuations, general market conditions, fluctuations in our operating results, changes in the markets
perception of our business, and announcements made by us, our competitors, parties with whom we have business
relationships or third parties with interests in the Chapter 11 Case. If our securities begin trading in the OTC market,
in some cases, we may be subject to additional compliance requirements under applicable state laws in the issuance of
our securities. The lack of liquidity in our common stock may also make it difficult for us to issue additional securities
for financing or other purposes, or to otherwise arrange for any financing we may need in the future.
The Company temporarily suspended operations at its Vernon, California secondary lead recycling facility and
operations may not resume until in or about December 2014.
The Company received an order dated April 24, 2013 from the California Department of Toxic Substances Control
(“CDTSC”) requiring the Company to temporarily suspend recycling operations at its Vernon, California secondary lead
recycling facility, one of the Company's three operating lead recycling facilities in the United States.  The CDTSC
based its order on two factors: (i) the Vernon Facilities underground storm-water piping system was not in compliance
with state requirements, and (ii) furnace emissions posed health risks in excess of applicable standards.  On June 12
and July 2, 2013, respectively, the Company successfully challenged CDTSC's required temporary suspension of
operations of the Vernon facility obtaining a temporary restraining order and a preliminary injunction from the Los
Angeles Superior Court staying CDTSC's order, thus allowing the Company to resume operations at the Vernon
facility.
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On November 4, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court approved a stipulation between the Company and the CDTSC, pursuant
to which the CDTSC dismissed the order for temporary suspension with prejudice and agreed to establish going
forward compliance guidelines providing the Company with more certainty regarding its ongoing compliance
obligations at the Vernon facility.  However, should the pending California Senate Bill 712 or other related pending
state legislation be enacted into law, the Company will have until December 31, 2015 as a deadline to obtain a
permanent hazardous waste operating permit from the CDTSC.  There are no assurances that the Company will be
able to obtain that permit or that the regulators will not engage in further attempts to shut down the Vernon facility in
the interim pursuant to the proposed legislation or otherwise.
On October 18, 2013, the South Coast Air Quality Monitoring District ("SCAQMD") filed a petition seeking the
suspension of operations at the Vernon facility for alleged violation of an SCAQMD rule and related furnace control
equipment permit conditions until compliance is achieved. The Company contested the SCAQMD's petition. A
hearing on the SCAQMD’s petition commenced on December 14, 2013 and continued into calendar 2014.
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On April 11, 2014, as a result of the Vernon facility allegedly exceeding the SCAQMD ambient air standard for lead,
the SCAQMD filed a second petition seeking an order that Exide “cease and desist” from violating air quality standards,
or in the alternative, to comply with other such conditions and increments of progress which the SCAQMD Hearing
Board deems appropriate.
On January 10, 2014, the SCAQMD adopted an amended rule that contained new emissions and equipment
requirements with varying compliance dates, including an April 10, 2014 deadline that would require the Company to
operate the furnaces at the Vernon facility under continuous "negative pressure" ("Rule 1420.1"). In response, the
Company initiated two separate related proceedings on February 7, 2014: (i) a Petition for Variance before the
SCAQMD Hearing Board, requesting a delay of the negative pressure requirement until December 31, 2014, and (ii) a
Writ of Mandamus in Superior Court of Los Angeles County, seeking to invalidate the negative pressure requirement
of Rule 1420.1. Additionally, on February 21, 2014, the Company filed a request for a preliminary injunction that
would temporarily suspend the April 10, 2014, deadline until such time as the Superior Court could conduct a trial on
the Writ of Mandamus.
On April 7, 2014, the Los Angeles County Superior Court denied the Company's preliminary injunction. Additionally,
on April 8, 2014, the SCAQMD Hearing Board denied the Company's variance request. As a result of these two
decisions, the Company suspended operations at the Vernon facility until such time as the Company can design,
engineer, permit, install, and test new equipment needed to achieve the new standard under Rule 1420.1.
On July 10, 2014 the SCAQMD Hearing Board approved a resolution of the Company's pending administrative
matters with the SCAQMD through the issuance of two Orders For Abatement ("Stipulated OAs"). The Stipulated
OAs require the Company: (i) to refrain from resuming operations of the Vernon facility furnaces until it installs
certain air quality control improvements required to comply with the newly-adopted Rule 1420.1 standards in
accordance with SCAQMD issued permits and applicable SCAQMD rules; and (ii) to install those improvements in
accordance with an SCAQMD approved dust mitigation plan. Concurrently, in a settlement agreement, the Company
agreed to dismiss its Writ of Mandamus legal action. The Company currently estimates the full operation of the
furnaces under continuous negative pressure will not occur until after installation of the aforesaid equipment expected
to be completed in or about December 2014 should the Company decide to proceed.
The Company will need to continue to find alternative sources of lead to ensure adequate supply of this critical raw
material component in its products.  If the Company is unable to find such sources of lead or if it procures sources of
lead at significantly higher cost, such circumstances would result in a material adverse affect on the Company's
business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
The Company has experienced significant fluctuations in raw material prices, particularly lead, and further changes in
the prices of raw materials or in energy costs could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
Lead is the primary material used in the manufacture of the Company’s lead-acid batteries, representing approximately
43.7% of the cost of goods sold. The Company obtains a significant portion of North American lead requirements
through the operation of three secondary lead recycling plants and external tolling suppliers which reclaim lead by
recycling spent lead-acid batteries. In North America, the Company obtains spent batteries for recycling primarily
from the Company’s customers, through Company-owned branch networks, and from outside spent battery collectors.
Costs of spent batteries have been quite volatile, decreasing by 3.7% on average in fiscal 2014 as compared with fiscal
2013. In Europe and ROW, the Company obtains a small portion of its lead requirements through the operation of two
lead recycling plants. The majority of the Company’s lead requirements in Europe and ROW are obtained from
third-party suppliers under annual supply agreements.
Other key raw materials and components in the production of batteries include lead oxide, acid, steel, plastics and
chemicals, all of which are generally available from multiple sources. The Company has not experienced any material
stoppage or disruption in production as a result of non-availability or delays in the availability of raw materials.
The Company is subject to fluctuations in exchange rates and other risks associated with its non-U.S. operations
which could adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
The Company has significant manufacturing operations in, and exports to, several countries outside the U.S.
Approximately 60.6% of the Company’s net sales for fiscal 2014 were generated in Europe and ROW with the
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significant majority generated in Euros. Because such a significant portion of the Company’s operation is based
overseas, the Company is exposed to foreign currency risk, resulting in uncertainty as to future asset and liability
values, and results of operations that are denominated in foreign currencies. The Company invoices foreign sales and
service transactions in local currencies and translates these revenues and expenses into U.S. Dollars at average
monthly exchange rates. Because a significant portion of the Company’s net sales and expenses are denominated in
foreign currencies, the depreciation of these foreign currencies in relation to the U.S. Dollar could adversely affect the
Company’s reported net sales and operating margins. The Company translates its non-U.S. assets and liabilities into
U.S. Dollars using current rates as of the balance sheet date. Therefore, foreign currency depreciation against the
U.S. Dollar would result in a decrease in the Company’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries.
In addition, foreign currency depreciation, particularly depreciation of the Euro, would make it more expensive for the
Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries to purchase certain raw material commodities that are priced globally in U.S.
Dollars, such as
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lead, which is quoted on the London Metals Exchange (“LME”) in U.S. Dollars. The Company does not engage in
significant hedging of its foreign currency exposure and cannot assure that it will be able to hedge its foreign currency
exposures at a reasonable cost.
There are other risks inherent in the Company’s non-U.S. operations, including:

•changes in local economic conditions, and disruption of markets; including current sovereign debt challenges incertain European countries;
•changes in laws and regulations, including changes in import, export, labor and environmental laws;
•exposure to possible expropriation or other government actions; and
•unsettled political conditions and possible terrorist attacks against American interests.
These and other risks may have a material adverse affect on the Company’s non-U.S. operations or on its business,
financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
The Company’s liquidity is affected by the seasonality of its business. Warm winters and cool summers adversely
affect the Company.
The Company sells a disproportionate share of its automotive aftermarket batteries during the fall and early winter.
Resellers buy automotive batteries during these periods so that they will have sufficient inventory for cold weather
periods. This seasonality increases the Company’s working capital requirements and makes it more sensitive to
fluctuations in the availability of liquidity. Unusually cold winters or hot summers may accelerate battery failure and
increase demand for automotive replacement batteries. Mild winters and cool summers may have the opposite affect.
As a result, if the Company’s sales are reduced by an unusually warm winter or cool summer, it may not be possible
for the Company to recover these sales in later periods. Further, if the Company’s sales are adversely affected by the
weather, it cannot make offsetting cost reductions to protect the Company’s liquidity and gross margins in the
short-term because a large portion of the Company’s manufacturing and distribution costs are fixed. These
circumstances could result in a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows, or
results of operations.
Decreased demand in the industries in which the Company operates may adversely affect its business, financial
condition, cash flows or results of operations.
The Company’s financial performance depends, in part, on conditions in the automotive, material handling, and
telecommunications industries which, in turn, are generally dependent on the U.S. and global economies. As a result,
economic and other factors adversely affecting production by OEM's and their customers’ spending could adversely
impact the Company’s business. Relatively modest declines in customer purchases from the Company could have a
significant adverse impact on its profitability because the Company has substantial fixed production costs. If the
Company’s OEM and large aftermarket customers reduce their inventory levels, or reduce their orders, the Company’s
performance would be significantly adversely impacted. In this economic environment, the Company cannot predict
future production rates or inventory levels or underlying economic factors. Continued uncertainty and unexpected
fluctuations may adversely affect the Company’s business, financial conditions, cash flows, or results of operations.
The remaining portion of the Company’s battery sales are of aftermarket batteries. The factors influencing demand for
automotive replacement batteries include: (i) the number of vehicles in use; (ii) average battery life; (iii) the average
age of vehicles and their operating environment; (iv) weather conditions; (v) population growth; and (vi) overall
economic conditions. Any significant adverse change in any one of these factors may adversely affect the Company’s
business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
The loss of the Company’s primary supplier of polyethylene battery separators would have a material adverse affect on
the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
The Company uses both polyethylene and AGM battery separators. There are a number of suppliers from whom the
Company purchases AGM battery separators. Polyethylene battery separators are purchased primarily from one
supplier pursuant to a supply agreement expiring in fiscal 2016. There is currently no second source that could readily
provide the volume of certain of its polyethylene separators used by the Company. As a result, any major disruption in
supply from the Company’s primary supplier of certain polyethylene separators would have a material adverse impact
on the Company.
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Many of the industries in which the Company operates are cyclical.
The Company’s operating results are affected by the general cyclical pattern of the industries in which its major
customer groups operate. Any significant decline in demand for replacement batteries for automobiles, light trucks, or
sport utility vehicles could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows
or results of operations of the Company’s Transportation segments. To a lesser extent, a prolonged decline in the
demand for new automobiles, light trucks or sport utility vehicles could also have an adverse impact on these
segments. A weak capital expenditure environment in the telecommunications, uninterruptible power systems or
electric industrial forklift truck markets could have a material adverse affect on the business, financial condition, cash
flows, or results of operations of the Company’s Industrial Energy segments.
The Company is subject to pricing pressure from its larger customers.
The Company faces significant pricing pressures in all of its business segments from its larger customers. Because of
their purchasing volume, the Company’s larger customers can influence market participants to compete on price and
other terms. Such customers also use their buying power to negotiate lower prices. If the Company is not able to offset
price reductions resulting from these pressures by improved operating efficiencies and reduced expenditures, those
price reductions may have an adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of
operations.
The Company faces increasing competition and pricing pressure from other companies in its industries, and if the
Company is unable to compete effectively with these competitors, the Company’s sales and profitability could be
adversely affected.
The Company competes with a number of major domestic and international manufacturers and distributors of
lead-acid batteries, as well as a large number of smaller, regional competitors. Due to excess capacity in some sectors
of its industry and consolidation among industrial purchasers, the Company has been subjected to continued and
significant pricing pressures. The North American, European and Asian lead-acid battery markets are highly
competitive. The manufacturers in these markets compete on price, quality, technical innovation, service, and
warranty. In addition, the Company is experiencing heightened competitive pricing pressure as Asian producers,
which are able to employ labor at significantly lower costs than producers in the U.S. and Western Europe, expand
their export capacity and increase their marketing presence in the Company’s major markets. If the Company is unable
to compete effectively with these competitors, its sales and profitability could be adversely affected, which could have
a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
If the Company is not able to develop new products or improve upon its existing products on a timely basis, the
Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations could be adversely affected.
The Company believes that its future success depends, in part, on the ability to develop, on a timely basis, new
technologically advanced products or improve on the Company’s existing products in innovative ways that meet or
exceed its customer's expectations. Maintaining the Company’s market position will require continued investment in
capital assets, research and development, and sales and marketing. Industry standards, customer expectations, or other
products may emerge that could render one or more of the Company’s products less desirable or obsolete. The
Company may be unable to make significant investments in product research & development and unsuccessful in
making the technological advances necessary to develop new products or improve its existing products to maintain its
market position. If any of these events occur, they could cause decreases in sales and have an adverse affect on the
Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
The Company may be adversely affected by the instability and uncertainty in the world financial markets and the
global economy, and uncertainty around potential terrorist activities against global companies.
Unfavorable changes in global economic conditions, including the current sovereign debt issues in certain European
countries as well as tightening credit markets, inflation or recession may result in consumers, businesses and
governments deferring or lowering purchases of the Company’s products in the future. In addition, terrorist activities
may cause unpredictable or unfavorable economic conditions and could have a material adverse impact on the
Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations. These economic conditions and
uncertainty also may impact the ability of the Company’s customers to purchase the Company’s products and services.
As a result, reserves for doubtful accounts and write-offs of accounts receivable may increase. In addition, the
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Company’s ability to meet customer’s demands depends, in part, on the Company’s ability to obtain timely and adequate
delivery of quality materials, parts and components from its suppliers. If certain key suppliers were to become
capacity constrained or insolvent as a result of the global economic conditions, or terrorist attacks, it could result in a
reduction or interruption in supplies or a significant increase in the price of supplies. If such economic conditions
persist, or terrorist attacks occur, they could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
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The Company may be unable to successfully implement its business strategy, which could adversely affect its
business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
The Company’s ability to achieve its business and financial objectives is subject to a variety of factors, many of which
are beyond the Company’s control. For example, the Company may not be successful in increasing its manufacturing
and distribution efficiency through productivity, process improvements and cost reduction initiatives. Further, the
Company may not be able to realize the benefits of these improvements and initiatives within the time frames the
Company currently expects. In addition, the Company may not be successful in resuming operations at its Vernon,
California recycling facility or maintaining or increasing the Company’s percentage of captive arrangements and spent
battery collections, which would require the Company to purchase lead on the open market and leaving the Company
exposed to fluctuations in the price of lead. Any failure to successfully implement the Company’s business strategy
could adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations, and could
further impair the Company’s ability to make certain strategic capital expenditures.
The Company is subject to costly regulation in relation to environmental and occupational, health and safety matters,
which could adversely affect its business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
Throughout the world, the Company manufactures, distributes, recycles, and otherwise uses large amounts of
potentially hazardous materials, especially lead and acid. As a result, the Company is subject to a substantial number
of costly regulations. In particular, the Company is required to comply with increasingly stringent requirements of
federal, state, and local environmental, occupational health and safety laws and regulations in the U.S. and other
countries, including those governing (i) emissions to air, discharges to water, noise and odor emissions; (ii) the
generation, handling, storage, transportation, treatment, and disposal of waste materials; and (iii) the cleanup of
contaminated properties and human health and safety. Compliance with these laws and regulations results in ongoing
costs. The Company could also incur substantial costs, including cleanup costs, fines, and civil or criminal sanctions,
third-party property damage or personal injury claims, or costs to upgrade or replace existing equipment, as a result of
violations of or liabilities under environmental laws or non-compliance with environmental permits required at its
facilities. In addition, many of the Company’s current and former facilities are located on properties with histories of
industrial or commercial operations. Because some environmental laws can impose liability for the entire cost of
cleanup upon any of the current or former owners or operators, regardless of fault, the Company could become liable
for the cost of investigating or remediating contamination at these properties if contamination requiring such activities
is discovered in the future. There is also inherent difficulty in assessing the Company’s potential liability due to the
large number of other potentially responsible parties. For example, a demand for the total cleanup costs of a landfill
used by many entities may be asserted by the government using joint and several liability theories. Although the
Company believes that there is a reasonable basis in law to believe that it will ultimately be responsible for only its
share of these remediation costs, there can be no assurance that the Company will prevail on these claims. In addition,
the scope of remedial costs or other environmental injuries are highly variable, and estimating these costs involves
complex legal, scientific and technical judgments. The Company may become obligated to pay material
remediation-related costs at its closed Tampa, Florida facility in the amount of approximately $13.0 million to $20.0
million, and at the Columbus, Georgia facility in the amount of approximately $6.0 million to $8.5 million.
The Company cannot be certain that it has been, or will at all times be, in complete compliance with all environmental
requirements, or that the Company will not incur additional material costs or liabilities in connection with these
requirements in excess of amounts it has reserved. Private parties, including current or former employees, could bring
personal injury or other claims against the Company due to the presence of, or exposure to, hazardous substances
used, stored or disposed of by it, or contained in its products, especially lead. Environmental requirements are
complex and have tended to become more stringent over time. These requirements or their enforcement may change in
the future in a manner that could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash
flows or results of operations. The Company has made and will continue to make expenditures to comply with
environmental requirements. These requirements, responsibilities and associated expenditures, if they continue to
increase, could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of
operations. While the Company’s costs to defend and settle claims arising under environmental laws in the past have
not been material, the Company cannot provide assurance that this will remain so in the future.
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On November 12, 2008, the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) published new lead emissions standards under
the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (“NAAQS”), which became effective on January 12, 2009. The new
standards further restrict lead emissions by reducing the off-site concentration standards for lead in air from 1.5
micrograms per cubic meter to 0.15 micrograms per cubic meter. The Company believes that the new standards could
impact a number of its U.S. facilities. Under the Clean Air Act (“CAA”), publication by the EPA of these ambient air
quality standards initiates a process by which the states develop rules implementing the standards. Recently, some
states have accelerated their implementation and the Company is working with these states to meet their
requirements. Although the final impact on the Company’s operations cannot be reasonably determined at the current
time, the Company believes that the financial impact of compliance with these
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lead emissions standards on its U.S. facilities will be funded through normal operations. Non-compliance with these
standards could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of
operations.
On January 5, 2012, the EPA passed the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (“NESHAP”) for
secondary lead smelting. The final regulations include limits for lead and other fugitive emissions, particularly at the
Company’s lead recycling facilities, as well as additional testing and monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting
requirements. Although the Company currently believes a majority of these requirements will be met through efforts
to attain compliance with NAAQS standards, our failure to attain compliance with NESHAP could have a material
adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
On January 17, 2012, the City of Frisco, Texas initiated actions that could have prevented the Company from
proceeding with projects designed to comply with certain NAAQS implementation requirements related to the
Company’s Frisco, Texas recycling facility and that could have imposed an involuntary closure of the facility. The
Company contested the City’s actions, and subsequently reached a settlement with the City in June 2012 whereby the
Company agreed to sell and the City agreed to buy certain land around the Company’s facility for a total purchase
price of $45.0 million in return for the Company’s agreement to cease operations at the site on or before December 31,
2012, with which the Company has complied. Receipt of the proceeds depends, in part, on the Company receiving
state certification for its remedial activities on the parcel being sold, as well as agreement with state environmental
regulators on the scope of remedial activities on an adjoining parcel used by the Company.
We are subject to recently adopted SEC disclosure obligations relating to "conflict minerals" (columbite-tantalite,
cassiterite (tin), wolframite (tungsten) and gold) that are sourced from the Democratic Republic of Congo or adjacent
countries. Complying with these requirements will require us to incur additional costs, including the costs to
determine the sources of any conflict minerals used in our products and may require that we modify our processes or
products. As a result, we may choose to modify the sourcing, supply and pricing of materials in our products. In
addition, we may face reputational and regulatory risks if the information that we receive from our suppliers is
inaccurate or inadequate, or our process in obtaining that information does not fulfill the SEC's requirements. We have
a formal policy with respect to the use of conflict minerals in our products that is intended to minimize, if not
eliminate, conflict minerals sourced from the covered countries to the extent that we are unable to document that they
have been obtained from conflict-free sources.
Regulation and legislation adopted to address possible global climate change could increase the Company’s costs of
operation and adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
Recently, there has been an increasing focus on whether emissions of certain gases, commonly referred to as
“greenhouse gases” including carbon dioxide, may be contributing to certain atmospheric and other climatic changes.
Legislative and regulatory measures directed at limiting the emissions of greenhouse gases and other possible causes
of climate change are in various stages of discussions or implementation in a number of countries in which the
Company operates. Legislative, regulatory or other efforts in the United States, and international treaties to combat
climate change could result in future increases in the cost of raw materials and energy sources such as electricity,
natural gas and fossil fuels, all of which may result in higher manufacturing and distribution costs for the Company.
The Company’s facilities may also be subject to additional regulation under future climate change policies.
Compliance with environmental laws or regulations regarding the reduction of greenhouse gases could result in
significant changes to the Company’s facilities and operations and result in an increased cost of conducting business. If
the Company is unable to manage the financial risks or otherwise recover costs related to complying with climate
change regulatory requirements, if any, it could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial
condition, cash flows or results of operations.
The Company may be adversely affected by legal proceedings to which the Company is, or may become, a party.
The Company and its subsidiaries are currently, and may in the future become, subject to legal proceedings which
could adversely affect its business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations. See Note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
In May 2013, one of the Company's Spanish subsidiaries received notice of an investigation by the European
Commission of alleged anticompetitive behavior relating to procurement practices of several European lead recyclers.
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The Company is currently unable to assess the ultimate outcome of the Commission's investigation, the entity or
entities that could be affected, or the amount of any fines that may result.
The Company's Netherlands subsidiary, Exide Technologies B.V. (“BV”), received notice from the Dutch competition
authorities that it was the subject of an investigation of a local trade association’s members in the traction/Motive
Power batteries segment. On July 9 and July 16, 2013, the authorities conducted an on-site inspection and requested
additional information and documentation, which the Company has provided. In December 2013, the Company
submitted to the Dutch Competition Authority (the "ACM") a leniency application for immunity or reduction of fines
that might be imposed as a result of the investigation. The Company was recently notified by the ACM of a
provisional grant of leniency in respect of certain
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conduct and that the Company did not receive provisional leniency for certain other conduct. As required under the
ACM's leniency program, the Company continues to cooperate with the Dutch authority. The ACM has not issued a
statement of charges to the Company or its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the precise scope and time period at issue, as
well as the final outcome of the Netherlands investigation, remains uncertain.
In connection with BV’s cooperation with the above-described investigation, the Company discovered activities also in
different segments of its Industrial Energy division in Austria, Belgium and Germany that appeared to have occurred
in prior years that did not conform to the Company’s internal policies. Upon discovery of these facts, the Company
commenced an internal investigation led by independent outside counsel. While a majority of the activities had ceased
prior to the initiation of the internal investigation, the Company promptly stopped any remaining ongoing conduct.
The Company brought the matter to the attention of the appropriate competition authorities, and, in all affected
jurisdictions, the Company has been cooperating with them in further information gathering. As a result of this action,
the Company has been granted conditional immunity by regulators in Austria, Germany and Belgium. Additionally,
the authority in Austria has decided that the actions would likely have fallen outside any applicable statute of
limitations period and the authority has advised that it does not intend to pursue an investigation at this stage. The
grants of immunity in Belgium and Germany, which are conditioned on factors that include the Company’s continued
cooperation with authorities, should eliminate any governmental fines and penalties that could result if the reported
conduct is found to violate applicable law in such jurisdictions. Should immunity be revoked, these investigations
could result in significant penalties.
Further, even with the grants of conditional immunity in Austria, Germany, and Belgium, the Company might be
subject to disputes with private parties concerning alleged damages that are claimed to be a result of the Company’s
prior conduct. While the Company believes it would have defenses to any adverse allegations in private actions and
would intend to vigorously defend itself in any such actions, litigation of this type is inherently uncertain, costly, and
complex, and the Company cannot be certain that it would prevail. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the
outcome of the Netherlands investigation or any private party disputes would not have a material adverse affect on the
business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations of the Company, despite the fact the Company has
been granted conditional immunity in Austria, Germany, and Belgium, and continues to cooperate with the applicable
regulatory authorities.
Work stoppages or other labor issues at the Company’s facilities or its customers’ or suppliers’ facilities could adversely
affect the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
At March 31, 2014, approximately 20.0% of the Company’s hourly employees in the Americas and many of its
non-U.S. employees were unionized. It is likely that a significant portion of the Company’s workforce will remain
unionized for the foreseeable future. It is also possible that the portion of the Company's workforce that is unionized
may increase in the future. Contracts covering approximately 3.2% of the Company's U.S. hourly employees expire in
fiscal 2015, and the remainder thereafter. In addition, contracts covering most of the Company’s union employees in
Europe and ROW expire on various dates through fiscal 2015. Although the Company believes that its relations with
employees are generally good, if conflicts develop between the Company and its employees’ unions in connection with
the renegotiation of these contracts or otherwise, work stoppages or other labor disputes could result. A work stoppage
at one or more of the Company’s plants, or a material increase in its costs due to unionization activities, may have a
material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations. Work
stoppages at the facilities of the Company’s customers or suppliers may also negatively affect the Company’s business.
If any of the Company’s significant customers experience a material work stoppage, the customer may halt or limit the
purchase of the Company’s products. This could require the Company to shut down or significantly reduce production
at facilities relating to those products. Moreover, if any of the Company’s suppliers experience a work stoppage, the
Company’s operations could be adversely affected if an alternative source of supply is not readily available.
The Company’s substantial indebtedness could adversely affect its business, financial condition, cash flows or results
of operations.
The Company has a significant amount of indebtedness. As of March 31, 2014, the Company had total indebtedness,
including capital leases, of approximately $308.0 million, excluding amounts included in liabilities subject to
compromise of $788.4 million. The Company's level of indebtedness could have significant consequences. For
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example, it could:

•limit the Company's ability to borrow money to fund its working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and debtservice requirements;

•limit the Company's flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business and future businessopportunities;
•make the Company more vulnerable to a downturn in its business or in the economy;
•place the Company at a disadvantage relative to some of its competitors, who may be less highly leveraged; and

•
require a substantial portion of the Company's cash flow from operations to be used for debt payments, thereby
reducing the availability of cash to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general
corporate purposes.
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One or a combination of these factors could adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition, cash flows
or results of operations. Subject to restrictions in its DIP Credit Agreement, the Company may incur additional
indebtedness, which could increase the risks associated with its already substantial indebtedness.
Restrictive covenants limit the Company's ability to operate its business and to pursue its business strategies, and its
failure to comply with these covenants could result in an acceleration of its indebtedness.
The DIP Credit Agreement contain covenants that limit or restrict the Company's ability to finance future operations
or capital needs, to respond to changing business and economic conditions or to engage in other transactions or
business activities that may be important to its growth strategy or otherwise important to the Company. The DIP
Credit Agreement, limits or restricts, among other things, the Company's ability and the ability of its subsidiaries to:
•incur or guarantee additional indebtedness;

•pay dividends or make distributions on the Company's capital stock or certain other restricted payments orinvestments;
•purchase or redeem stock or subordinated indebtedness;
•issue stock of the Company's subsidiaries;
•make investments and extend credit;
•engage in transactions with affiliates;
•transfer and sell assets;

•affect a consolidation or merger or sell, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the Company'sassets;
•engage in transactions with affiliates; and
•create liens on the Company's assets to secure debt.
In addition, the DIP asset-based credit facility ("DIP ABL") requires the Company to repay outstanding borrowings
with portions of the proceeds the Company receives from certain sales of property or assets and specified future debt
offerings. The Company's ability to comply with these provisions may be affected by events beyond its control.
Any breach of the covenants in the DIP Credit Agreement could cause a default under the Company's DIP Credit
Agreement and other debt, which would restrict the Company's ability to borrow under its DIP Credit Agreement
thereby significantly impacting the Company's liquidity which could have a material adverse affect on the Company's
business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations. If there were an event of default under any of the
Company's debt instruments that was not cured or waived, the holders of the defaulted debt could cause all amounts
outstanding with respect to the debt instrument to be due and payable immediately. The Company's assets and cash
flow may not be sufficient to fully repay borrowings under its outstanding debt instruments if accelerated upon an
event of default. If, as or when required, the Company is unable to repay, refinance or restructure its indebtedness
under, or amend the covenants contained in, its senior secured credit facility, the lenders under that facility could
institute foreclosure proceedings against the assets securing borrowings under the DIP Credit Agreement.
The Company’s ability to recognize the benefits of deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable income.
The Company recognizes the expected future tax benefit from deferred tax assets when realization of the tax benefit is
considered to be more likely than not. Otherwise, a valuation allowance is applied against deferred tax assets.
Assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets requires management to make significant estimates related to
expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecasted income of each
legal entity and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and
taxable income differ significantly from the Company's estimates, the ability of the Company to realize the deferred
tax assets could be impacted. Additionally, future changes in tax laws could limit the Company's ability to obtain the
future tax benefits represented by its deferred tax assets. As of March 31, 2014, the Company’s net current and
long-term deferred tax assets were $16.3 million and $116.7 million, respectively.
Negative tax consequences could materially and adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, cash
flows or results of operations.
Adverse changes in the underlying profitability and financial outlook of the Company's operations in several
jurisdictions could lead to changes in the Company's valuation allowances against deferred tax assets and other tax
reserves on the Company's statement of financial position that could materially and adversely affect the Company's
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business, financial condition, cash flows or results of operations. Additionally, changes in tax laws in the U.S. or in
other countries where the Company has significant operations could materially affect deferred tax assets and liabilities
on the Company's consolidated statement of financial position and tax expense. The Company is also subject to tax
audits by governmental authorities in the U.S. and in non-U.S. jurisdictions. Negative results from one or more such
tax audits could materially and adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of
operations.
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The Company is subject to regulation of its international operations that could adversely affect its business, financial
condition, cash flows or results of operations.
Due to the Company’s global operations, it is subject to many laws governing international relations, including those
that prohibit improper payments to government officials and restrict where it can do business, what information or
products it can supply to certain countries and what information it can provide to a non-U.S. government, including
but not limited to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the U.S. Export Administration Act. Violations of these laws,
which are complex and often times difficult to interpret and apply, may result in severe criminal penalties or sanctions
that could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash flows or results of
operations.
Any restructuring activities that the Company may undertake may not achieve the benefits anticipated and could result
in additional unanticipated costs, which could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial
condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
The Company regularly evaluates its existing operations, production capacity and business efficiencies and, as a result
of such evaluations, the Company may undertake restructuring activities within its businesses. These restructuring
plans may involve higher costs or longer timetables than the Company anticipates and could result in substantial costs
related to severance and other employee-related matters, litigation risks and expenses, and other costs. These
restructuring activities may not result in improvements in future financial performance. If the Company is unable to
realize the benefits of any restructuring activities or appropriately structure its businesses to meet market conditions,
the restructuring activities could have a material adverse affect on the Company’s business, financial condition, cash
flows, or results of operations.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE SAFE HARBOR
PROVISION OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995
Except for historical information, this report may be deemed to contain “forward-looking” statements. The Company is
including this cautionary statement for the express purpose of availing itself of the safe harbor provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to (i) projections of revenues, cost of raw
materials, income or loss, earnings or loss per share, capital expenditures, growth prospects, dividends, the a of
currency translations, capital structure, and other financial items, (ii) statements of plans and objectives of the
Company or its management or Board of Directors, including the introduction of new products, or estimates or
predictions of actions by customers, suppliers, competitors or regulating authorities, (iii) statements of future
economic performance, and (iv) statements of assumptions, such as the prevailing weather conditions in the
Company’s market areas, underlying other statements and statements about the Company or its business.
Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from these forward looking statements include, but are not
limited to, the following general factors such as: (i) the ability of the Company to develop, prosecute, confirm and
consummate the Chapter 11 plan of reorganization, (ii) the potential adverse impact of the Chapter 11 filing on the
Company's liquidity and operations and the risks associated with operating businesses under Chapter 11 protection,
(iii) the ability of Exide to comply with the terms of the DIP financing facility, (iv) the Company's ability to obtain
additional financing, (v) the Company's ability to retain key management and employees, (vi) customer response to
the Chapter 11 filing, (vii) the risk factors or uncertainties listed from time to time in the Company's filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and with the U.S. Bankruptcy Court in connection with the Company's Chapter
11 filing, (viii) the fact that lead, a major constituent in most of the Company’s products, experiences significant
fluctuations in market price and is a hazardous material that may give rise to costly environmental and safety claims,
(ix) the Company’s ability to implement and fund business strategies based on current liquidity, (x) the Company’s
ability to realize anticipated efficiencies and avoid additional unanticipated costs related to its restructuring activities,
(xi) the cyclical nature of the industries in which the Company operates and the impact of current adverse economic
conditions on those industries, (xii) unseasonable weather (warm winters and cool summers) which adversely affects
demand for automotive and some industrial batteries, (xiii) the Company’s substantial debt and debt service
requirements which may restrict the Company’s operational and financial flexibility, as well as imposing significant
interest and financing costs, (xiv) the litigation proceedings to which the Company is subject, the results of which
could have a material adverse affect on the Company and its business, (xv) the realization of the tax benefits of the
Company’s net operating loss carry forwards, which is dependent upon future taxable income, (xvi) competitiveness of
the battery markets in the Americas and Europe, (xvii) risks involved in foreign operations such as disruption of
markets, changes in import and export laws, currency restrictions, currency exchange rate fluctuations and possible
terrorist attacks against U.S. interests, (xviii) the ability to acquire goods and services and/or fulfill later needs at
budgeted costs, (xix) general economic conditions, (xx) the Company’s ability to successfully pass along increased
material costs to its customers, (xxi) recently adopted U.S. lead emissions standards and the implementation of such
standards by applicable states, and (xxii) the Company’s ability to resume operations at its Vernon, California
recycling facility.
The Company cautions each reader to carefully consider those factors herein above set forth and the acknowledgments
contained in the “Risk Factors” section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Such factors and statements have, in some
instances, affected and in the future could affect the ability of the Company to achieve its projected results and may
cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed herein. We undertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statements in this Form 10-K.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
The chart below lists the locations of the Company’s principal operating facilities. All of the facilities are owned by the
Company unless otherwise indicated. Most of the Company’s significant U.S. properties and certain of its European
properties secure its financing arrangements. For a description of these financing arrangements, refer to Item 7 -
Liquidity and Capital Resources.

Location Use
Americas:
Milton, GA (leased) Global and Americas Executive Offices
Cannon Hollow, MO Secondary Lead Recycling

Columbus, GA Transportation and Industrial Battery Manufacturing and
Distribution Center

Fort Smith, AR (leased) Industrial Battery Manufacturing and Distribution Center
Kansas City, KS Industrial Battery Manufacturing and Distribution Center
Lampeter, PA Plastics Manufacturing

Manchester, IA Transportation Battery Manufacturing and Distribution
Center

Mississauga, Canada (leased) Distribution Center
Muncie, IN Secondary Lead Recycling

Salina, KS Transportation Battery Manufacturing and Distribution
Center

Vernon, CA Secondary Lead Recycling
Toluca, Mexico (leased) Distribution Center

Europe and ROW:
Sydney, Australia Distribution Center
Pinsk, Belarus (leased) Transportation Battery Manufacturing
Florival, Belgium Distribution Center
Shanghai, China (leased) Asia Pacific Executive Offices
Gennevilliers, France (leased) European Executive Offices
Lille, France Industrial Battery Manufacturing
Peronne, France Plastics Manufacturing
Bad Lauterberg, Germany Industrial Battery Manufacturing and Distribution Center
Büdingen, Germany Industrial Battery Manufacturing and Distribution Center
Rotterdam, Holland Distribution Center
Ahmedabad, India Transportation Battery Manufacturing
Romano Di Lombardia, Italy Transportation Battery Manufacturing
Poznan, Poland Transportation Battery Manufacturing
Castanheira do Riatejo,
Portugal Industrial Battery Manufacturing

Azambuja, Portugal Secondary Lead Recycling
Azuqueca de Henares, Spain Transportation Battery Manufacturing
San Esteban de Gomez,
Spain Secondary Lead Recycling

La Cartuja, Spain Industrial Battery Manufacturing
Manzanares, Spain Transportation Battery Manufacturing
In addition, the Company also leases sales and distribution outlets in the Americas, Europe, and Asia.
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The Company believes that its facilities are in good operating condition, adequately maintained, and suitable to meet
the Company’s present needs.

21

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

39



Item 3. Legal Proceedings
On April 15, 2013, David M. Loritz filed a purported class action lawsuit against the Company, James R. Bolch,
Phillip A. Damaska, R. Paul Hirt, Jr., and Michael Ostermann alleging violations of certain federal securities laws. On
May 3, 2013, Trevor Knopf filed a nearly identical complaint against the same named defendants in the same court.
These cases were filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California purportedly on behalf
of purchasers of the Company's stock between February 9, 2012 and April 3, 2013. On June 4, 2013, James Cassella
and Sandra Weitsman filed a substantially similar action in the same court, purportedly on behalf of those who
purchased the Company's stock between June 1, 2011 and April 24, 2013, against the Company, Messrs. Bolch,
Damaska, Hirt, and Louis E. Martinez. On July 9, 2013, Judge Stephen V. Wilson consolidated these cases under the
Loritz v. Exide Technologies, Inc. caption, lead docket number 2:13-02607-SVW-E, and appointed Sandra Weitsman
and James Cassella Lead Plaintiffs of the putative class of former Exide stockholders. Judge Wilson ordered Lead
Plaintiffs to file their consolidated amended complaint on or before August 23, 2013. On July 17, 2013, Lead
Plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed their claims against the Company, without prejudice, to re-file at a future date. Lead
Plaintiffs have indicated that they intend to pursue their claims against the individual defendants during the pendency
of Exide's bankruptcy and may seek to reinstate their claims against the Company when it emerges from bankruptcy.
On September 6, 2013, pursuant to an order extending the previous deadline, Lead Plaintiffs filed their Consolidated
Amended Complaint, naming as defendants Messrs. James R. Bolch, Phillip A. Damaska, R. Paul Hirt, Jr., Louis E.
Martinez, John P. Reilly, Herbert F. Aspbury, Michael R. D’Appolonia, David S. Ferguson, John O’Higgins, and
Dominic J. Pilleggi. Lead Plaintiffs did not name Mr. Ostermann as a defendant in the Consolidated Amended
Complaint. In the Consolidated Amended Complaint Lead Plaintiffs purport to state claims under Sections 10(b) and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on behalf of purchasers of the Company’s stock during the period June 1,
2011 and May 24, 2013. In addition, Lead Plaintiffs purport to state claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act and Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 on behalf of purchasers of the
Company’s Senior Secured Notes during the period August 8, 2011 through May 24, 2013. Lead Plaintiffs allege that
certain public statements made by the Company and its officers during these periods were materially false and
misleading. The Consolidated Amended Complaint does not specify an amount of damages sought. Defendants deny
all allegations against them and intend to vigorously pursue their defense. Defendants moved to dismiss all claims
against them and, on December 19, 2013, Judge Wilson granted defendants' motion to dismiss in its entirety, without
prejudice. Judge Wilson gave Lead Plaintiffs leave to file their Consolidated Second Amended Complaint on or before
January 30, 2014. On January 30, 2014, Lead Plaintiffs filed their Consolidated Second Amended Complaint, which is
nearly identical in every material respect to the Consolidated Amended Complaint. The Consolidated Second
Amended Complaint does not specify an amount of damages sought. Defendants deny all allegations against them and
intend to vigorously pursue their defense. On February 13, 2014, Defendants filed their Motion to Dismiss the
Consolidated Second Amended Complaint. On March 31, 2014 Judge Wilson heard oral argument on Defendants’
Motion to Dismiss and took the motion under advisement. Discovery is currently stayed pursuant to the discovery-stay
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which is incorporated herein by reference, for a discussion of
the Company’s commitments and contingencies.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Period Total

Number of
Shares (or Units)
Purchased (1)

Average Price
Paid per Share
(or Unit)

Total Number of
Shares (or Units)
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced

Maximum
Number (or
Approximate Dollar
Value) of Shares (or
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Plans or Programs Units) that May Yet
Be Purchased Under
the Plans or Programs

February 1 through
February 28 2,492 $0.27 — —

March 1 through March 31 73,906 $0.23 — —

(1)
Acquired by the Company in exchange for payment of U.S. tax obligations for certain participants in the
Company’s 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and 2009 Stock Incentive Plan that elected to surrender a portion of their
shares in connection with vesting of restricted stock awards.
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Market Data
The Company’s common stock currently trades on the OTC market and is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the
symbol "XIDEQ". Prior to delisting on June 24, 2013, the Company's common stock had traded on the NASDAQ
Global Market under the symbol “XIDE”. The high and low sales price for the Company's common stock for each
quarter in fiscal 2014 and 2013 is set forth below.

High Low
Fiscal 2014:
First Quarter $2.63 $0.13
Second Quarter $0.56 $0.12
Third Quarter $0.38 $0.18
Fourth Quarter $0.31 $0.23
Fiscal 2013:
First Quarter $3.40 $2.29
Second Quarter $3.71 $2.77
Third Quarter $3.43 $2.42
Fourth Quarter $3.74 $2.59
The Company did not declare or pay dividends on its common stock during fiscal 2014 and 2013. Covenants in the
DIP Credit Agreement restrict the Company’s ability to pay cash dividends on capital stock and the Company presently
does not intend to pay dividends on its common stock.
As of June 2, 2014, the Company had aggregate market value of common stock held by non-affiliates shares of its
common stock outstanding, with approximately 4,112 holders of record, respectively.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
As of March 31, 2014, the Company maintained stock option and incentive plans under which employees and
non-employee directors could be granted options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock or awarded
shares of common stock. The following table contains information relating to such plans as of March 31, 2014.

Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon
Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants, and Rights

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants, and Rights

Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance
under Equity
Compensation Plans

(In thousands, except per share data)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders 1,645 $7.93 1,319

23

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

42



Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following table sets forth selected financial data for the Company. The reader should read this information in
conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto and Item 7 appearing elsewhere
in this report.

Fiscal Year Ended
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands except per share data)

Statements of Operations Data
Net sales $2,855,433 $2,971,698 $3,084,650 $2,887,516 $2,685,808
Operating income (loss) (1) (9,012 ) (53,361 ) 78,875 95,773 16,739
Income (loss) before income taxes (211,572 ) (123,176 ) 751 20,316 (33,300 )
Net income (loss) attributable to
Exide Technologies (217,810 ) (223,399 ) 56,739 26,443 (11,814 )

Basic earnings (loss) per share (2.80 ) (2.89 ) 0.73 0.34 (0.16 )
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (2.80 ) (2.89 ) 0.69 0.33 (0.16 )
Balance Sheet Data (at period end)
Working capital (2) $316,978 $334,054 $496,695 $542,037 $428,996
Total assets 2,032,788 2,004,430 2,194,986 2,183,664 1,956,226
Total debt (3) 307,977 776,012 776,731 758,158 659,527
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)
attributable to Exide Technologies (27,932 ) 153,072 401,794 404,787 332,334

Consolidated Cash Flow Data:
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $(154,611 ) $28,017 $91,768 $79,990 $109,162
Investing activities (72,161 ) (79,246 ) (109,201 ) (71,796 ) (95,242 )
Financing activities 223,122 1,460 17,273 57,599 1,930
Other Data:
Capital expenditures $81,769 $101,501 $109,836 $88,589 $96,092

(1)Operating income reflects restructuring and impairment charges of $28.0 million, $71.5 million, $10.9 million,$42.3 million, and $80.6 million in fiscal 2014, 2013, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
(2)Working capital is calculated as current assets less current liabilities.
(3)Excludes amounts recorded in liabilities subject to compromise as of March 31, 2014. See Note 1 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis provides information which management believes is relevant to an assessment
and understanding of the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should
be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto contained in this Form 10-K.
Some of the statements contained in the following discussion of the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations refer to future expectations or include other “forward-looking” information. Those statements are subject to
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause the actual results to differ materially from
those contemplated by these statements. The forward-looking information is based on various factors and was derived
from numerous assumptions. See “Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the Safe Harbor Provision of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,” included in this Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of factors to be
considered when evaluating forward-looking information detailed below. These factors could cause our actual results
to differ materially from the forward looking statements. For a discussion of certain legal contingencies, see Note 13
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Executive Overview
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The Company is a global producer and recycler of lead-acid batteries. The Company’s four business segments,
Transportation Americas, Transportation Europe and ROW, Industrial Energy Americas, and Industrial Energy
Europe and ROW provide a comprehensive range of stored electrical energy products and services for transportation
and industrial applications.
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Transportation markets include original equipment (“OE”) and aftermarket automotive, heavy-duty truck, agricultural
and marine applications, and new technologies for hybrid vehicles including Stop & Start; micro-hybrid flooded
(“MHF”) and AGM, and other automotive applications. Industrial markets include batteries for telecommunications
systems, utilities, railroads, computer installation and data centers, material handling, mining, and other commercial
vehicles.
The Company’s four reportable segments are determined based upon the nature of the markets served and the
geographic regions in which they operate. The Company’s chief operating decision-maker monitors and manages the
financial performance of these four business groups.
Chapter 11 Case
Overview
On June 10, 2013, the Company filed a voluntary petition for relief under the Bankruptcy Code in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware. The Chapter 11 Case is being administered under the caption In re
Exide Technologies, case number 13-11482. The Company's subsidiaries, foreign and domestic, have been excluded
from the Chapter 11 proceedings and continue to operate their businesses without supervision from the Bankruptcy
Court and are not subject to the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code.
The Company is operating as a debtor-in-possession under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and the applicable
provisions of the Bankruptcy Code. In general, as a debtor-in-possession, we are authorized to continue to operate as
an ongoing business but may not engage in transactions outside the ordinary course of business without the prior
approval of the Bankruptcy Court. The Bankruptcy Code enables the Company to continue to operate its business
without interruption and the Bankruptcy Court has granted a number of first day motions allowing Exide to pay
pre-petition obligations to, among other parties, (i) employees, (ii) taxing authorities, (iii) insurance providers, (iv)
independent contractors, (v) foreign vendors, and (vi) certain vendors deemed critical to the Company's operations.
While operating as a debtor-in-possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, Exide may sell or otherwise
dispose of or liquidate assets or settle liabilities, subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court or otherwise as
permitted in the ordinary course of business. Moreover, the Company has not yet filed with the Bankruptcy Court a
plan of reorganization. The ultimate plan of reorganization, which would be subject to acceptance by the requisite
majorities of empowered creditors under the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Court appraisal, could materially
change the amounts and classifications in the historical Consolidated Financial Statements.
No assurance can be given as to the value, if any, that may be distributable to holders of the Company's various
pre-petition liabilities and other securities. The Company expects that the ultimate value of any distribution to holders
of its securities to be determined in connection with a plan of reorganization. The Company believes that under any
reorganization plan the Company's common stock would likely be substantially diluted or canceled in its entirety.
Accordingly, the Company urges that caution be exercised with respect to existing and future investments in any of
these securities or other Company claims. The Company's common stock has been delisted from trading on the
NASDAQ.
General Information
Notices to Creditors; Effect of Automatic Stay. The Company notified all known current or potential creditors that the
Chapter 11 Case had been filed. Subject to certain exceptions under the Bankruptcy Code, the filing of Exide's
Chapter 11 Case automatically enjoined, or stayed, the continuation of most judicial or administrative proceedings or
filing of other actions against the Company or its property to recover on, collect or secure a claim arising prior to the
Petition Date. Thus, for example, most creditor actions to obtain possession of property from the Company, or to
create, perfect or enforce any lien against the property of the Company, or to collect on monies owed or otherwise
exercise rights or remedies with respect to a pre-petition claim, are enjoined unless and until the Bankruptcy Court
lifts the automatic stay as to any such claim. Vendors are being paid for goods furnished and services provided after
the Petition Date in the ordinary course of business.
Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases. Under Section 365 and other relevant sections of the Bankruptcy Code,
the Company may assume, assume and assign, or reject certain executory contracts and unexpired leases, subject to
the approval of the Bankruptcy Court and certain other conditions. The Company's rights to assume or assume and
assign unexpired leases of non-residential real estate expired on January 6, 2014.
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In general, rejection of an executory contract or unexpired lease is treated as a pre-petition breach of the executory
contract or unexpired lease in question and, subject to certain exceptions, relieves the Company from performing its
future obligations under such executory contract or unexpired lease but entitles the contract counterparty or lessor to a
pre-petition general unsecured claim for damages caused by such deemed breach. Counterparties to such rejected
contracts or leases have the right to file claims against the Company's estate for such damages. Generally, the
assumption of an executory contract or unexpired lease requires the Company to cure existing defaults under such
executory contract or unexpired lease.
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Any description of an executory contract or unexpired lease elsewhere in this report or reflected in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including where applicable the Company's express termination rights or a
quantification of its obligations, must be read in conjunction with, and is qualified by, any rights the Company or
counterparties have under Section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.
Exide expects that liabilities subject to compromise and resolution in the Chapter 11 Case will arise in the future as a
result of damage claims created by the Company's rejection of various executory contracts and unexpired leases. Due
to the uncertain nature of many of the potential rejection claims, the magnitude of such claims is not reasonably
estimable at this time. Such claims may be material.
Magnitude of Potential Claims. On August 9, 2013, the Company filed with the Bankruptcy Court schedules and
statements of financial affairs setting forth, among other things, the assets and liabilities of the Company, subject to
the assumptions filed in connection therewith. All of the schedules are subject to further amendment or modification.
Bankruptcy Rule 3003(c)(3) requires the Bankruptcy Court to fix the time within which proofs of claim must be filed
in a Chapter 11 Case pursuant to section 501 of the Bankruptcy Code. This Bankruptcy Rule also provides that any
creditor who asserts a claim against the Company that arose prior to the Petition Date and whose claim (i) is not listed
on the Company's schedules or (ii) is listed on the schedules as disputed, contingent, or unliquidated, must file a proof
of claim. On September 13, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order, which, among other things, established
October 31, 2013, as the general bar date for filing claims and December 9, 2013, as the bar date for claims by certain
governmental authorities. This order was supplemented by a further order on October 24, 2013, extending the bar date
to January 31, 2014, solely with respect to personal injury claims related to the Company's secondary lead recycling
facility in Vernon, California.
Differences between amounts scheduled by the Company and claims by creditors will be investigated and resolved in
connection with the claims resolution process. In light of the expected number of creditors, the claims resolution
process may take considerable time to complete. Accordingly, the ultimate number and amount of allowed claims is
not presently known, nor can the ultimate recovery with respect to allowed claims be presently ascertained.
Plan of reorganization. Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, the Company has the exclusive right for 120 days
after
the Petition Date to file a plan of reorganization and, if it does so, 60 additional days to obtain necessary acceptances
of the plan. The Company's exclusivity period may be extended by the Court, for cause, for up to 18 months from the
Petition Date.  On October 15, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order extending the Company's exclusive
period to file a plan to May 31, 2014, and the period to solicit acceptances of a plan to July 24, 2014. On May 13,
2014, the Company filed a motion to further extend the exclusivity period to file a plan to July 31, 2014, and to
September 30, 2014, to solicit acceptances for a plan. By an order entered July 1, 2014, the Bankruptcy Court
approved the extensions. On July 30, 2014, the Company filed a motion with the Bankruptcy Court seeking a further
extension of the exclusive period to file a plan to December 10, 2014, and to solicit acceptances of a plan to February
10, 2015. If the Company's exclusivity period lapses, any party in interest may file a plan of reorganization for the
Company. In addition to being voted on by holders of impaired claims and equity interests, a plan of reorganization
must satisfy certain requirements of the Bankruptcy Code and must be approved, or confirmed, by the Bankruptcy
Court in order to become effective. A plan of reorganization has been accepted by holders of claims against and equity
interests in the Company if (i) at least one-half in number and two-thirds in dollar amount of claims actually voting in
each impaired class of claims have voted to accept the plan and (ii) at least two-thirds in amount of equity interests
actually voting in each impaired class of equity interests has voted to accept the plan.
Under certain circumstances set forth in Section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Court may confirm
a plan even if such plan has not been accepted by all impaired classes of claims and equity interests - a process known
as “cram down”. A class of claims or equity interests that does not receive or retain any property under the plan on
account of such claims or interests is deemed to have voted to reject the plan. The precise requirements and
evidentiary showing for confirming a plan notwithstanding its rejection by one or more impaired classes of claims or
equity interests depends upon a number of factors, including the status and seniority of the claims or equity interests in
the rejecting class (i.e., secured claims or unsecured claims, subordinated or senior claims, preferred or common
stock). Generally, with respect to common stock interests, a plan may be “crammed down” even if the shareowners
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receive no recovery if the proponent of the plan demonstrates that (i) no class junior to the common stock is receiving
or retaining property under the plan and (ii) no class of claims or interests senior to the common stock is being paid
more than in full.
On June 30, 2014, the Company received a non-binding POR Proposal from the UNC, whose members hold a
substantial majority of the term loan component of the DIP Credit Facility and pre-petition senior secured notes. The
POR Proposal, which is subject to completion of definitive documentation and certain other conditions, provides
approximately $485.0 million in new capital, and is currently expected to be comprised of the following:

•
A preferred convertible equity capital commitment of approximately $300.0 million (a portion of which will be in the
form of a rights offering backstopped by certain members of the UNC and another portion in the form of a direct
investment by certain members of the UNC);
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•A $185.0 million bond issuance also backstopped by certain members of the UNC; and

•An asset based loan facility for which commitments would be obtained from potential lenders in conjunction with theplan confirmation process.
Reorganization costs.  The Company has incurred and will continue to incur significant costs associated with its
reorganization. The amount of these costs, which are being expensed as incurred, are expected to significantly affect
the Company's results of operations. Pre-petition claims will be reflected in liabilities subject to compromise on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. For additional information, see Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Further Information. For further information regarding the Chapter 11 Case, see Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Additional information about the Company's Chapter 11 filing is also available on
www.exiderestructures.com and at www.exiderestructuringinfo.com.
Factors Which Affect the Company’s Financial Performance
Lead and other Raw Materials. Lead represents approximately 43.7% of the Company’s cost of goods sold. The market
price of lead fluctuates. Generally, when lead prices decrease, customers may seek disproportionate price reductions
from the Company, and when lead prices increase, customers may resist price increases. Either of these situations may
cause customer demand for the Company’s products to be reduced and the Company’s net sales and gross margins to
decline. The average price of lead as quoted on the London Metals Exchange (“LME”) has decreased 1.0% from $2,114
per metric ton for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 to $2,094 per metric ton for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2014. At June 2, 2014, the quoted price on the LME was $2,089 per metric ton. To the extent that lead prices continue
to be volatile and the Company is unable to pass higher material costs resulting from this volatility to its customers, its
financial performance will be adversely impacted.
In the Americas, the Company typically obtains the vast majority of its lead requirements from three Company-owned
and operated secondary lead recycling plants. The Company's recycling facilities reclaim lead by recycling spent
lead-acid batteries, which are obtained for recycling from the Company’s customers and outside spent battery
collectors. Historically, recycling in the Americas has helped the Company control the cost of its principal raw
material compared to purchasing lead at prevailing market prices on the LME. Similar to the fluctuation in lead prices,
however, the cost of spent batteries has also fluctuated. The average cost of spent batteries decreased approximately
3.7% in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. The Company takes pricing actions as allowed by the market and is
attempting to secure higher captive spent battery return rates to help mitigate price volatility associated with spent
battery purchases in the open market.
In Europe, the Company’s lead requirements are mainly fulfilled by third-party suppliers. Because of the Company’s
exposure to the historically volatile lead market prices in Europe, the Company has implemented several measures to
offset changes in lead prices, including selective pricing actions and lead price escalators. The Company has
automatic lead price escalators with virtually all OEM customers. The Company currently obtains a small portion of
its lead requirements from recycling in its European facilities.
The Company expects that volatility in lead and other commodity costs, which affect all business segments, will
continue to put pressure on the Company’s financial performance. However, selective pricing actions, including lead
price escalators in certain contracts, have been implemented to help mitigate these risks. The implementation of
selective pricing actions and price escalators generally lag the rise in market prices of lead and other commodities.
Both lead price escalators and fuel surcharges may not be accepted by our customers, and if the price of lead
decreases, our customers may seek disproportionate price reductions.
Energy Costs. The Company relies on various sources of energy to support its manufacturing and distribution process,
principally natural gas at its recycling facilities, electricity in its battery assembly facilities, and diesel fuel for
distribution of its products. The Company seeks to recoup increases in energy costs through price increases or
surcharges. To the extent the Company is unable to pass on higher energy costs to its customers, its financial
performance will be adversely impacted.
Competition. The global transportation and industrial energy battery markets are highly competitive. In recent years,
competition has continued to intensify and has affected the Company’s ability to pass along increased prices to keep
pace with rising production costs. The affects of this competition have been exacerbated by excess manufacturing
capacity in certain of the Company’s markets. In addition, fluctuating lead prices and low-priced Asian imports have
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also impacted certain of the Company’s markets.
Exchange Rates. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk in most European countries, principally from
fluctuations in the Euro. For fiscal 2014, the average exchange rate of the Euro to the U.S. Dollar has increased 4.1%
on average from $1.29 for fiscal 2013 to $1.34 for fiscal 2014. At March 31, 2014, the Euro was at $1.38 as compared
to $1.28 at March 31, 2013. Fluctuations in foreign currencies impacted the Company’s results for the periods
presented herein. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, approximately 60.6% of the Company’s net sales were
generated in Europe and ROW. Further, approximately 63.4% of the Company’s aggregate accounts receivable and
inventories as of March 31, 2014 were held
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by European and ROW subsidiaries. To the extent foreign currencies are volatile, the Company’s financial
performance could be adversely impacted.
The Company is also exposed, although to a lesser extent, to foreign currency risk in the U.K., Poland, Australia, and
various countries in the Pacific Rim. Fluctuations in exchange rates against the U.S. Dollar can result in variations in
the U.S. Dollar value of non-U.S. sales, expenses, assets, and liabilities. In some instances, gains in one currency may
be offset by losses in another.
Markets. The Company is subject to concentrations of customers and sales in a few geographic locations and is
dependent on customers in certain industries, including the automotive, communications and data and material
handling markets. Economic difficulties experienced in these markets and geographic locations impact the Company’s
financial results. OE volumes in the Transportation and Motive Power channels have been and continue to be
impacted by unfavorable global economic conditions. In addition, capital spending by major customers in our
Network Power channels also continue to be below historic levels.
Seasonality and Weather. The Company sells a disproportionate share of its transportation aftermarket batteries during
the fall and early winter (the Company’s third and a portion of its fourth fiscal quarters). Retailers and distributors buy
automotive batteries during these periods so they will have sufficient inventory for cold weather periods. The impact
of seasonality on sales has the affect of increasing the Company’s working capital requirements and also makes the
Company more sensitive to fluctuations in the availability of liquidity.
Unusually cold winters or hot summers may accelerate battery failure and increase demand for transportation
replacement batteries. Mild winters and cool summers may have the opposite affect. As a result, if the Company’s sales
are reduced by an unusually warm winter or cool summer, it is not possible for the Company to recover these sales in
later periods. Further, if the Company’s sales are adversely affected by the weather, the Company cannot make
offsetting cost reductions to protect its liquidity and gross margins in the short-term because a large portion of the
Company’s manufacturing and distribution costs are fixed.
Interest Rates. The Company is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates on its variable rate debt. See Item 7A and Note
9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Fiscal 2014 Highlights and Outlook
The Company ceased operations at its Frisco, Texas recycling facility in December 2012 and idled secondary lead
recycling operations at its Reading, Pennsylvania facility, effective March 2013. The Company anticipates that its
remaining U.S. operating recycling facilities including the currently suspended Vernon, California facility, will
continue to provide a significant portion of the lead requirements for the Americas regions. The Company has
established arrangements with third party recyclers in North America to provide tolling for the region’s remaining lead
requirements. Limited additional purchases of finished lead from third party suppliers may also be required to satisfy
the region’s requirement.
The key elements of the Company’s underlying business plans and continued strategies are:
•Successfully emerging from Chapter 11 as a going concern.

•Successful resolution of matters related to the Vernon, California secondary lead recycling facility and reopening thefacility.
•Successful post-shutdown activities at the Company’s former Frisco, Texas recycling facility.

•
Actions designed to improve the Company’s liquidity and operating cash flow include working capital reduction plans,
the sale of non-strategic assets and businesses, streamlining cash management processes, implementing plans to
minimize the cash costs of the Company’s restructuring initiatives, and closely managing capital expenditures.

•Continued factory and distribution productivity improvements through the Company’s established Lean/Six Sigmaprogram, as well as the Value Analysis Value Engineering (“VAVE”) and Take Charge! initiatives.

•
An enhanced focus on growth of the Industrial Americas business through increased new product offerings (Tubular
Motive Power, High Frequency Chargers, etc.), increases in capacity and a larger and more distributed sales and
service team tied to the Transportation branch network.

• Continued investment in production capacity to meet evolving needs for enhanced batteries (AGM and MHF)
required for the increasing numbers of Stop & Start and micro-hybrid vehicles.

•
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Continued research and development and engineering investments designed to develop enhanced lead-acid products
as well as products utilizing alternative chemistries, particularly Lithium-Ion for selected Motor Power application in
Europe.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations is based upon the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting

28

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

52



principles (“GAAP”). The preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements requires the Company to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates based on its
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.
The Company believes the following critical accounting policies and estimates affect the preparation of its
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Inventory Valuation. The Company adjusts its inventory carrying value to estimated market value (when below
historical cost basis) based upon assumptions of future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are
less favorable than those projected by the Company, additional inventory write-downs may be required.
Valuation of Long -lived Assets. The Company’s long-lived assets include property, plant and equipment and
identified intangible assets. Long-lived assets (other than indefinite lived intangible assets) are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives and are reviewed for impairment whenever changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of asset groups to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the
carrying amount of long-lived assets to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by these asset
groups. If such asset groups are considered to be impaired, the impairment recognized is the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset group exceeds the fair value of the asset group. Assets held for sale are reported at the
lower of the carrying amount or fair value less estimated costs of disposal and are no longer depreciated.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment on both an annual basis and whenever changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. The fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assets is
based upon the Company’s estimates of future cash flows and other factors including discount rates to determine the
fair value of the respective assets. If these long-lived assets or their related assumptions change in the future, the
Company may be required to record impairment charges.
Employee Benefit Plans. The Company considers accounting for employee benefit plans critical because management
is required to make significant subjective judgments about a number of actuarial assumptions, including discount
rates, compensation growth, long-term return on plan assets, retirement, turnover, health care cost trend rates and
mortality rates. Depending on the assumptions and estimates used, the pension and post-retirement benefit expense
could vary within a range of outcomes and have a material affect on reported results. In addition, the assumptions can
materially affect accumulated benefit obligations and future cash funding. For a detailed discussion of the Company’s
retirement benefits, see Employee Benefit Plans herein and Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Deferred Taxes.  The Company records valuation allowances to reduce its deferred tax assets to amounts that are more
likely than not to be realized. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, the Company considers both positive
and negative evidence related to the likelihood of realization of the deferred tax assets. The weight given to the
positive and negative evidence is commensurate with the extent to which the evidence may be objectively verified. As
such, it is generally difficult for positive evidence regarding projected future taxable income exclusive of reversing
taxable temporary differences to outweigh objective negative evidence of recent financial reporting losses.
This assessment, which is completed on a taxing jurisdiction basis, takes into account a number of types of evidence,
including the following:

•

Nature, frequency, and severity of current and cumulative financial reporting losses. A pattern of
objectively-measured recent financial reporting losses is heavily weighted as a source of negative evidence. Three
year cumulative pre-tax losses generally are considered to be significant negative evidence regarding future
profitability. Also, the strength and trend of the Company's earnings, as well as other relevant factors, are considered.
In certain circumstances, historical information may not be as relevant due to changes in the business operations;
•Sources of future taxable income. Future reversals of existing temporary differences are heavily-weighted sources of
objectively verifiable positive evidence. Projections of future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary
differences and carryforwards are a source of positive evidence only when the projections are combined with a history
of recent profits and can be reasonably estimated. Otherwise, these projections are considered inherently subjective
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and generally will not be sufficient to overcome negative evidence that includes relevant cumulative losses in recent
years, particularly if the projected future taxable income is dependent on an anticipated turnaround to profitability that
has not yet been achieved. In such cases, we generally give these projections of future taxable income limited weight
for the purposes of our valuation allowance assessment pursuant to GAAP;

•Taxable income in prior carryback year(s), if carryback is permitted under the tax law, would be consideredsignificant positive evidence, depending on availability, when evaluating current period losses; and
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•
Tax planning strategies. If necessary and available, tax planning strategies would be implemented to accelerate
taxable amounts to utilize expiring carry forwards. These strategies would be a source of additional positive evidence
and, depending on their nature, could be heavily weighted.
If the Company were to determine that it would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the
Company's net recorded amount, an adjustment to the net deferred tax asset would increase income in the period that
such determination was made. Likewise, should the Company determine that it would not be able to realize all or part
of its net deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to the net deferred tax asset would decrease income in the
period such determination was made. The Company regularly evaluates the need for valuation allowances against its
deferred tax assets.
In fiscal 2013, the Company's U.S. operations had moved to a position of cumulative loss for the most recent
three-year period. The Company considered the items below and concluded that the future tax benefits were not more
likely than not to be realized:
•Three-year cumulative pretax loss;
•Limited carry forward period for the U.S. net operating losses; and
•Business plan projections for the U.S. showed continued losses.
Accordingly, in fiscal 2013, the Company established a full valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets for
entities in the U.S. resulting in an $85.1 million expense in our provision for income taxes.
In fiscal 2012, our French operations had returned to a position of cumulative profits for the most recent three-year
period. The Company considered the items below and concluded that the future tax benefits were more likely than not
to be realized:
•Three-year cumulative pretax income (excluding one-time Auxerre plant closure related restructuring costs);
•Unlimited carry forward period for the French net operating losses;

•Favorable financial impact resulting from the closure of the Auxerre battery plant, which reduced fixed cost and betterleveraged capacity utilization; and
•Business plan projections for France showed continued profitability.
Accordingly, in fiscal 2012, the Company released all of the valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets for
entities in France resulting in a $73.6 million benefit in our provision for income taxes.
Revenue Recognition. The Company records sales when revenue is earned. Shipping terms are generally free on board
"FOB" shipping point and revenue is recognized when product is shipped to the customer. In limited cases, terms are
FOB destination and in these cases, revenue is recognized when the product is delivered to the customer’s delivery site.
The Company records sales net of discounts and estimated customer allowances and returns.
Sales Returns and Allowances. The Company provides for an allowance for product returns and/or allowances at the
time sales are recorded. Based upon its manufacturing re-work process, the Company believes that the majority of its
product returns are not the result of product defects. The Company recognizes the estimated cost of product returns as
a reduction of sales in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The product return estimates are based
upon historical trends and claims experience, and include an assessment of the anticipated lag between the date of sale
and claim/return date.
Environmental Reserves. The Company is subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations in all the countries
in which it operates. In addition, the Company can be held liable for the cost of investigation and remediation of sites
impacted by its past operating activities. The Company maintains reserves for the cost of addressing these liabilities
once they are determined to be both probable and reasonably estimable. These estimates are determined through a
combination of methods, including outside estimates of likely expense and the Company’s historical experience in the
management of these matters.
Because environmental liabilities are not accrued until a liability is determined to be probable and reasonably
estimable, not all potential future environmental liabilities have been included in the Company’s environmental
reserves and, therefore, additional future earnings charges are possible. Also, future findings or changes in estimates
could result in either an increase or decrease in the reserves and have a significant impact on the Company’s liquidity
and its results of operations.
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Litigation. The Company has legal contingencies that have a high degree of uncertainty. When a contingency becomes
probable and reasonably estimable, a reserve is established. Lawsuits have been filed against the Company for which
the liabilities are not considered probable and reasonably estimable. Consequently, no reserves have been established
for these matters. If future litigation or the resolution of existing matters results in liability to the Company, such
liability could have a significant impact on the Company’s future results and liquidity.
Liabilities Subject to Compromise.  Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, certain claims against the Debtor in
existence prior to the filing of the petition for relief are stayed while the Debtor continues business operations as a
Debtor-in-Possession. These estimated claims are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as Liabilities Subject to
Compromise. Such
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claims remain subject to future adjustments which could be material. Adjustments may result from actions of the
Bankruptcy Court, negotiations, rejection or acceptance of executory contracts, determination as to the value of any
collateral securing claims, proofs of claim or other events.
Interest expense related to pre-petition indebtedness has been reported only to the extent that it will be paid during the
proceedings of the bankruptcy case or based upon expectations of the interest being an allowed claim. The
expectations of interest being an allowed claim remain subject to future determination and adjustment.
Reorganization Items. The Consolidated Financial Statements distinguish transactions that are directly associated with
the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business.
Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2014 compared with Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2013 
Net Sales
Net sales were $2.9 billion for fiscal 2014 versus $3.0 billion in fiscal 2013. Foreign currency translation (primarily
the strengthening of the Euro against the U.S. dollar) favorably impacted net sales in fiscal 2014 by $40.8 million.
Excluding the foreign currency translation impact, net sales decreased by $157.0 million, or 5.3%. See segments
discussion below.
Net sales by operating segment:

For the Twelve Months Ended FAVORABLE / (UNFAVORABLE)

Total Currency
Related

Non-Currency
RelatedMarch 31,

2014
March 31,
2013

(In thousands)
Transportation Americas $760,412 $879,831 $(119,419 ) $(6,279 ) $(113,140 )
Transportation Europe & ROW 930,036 926,978 3,058 28,145 (25,087 )
Industrial Energy Americas 365,633 368,386 (2,753 ) (819 ) (1,934 )
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 799,352 796,503 2,849 19,707 (16,858 )
Total $2,855,433 $2,971,698 $(116,265 ) $40,754 $(157,019 )
Transportation Americas net sales, excluding the foreign currency translation impact, decreased 12.9% primarily due
to the exit of unprofitable OE automotive contracts and a $84.6 million reduction in third-party lead and tolling sales
resulting from the closure of the Company's Frisco, Texas recycling plant and idling of the Company's Reading,
Pennsylvania recycling plant in Q4 fiscal 2013.
Transportation Europe and ROW net sales, excluding foreign currency translation, decreased 2.7% due to $59.1
million lower net sales resulting from sale of Transportation Australasia business in Q4 fiscal 2013, partially offset by
10.4% higher OE unit sales and approximately $10.9 million of favorable lead-related pricing actions.
Industrial Energy Americas net sales, excluding the foreign currency translation impact, decreased 0.5% due to lower
unit sales in the Motive Power market partially offset by higher unit sales in the Network Power market.
Industrial Energy Europe and ROW net sales, excluding foreign currency translation impact, decreased 2.1% due to
lower unit sales in Southeast Asia and Hong Kong, lower military sales in Europe, partially offset by approximately
$7.4 million of favorable lead-related pricing actions in Europe.
Gross Profit
Gross profit was $384.5 million for fiscal 2014 versus $407.3 million for fiscal 2013. Gross margin was 13.5% of net
sales in fiscal 2014 compared to 13.7% of net sales in fiscal 2013. See further operating segments discussion below
under the caption “Operating Loss".
Operating Expenses
Selling and administrative expenses were $365.5 million in fiscal 2014 versus $389.2 million in fiscal 2013.
Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, selling and operating expenses decreased $27.4 million due to
lower employee-related costs including lower Travel & Entertainment driven by headcount reductions as well as
lower discretionary sales and marketing costs, partially offset by higher legal fees.
Restructuring and impairment expenses were $28.0 million in fiscal 2014 versus $71.5 million in fiscal 2013.
Excluding the impact of foreign currency translation, restructuring and impairment expenses decreased $44.4 million.
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The fiscal 2013 restructuring and impairments was primarily due to the closure of the Bristol, Tennessee flooded
battery plant, the idling of the
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Reading, Pennsylvania lead recycling operations, the closure of GNB India, the closure of the Baton Rouge, Louisiana
recycling plant and the loss related to the sale of the transportation Australasia business. The fiscal 2014 restructuring
and impairments included $16.5 million in the Transportation Americas segment relating to asset impairments,
headcount reductions, lease and contractual commitments associated with closed Bristol, Tennessee facility, and the
idling of the Company’s Bristol, Tennessee spiral-wound AGM product line ("Vortex"). The remainder related to
certain headcount reductions in Europe and the corporate headquarters.
Operating Loss 
Operating loss was $(9.0) million in fiscal 2014 versus $(53.4) million in fiscal 2013. See segments discussion below.
Operating loss by operating segment:

For the Twelve Months Ended FAVORABLE /
(UNFAVORABLE)

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Total Currency

Related
Non-Currency
RelatedTotal Percent of

Net Sales Total Percent of
Net Sales

(In thousands)
Transportation Americas $(7,739 ) (1.0 )% $(23,158 ) (2.6 )% $15,419 $(265 ) $15,684
Transportation Europe & ROW 19,561 2.1  % 20,335 2.2  % (774 ) 1,173 (1,947 )
Industrial Energy Americas 25,185 6.9  % 28,266 7.7  % (3,081 ) 12 (3,093 )
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 16,004 2.0  % 21,787 2.7  % (5,783 ) (127 ) (5,656 )
Unallocated corporate (34,034 ) n/a (29,096 ) n/a (4,938 ) (405 ) (4,533 )

18,977 0.7  % 18,134 0.6  % 843 388 455
Restructuring and impairments,
net (27,989 ) n/a (71,495 ) n/a 43,506 (916 ) 44,422

Total $(9,012 ) (0.3 )% $(53,361 ) (1.8 )% $44,349 $(528 ) $44,877

Gross margins by operating segment:
For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Transportation Americas 12.5 % 11.8 %
Transportation Europe & ROW 11.3 % 12.4 %
Industrial Energy Americas 19.2 % 19.8 %
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 14.3 % 14.6 %
Total 13.5 % 13.7 %
Transportation Americas' operating loss was lower due to the exiting of unprofitable OE automotive contracts, higher
pricing to these OE customers during the transition period, lower fixed costs due to the closure of the Bristol,
Tennessee facility, improved productivity at the Salina, Kansas facility, and lower SG&A expenses. These
improvements were somewhat tempered by the temporary suspension of our Vernon, California facility during Q1 of
fiscal 2014, (see further discussion below related to CDTSC suspension order). This suspension resulted in $8.6
million of increased costs related to purchased lead to compensate for lower internal lead production. In addition, we
incurred significant legal and other professional fees to defend our position with various regulatory bodies. In
addition, results were unfavorably impacted by lower third-party lead and tolling sales resulting from the closure of
the Company's Frisco, Texas recycling plant and the idling of the Company's Reading, Pennsylvania recycling plant in
Q4 fiscal 2013.
In April 2013, the Company received an order (the "Suspension Order") from the CDTSC requiring the Company to
temporarily suspend recycling operations at its Vernon, California recycling facility. On July 2, 2013, the Los Angeles
County Superior Court issued a preliminary injunction allowing the Company to resume operations of the Vernon
facility.
In addition, future periods may be adversely impacted by recent SCAQMD actions. On January 10, 2014, the
SCAQMD adopted an amended rule that contained new emissions and equipment requirements with varying
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compliance dates, including an April 10, 2014 deadline that would require the Company to operate the furnaces at the
Vernon facility under continuous "negative pressure". On April 7, 2014, the Los Angeles County Superior Court
denied the Company's preliminary injunction. Additionally, on April 8, 2014, the SCAQMD Hearing Board denied the
Company's variance request. As a result of these two
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decisions, the Company suspended operations at the Vernon facility until such time as the Company can design,
engineer, permit, install, and test new equipment needed to achieve the new standard under Rule 1420.1. On July 10,
2014, the Company agreed to the SCAQMD Hearing Board's issuance of two orders for abatement allowing the
Company to resume operations upon completion of installing certain SCAQMD approved air quality control
equipment in accordance with SCAQMD issued air quality permits and applicable SCAQMD permitting regulations
and using specialized dust mitigation procedures. The Company currently estimates the full operation of the furnaces
under continuous negative pressure will not occur until after installation of the aforesaid equipment expected to be
completed in or about December 2014 should the Company decide to proceed. If the Company is unable to find
adequate sources of lead or if it procures such sources of lead at significantly higher cost, such circumstances would
result in a material adverse affect on the Company's business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
Transportation Europe and ROW operating income, excluding foreign currency translation impact, slightly decreased
as improved mix of higher margin Stop & Start battery sales, better lead recovery due to more stable lead prices in the
current fiscal year, and SG&A expense control. These positive influences were substantially offset by the impact of
lower aftermarket unit sales from the lack of a winter season in Europe and the loss of profitability from the
Australasia transportation business, which was sold in late fiscal 2013.
Industrial Energy Americas operating income decreased principally due to lower Motive Power unit sales and
continued plant efficiency and scrap issues in the Company's Columbus, Georgia facility.
Industrial Energy Europe and ROW operating income, excluding foreign currency translation impact, decreased as a
result of much lower sales in Southeast Asia and Hong Kong, lower military sales and increased professional and legal
fees in Europe.
Unallocated corporate operating expenses, excluding the foreign currency translation impact, were unfavorably
impacted due to higher legal fees.
Other (Income) Expense, net 
Other (income) expense, net was $(5.5) million in fiscal 2014 versus $2.5 million in fiscal 2013. The change primarily
results from favorable currency remeasurement on inter-company borrowings versus the prior year.
Interest Expense, net
Interest expense was $114.4 million in fiscal 2014 versus $65.6 million in fiscal 2013. The unfavorable change is due
to higher average borrowings under the DIP financing and higher amortization of deferred financing costs related to
the DIP financing. In addition, the Company has continued to accrue interest on certain debt included in Liabilities
Subject to Compromise.
Reorganization Items, net
Reorganization expense includes items directly related to Debtor Chapter 11 Bankruptcy filing. The majority of these
costs relate to the professional advisors to the Company and various creditor constituencies, including legal, financial,
and environmental experts. For additional information see Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Income Taxes

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Loss before income taxes $(211,572 ) $(123,176 )
Income tax provision 6,158 99,915
Effective tax rate (2.9 )% (81.1 )%
The income tax expense for fiscal 2014 includes the recognition of taxes on income and losses in almost all of the
Company's jurisdictions with the exception of the United States, Spain, and the United Kingdom, on which full
valuation allowances are recorded. 
The income tax expense for fiscal 2013 includes the recognition of taxes on income and losses in almost all of the
Company's jurisdictions with the exception of the United States, Spain, and the United Kingdom, on which full
valuation allowances are recorded. During the year the Company established an $85.1 million full valuation allowance
for the United States after determining that it was not more likely than not that the Company would realize all
deductible temporary differences and loss carryforwards in the foreseeable future. In addition, the income tax expense
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was increased by the establishment of valuation allowances in India and Portugal aggregating $3.5 million.
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2013 compared with Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2012
Net Sales
Net sales were $3.0 billion for fiscal 2013 versus $3.1 billion in fiscal 2012. Foreign currency translation unfavorably
impacted net sales in fiscal 2013 by approximately $94.4 million. Excluding foreign currency translation, net sales
decreased by approximately $18.5 million, or 0.6%, primarily as a result of $77.6 million in unfavorable lead related
pricing partially offset by higher unit sales in many of the Company's markets.
Net sales by operating segment:

For the Twelve Months Ended FAVORABLE / (UNFAVORABLE)
March 31,
2013

March 31,
2012 Total Currency

Related
Non-Currency
Related

(In thousands)
Transportation Americas $879,831 $907,838 $(28,007 ) $(1,434 ) $(26,573 )
Transportation Europe & ROW 926,978 1,014,292 (87,314 ) (51,034 ) (36,280 )
Industrial Energy Americas 368,386 339,328 29,058 (348 ) 29,406
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 796,503 823,192 (26,689 ) (41,599 ) 14,910
Total $2,971,698 $3,084,650 $(112,952 ) $(94,415 ) $(18,537 )
Transportation Americas net sales, excluding the foreign currency translation impact, decreased 2.9% due to lower
third party lead sales and $5.8 million of unfavorable lead related pricing actions, partially offset by an 11.8% increase
in OEM unit sales and a 1.1% increase in aftermarket unit sales. Third-party lead sales in the twelve months of fiscal
2013 were approximately $45.1 million lower than such third-party sales in the twelve months of fiscal 2012 as the
Company continued to reduce capacity in the volatile lead business, as evidenced by the previously announced
shutdown of the Frisco, Texas recycling facility and idling of the Reading, Pennsylvania recycling facility.
Transportation Europe and ROW net sales, excluding foreign currency translation, decreased 3.6% mainly due to
$35.6 million unfavorable impact of lead-related pricing, partially offset by 5.3% higher unit sales in the aftermarket.
Industrial Energy Americas net sales, excluding the foreign currency translation impact, increased 8.7% mainly due to
15.2% higher unit sales in the Network Power market and 2.1% higher unit sales in the Motive Power market,
partially offset by $6.1 million unfavorable lead related pricing actions.
Industrial Energy Europe and ROW net sales, excluding foreign currency translation impact, increased 1.8% primarily
due to 10.8% higher unit sales in the Network Power market, offset by $30.1 million unfavorable lead related pricing
actions.
Gross Profit
Gross profit was $407.3 million in fiscal 2013 versus $484.8 million in fiscal 2012. Gross margin was 13.7% of net
sales in fiscal 2013 compared to 15.7% of net sales in fiscal 2012. Excluding the impact of foreign currency
translation, gross profit decreased due to lower third-party lead margins in the Americas, combined with higher
commodity costs (aggregating to $58.1 million in the Americas) and manufacturing inefficiencies due to lower
production and certain operational issues in Europe and the Americas. The operational issues principally impact gross
margin in the Americas and result from the relocation of production to support the Bristol, TN closure, inefficiencies
from ramp up of sizable capital investments in Salina, KS, Columbus, GA, and maintenance related downtime in
Muncie, IN. Foreign currency translation unfavorably impacted gross profit in fiscal 2013 by approximately $12.8
million.
Operating Expenses
Selling and administrative expenses decreased $5.9 million, to $389.2 million in fiscal 2013 from $395.1 million in
fiscal 2012. Excluding foreign currency translation impact of $9.8 million, the expenses increased by $3.9 million,
primarily due to higher salaried related costs including sales commissions.
Restructuring and impairment expenses increased by $60.6 million, to $71.5 million in fiscal 2013 from $10.9 million
in fiscal 2012. The fiscal 2013 increase was primarily due to the closure of the Bristol, Tennessee flooded battery
plant, the idling of the Reading, Pennsylvania lead recycling operations, the closure of GNB India, closure of Baton
Rouge, and loss related to the sale of the transportation Australasia business and other asset impairments.
Operating (Loss) Income
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Operating (loss) income was $(53.4) million at March 31, 2013 versus $78.9 million at March 31, 2012. See segments
discussion below.
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Operating (loss) income by operating segment:

For the Twelve Months Ended FAVORABLE /
(UNFAVORABLE)

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Total Currency

Related
Non-Currency
RelatedTotal Percent of

Net Sales Total Percent of
Net Sales

(In thousands)
Transportation Americas $(23,158 ) (2.6 )% $9,513 1.0 % $(32,671 ) $447 $ (33,118 )
Transportation Europe & ROW 20,335 2.2  % 55,928 5.5 % (35,593 ) (939 ) (34,654 )
Industrial Energy Americas 28,266 7.7  % 41,657 12.3 % (13,391 ) (39 ) (13,352 )
Industrial Energy Europe
& ROW 21,787 2.7  % 14,435 1.8 % 7,352 (362 ) 7,714

Unallocated corporate (29,096 ) n/a (31,780 ) n/a 2,684 928 1,756
18,134 0.6  % 89,753 2.9 % (71,619 ) 35 (71,654 )

Restructuring and impairments,
net (71,495 ) n/a (10,878 ) n/a (60,617 ) 278 (60,895 )

Total operating (loss) income $(53,361 ) (1.8 )% $78,875 2.6 % $(132,236) $313 $ (132,549 )

Gross margins by operating segment:
For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Transportation Americas 11.8 % 14.5 %
Transportation Europe & ROW 12.4 % 15.3 %
Industrial Energy Americas 19.8 % 24.6 %
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 14.6 % 13.9 %
Total 13.7 % 15.7 %
Transportation Americas operating (loss) income, excluding the foreign currency translation impact, decreased
primarily due to compressed margins resulting from lower third-party lead sales, higher recycled lead input costs,
certain operational issues and decreased revenue from lower LME lead prices, offsetting positive pricing actions in the
aftermarket. The impact of higher core costs combined with lower third-party lead margins aggregated approximately
$43.0 million.
Transportation Europe and ROW operating income, excluding foreign currency translation impact, decreased mainly
due to the continued impact of competitive pricing in the aftermarket business combined with unfavorable mix
resulting from a shift to lower margin private label products during the period, and manufacturing inefficiencies. Also
negatively impacting fiscal 2012 is an out of period unfavorable inventory adjustment of $4.6 million related to the
Company's Portuguese recycling facility. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Industrial Energy Americas also experienced compressed margins as a result of higher lead input costs and lower
LME lead pricing, as well as start-up related costs in the Company's Columbus, Georgia facility associated with a new
AGM production line. The impact of higher spent battery acquisition costs and lower relative LME based pricing was
approximately $15.1 million.
Industrial Energy Europe and ROW operating income, excluding foreign currency translation impact, increased
mainly due higher unit sales in the Network Power segment, lower selling and administrative expenses resulting from
cost cutting initiatives and lower headcount; partially offset by higher commodity costs.
Unallocated corporate operating expenses, excluding the foreign currency translation impact, decreased mainly due to
lower salary related expenses and lower professional fees.
Other Expense, net
Other expense was $2.5 million at March 31, 2013 versus $5.1 million at March 31, 2012. The favorable change
primarily relates to lower foreign currency remeasurement expenses on related intercompany debt in fiscal 2013
versus the prior year.
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Interest Expense, net
Interest expense decreased $6.2 million, to $65.6 million as of March 31, 2013 from $71.8 million as of March 31,
2012 primarily due to decreases in certain short-term loans combined with higher gains on an interest rate swap
transactions versus the prior year period.
Income Taxes

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Pre-tax (loss) income $(123,176 ) $751
Income tax provision (benefit) 99,915 (55,203 )
Effective tax rate (81.1 )% (7,350.6 )%
The income tax expense (benefit) for fiscal 2013 includes the recognition of taxes on income and losses in almost all
of the Company's jurisdictions with the exception of the United States, Spain and the United Kingdom, on which full
valuation allowances are recorded. During the year the Company established an $85.1 million full valuation allowance
for the United States after determining that it was not more likely than not that the Company would realize all
deductible temporary differences and loss carryforwards in the foreseeable future. In addition, the income tax expense
was increased by the establishment of valuation allowance in India and Portugal aggregating $3.5 million.
The income tax expense (benefit) for fiscal 2012 was impacted by the recognition of taxes on income and losses in
almost all of the Company's jurisdictions with the exception of the United Kingdom and Spain, on which full
valuation allowances are recorded. In addition, the Company released $73.6 million valuation allowance for France
after determining that it was more likely than not that the Company would realize all deductible temporary differences
and loss carryforwards in the foreseeable future. In addition, the income tax benefit was decreased by the
establishment of valuation allowances in India and Portugal aggregating $4.2 million.
During fiscal 2012, the Company recorded a $13.4 million settlement with the Spanish tax authorities regarding its
current and certain former Spanish subsidiaries. The settlement permanently closes income tax audits for fiscal years
2003 through 2010. This settlement resulted in the forfeiture of the $13.4 million previously paid during the appeal
process.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Chapter 11 petitions triggered defaults on substantially all debt obligations of the Company and as a result, the
Senior Secured Notes, Convertible Notes and ABL facility described below have been accelerated and are due and
payable. However, under Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code, the commencement of a Chapter 11 Case automatically
stays most creditor actions against the Company's estate. To enhance liquidity, in connection with the Chapter 11
Case, the Company filed motions seeking approval of the Bankruptcy Court for a $500.0 million Debtor-in-Possession
financing.
At March 31, 2014, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $103.7 million and availability under the senior
secured asset-based revolving credit facility (the “ABL facility”) of $126.5 million. This compared to cash and cash
equivalents of $104.3 million and availability under the Company’s revolving credit facility of $129.4 million as of
March 31, 2013.
DIP Facilities
In connection with the Chapter 11 Case, the Company received Bankruptcy Court approval of debtor-in-possession
financing on the terms set forth in the DIP Credit Agreement. The DIP Credit Agreement provides for senior secured
super-priority debtor-in-possession financing facilities in an aggregate amount of up to $500.0 million, consisting of a
$225.0 million ABL revolving credit facility, subject to a borrowing base, and a $275.0 million "last out" term loan
facility. Effective July 12, 2013, the DIP Credit Agreement was amended and restated to provide a $25.0 million
swingline facility sub-limit, as well as the creation of two separate tranches in the $225.0 million revolver facility: (i)
a $110.0 million facility under which only advances denominated in U.S. Dollars can be drawn; and (ii) a $115.0
million facility under which advances denominated in U.S. Dollars or Euros can be drawn.
Effective July 24, 2013, the DIP Credit Agreement was amended to permit an increase of the quarterly maximum
capital expenditure limits of $25.0 million by $2.5 million should the preceding quarter’s EBITDA exceed 110.0% of
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the DIP budget, with the rolling four quarter maximum capital expenditures increased to $90.0 million for the four
quarters ending after March 31, 2014.
Effective October 9, 2013, a second amendment provided additional flexibility to the Company with regard to certain
non-core asset transactions, and further clarified certain terms of the DIP Credit Agreement. The second amendment
revised the definition of "Permitted Liens" to permit contractual encumbrances in connection with certain permitted
dispositions under the
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DIP Credit Agreement. The second amendment further changed the definition of "Total Adjusted Operating Cash
Flow" to exclude the affect of Frisco Escrow Account receipts from "Total Adjusted Operating Cash Flow."
Effective May 28, 2014, the Company entered into the third amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which, among
other things, extended to June 30, 2014 the milestone for the Company to file a plan of reorganization with the
Bankruptcy Court. The third amendment increased the quarterly and rolling four quarter capital expenditure limits
from $25.0 million and $90.0 million to $36.0 million and $120.0 million, respectively. The third amendment also
excluded from the definition of "Capital Expenditure" expenditures made in connection with the replacement,
substitution, restoration or repair of assets funded through the receipt of insurance proceeds or other compensation
awards paid on account of a casualty loss. Finally, the third amendment increased the European factoring basket to
Euro 100.0 million from Euro 75.0 million and expanded the subsidiaries whose receivables can be factored to include
subsidiaries domiciled in Belgium, Denmark, Finland, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, and Sweden.
Effective June 27, 2014, the Company entered into the fourth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which
extended to July 31, 2014 the deadline for filing a plan of reorganization and eliminating the milestone related to
soliciting acceptance of the plan of reorganization. The fourth amendment also increased to $85.0 million from $75.0
million the letters of credit sublimit. The revised deadline for filing a plan of reorganization to July 31, 2014 was
approved by the Bankruptcy Court on June 30, 2014.
Also, effective on June 27, 2014, the Company entered into the fifth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which,
among other things, extended to August 15, 2014 the date by which the Company is required to deliver annual audited
financial statements and the related Compliance Certificate for the fiscal year of the Company ended March 31, 2014.
On July 22, 2014, the Company entered into the sixth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which, among other
things, sought to modify the DIP Credit Agreement as follows:

• eliminate restrictions on capital expenditures, modify the definition of EBITDA and adjust the minimum
EBITDA covenant to address lower anticipated future period earnings, and provide other covenant relief;

•

extend the maturity date of the loans made under the DIP Credit Agreement to December 31, 2014 ("the Extension
Amendment") effective upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, including, among other things, the Company and
members of the UNC holding a majority in principal amount of the Company's Senior Secured Notes entering into a
customary plan support agreement with respect to an Acceptable Plan of Reorganization, as that term is defined in the
amended DIP Credit Agreement; and

•

provide for $60.0 million in additional term loan financing (the "Upsizing Amendment"), which will be funded
pursuant to a commitment letter executed by certain members of the UNC to provide additional term loan financing
with net cash proceeds of $60.0 million, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions including approval by the
Bankruptcy Court.
On July 28, 2014, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the Upsizing Amendment.
On July 25, 2014, Exide entered into the seventh amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which eliminated the
milestone related to filing a plan of reorganization.
The proceeds of the DIP Financing were used to repay amounts outstanding under the pre-petition ABL revolving
credit facility and letters of credit which were outstanding.
The maturity date of the loans made under the DIP Credit Agreement is the earliest to occur of: (i) December 31,
2014; (ii) the effective date of the Company's plan of reorganization; and (iii) the acceleration of such loans. The
revolving loans bear interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 3.25% and the term loan bears interest at a rate of 9.0%. The
obligations of the Borrowers under the DIP Credit Agreement are unconditionally guaranteed by certain material
foreign subsidiaries. In addition, the U.S. Borrower unconditionally guarantees the obligations of the Foreign
Borrower. Subject to certain exceptions, the obligations of the Borrowers and the guarantors under the DIP Credit
Agreement and the other loan documents are secured by first priority liens on specified assets of the Borrowers and
the foreign guarantors and 100.0% pledge of the equity interests of certain of the Borrowers' direct and indirect
subsidiaries. The DIP Credit Agreement requires the Borrowers to comply with financial covenants as defined by the
agreement relating to minimum liquidity, maximum capital expenditures, cumulative total adjusted operating cash
flow, minimum cumulative EBITDA and minimum twelve-month trailing EBITDA.
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On June 30, 2014, the Company received a non-binding POR Proposal from the UNC, whose members hold a
substantial majority of the term loan component of the DIP Credit Facility and pre-petition senior secured notes. The
POR Proposal, which is subject to completion of definitive documentation and certain other conditions, provides
approximately $485.0 million in new capital, and is currently expected to be comprised of the following:
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•
A preferred convertible equity capital commitment of approximately $300.0 million (a portion of which will be in the
form of a rights offering backstopped by certain members of the UNC and another portion in the form of a direct
investment by certain members of the UNC);
•A $185.0 million bond issuance also backstopped by certain members of the UNC; and

•An asset based loan facility for which commitments would be obtained from potential lenders in conjunction with theplan confirmation process.
Events of default under the DIP Credit Agreement include, among others, failure to pay any principal, interest or other
amount due under the applicable credit agreement, breach of specific covenants, and a change of control of the
Company. Upon an event of default, the requisite lenders may declare the outstanding obligations under the DIP
Credit Agreement to be immediately due and payable and exercise other rights and remedies provided for thereunder.
The Company's business may not generate cash flow in an amount sufficient to enable it to pay the principal of, or
interest on the Company's indebtedness, or to fund the Company's other liquidity needs, including working capital,
capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions, investments and alliances, restructuring actions, costs related to the
Chapter 11 Case, and other general corporate requirements. If the Company cannot fund its liquidity needs, it will
have to take actions such as reducing or delaying capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions, and investments and
alliances; selling additional assets; restructuring or refinancing its debt; or seeking additional equity capital. These
actions may be restricted as a result of the Company's Chapter 11 Case and the DIP Credit Agreement. Such actions
could increase the Company's debt, negatively impact customer confidence in the Company's ability to provide
products and services, reduce the Company's ability to raise additional capital, delay improvements in profitability,
and adversely affect the Company's ability to emerge from bankruptcy. There can be no assurance that any of these
remedies could, if necessary, be affected on commercially reasonable terms, if at all, or that they would permit the
Company to meet its scheduled debt service obligations. In addition, if the Company incurs additional debt, the risks
associated with its substantial leverage, including the risk that it will be unable to service the Company's debt or
generate sufficient cash flow to fund its liquidity needs, could intensify.
At March 31, 2014, the Company had outstanding letters of credit with a face value of $64.7 million and surety bonds
with a face value of $56.0 million. The majority of the letters of credit and surety bonds have been issued as collateral
or financial assurance with respect to certain liabilities that the Company has recorded, including but not limited to
environmental remediation obligations and self-insured workers’ compensation reserves. Failure of the Company to
satisfy its obligations with respect to the primary obligations secured by the letters of credit or surety bonds could
entitle the beneficiary of the related letter of credit or surety bond to demand payments pursuant to such instruments.
The letters of credit generally have terms up to one year. Collateral held by the surety in the form of letters of credit at
March 31, 2014, pursuant to the terms of the DIP Credit Agreement, was $53.8 million.
Certain of the Company’s European and Asia Pacific subsidiaries have bank guarantees outstanding as collateral or
financial assurance in connection with environmental obligations, income tax claims and customer contract
requirements. At March 31, 2014, bank guarantees issued on behalf of the Company’s European and Asia pacific
subsidiaries with an aggregate face value of $12.6 million were outstanding.
At March 31, 2014, the Company was in compliance with covenants contained in the DIP agreement.
The Senior Secured Notes (liability subject to compromise)
In January 2011, the Company issued $675.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 8 5/8% Senior Secured Notes
due February 1, 2018. The proceeds of the Senior Secured Notes were used to (i) repay outstanding borrowings under
the Company’s credit facilities existing prior to that offering; (ii) fund the tender offer and consent solicitation and
subsequent redemption by the Company of all of the then-outstanding 10.5% Senior Secured Notes due 2013 after the
completion of the tender offer; and (iii) fund ongoing working capital and other general corporate purposes.
Borrowings under the Senior Secured Notes bear interest at a rate of 8 5/8% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears in February and August, and mature on February 1, 2018.
The indenture for these Notes contains certain covenants which limit the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries’
ability to, among other things, incur debt, pay dividends, make investments, create liens or use assets as security, and
sell assets including the capital stock of subsidiaries.
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The Chapter 11 filing constituted an event of default under the Senior Secured Notes.  The creditors are, however,
stayed from taking any action as a result of the default under Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code.  
The Convertible Notes (liability subject to compromise)
In March 2005, the Company issued floating rate Convertible Notes due September 18, 2013, with an aggregate
principal amount of $60.0 million. The Convertible Notes bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the three-month
LIBOR, adjusted
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quarterly, minus a spread of 1.5%. The interest rate at March 31, 2014 and 2013 was 0.0%. Interest is payable
quarterly. The notes are convertible into the Company’s common stock at a conversion rate of 61.6143 shares per one
thousand dollars principal amount at maturity, subject to adjustments for any common stock splits, dividends on the
common stock, tender and exchange offers by the Company for the common stock and third-party tender offers, and
in the case of a change in control in which 10.0% or more of the consideration for the common stock is cash or
non-traded securities, the conversion rate increases, depending on the value offered and timing of the transaction, to as
much as 70.2247 shares per one thousand dollars principal amount. As of March 31, 2014, the aggregate principal
amount of outstanding convertible notes was $51.9 million.
The Chapter 11 filing constituted an event of default under the Convertible Notes.  The creditors are, however, stayed
from taking any action as a result of the default under Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code.
Sources and Uses of Cash
The Company’s liquidity requirements have been met historically through cash provided by operations, borrowed
funds and the proceeds of sales of accounts receivable in certain European subsidiaries. Additional cash has been
generated in the past several years through rights offerings, debt issuances, and the sale of non-core businesses and
assets.
The Company’s liquidity needs arise primarily in the funding of working capital, and obligations on indebtedness and
capital expenditures. Because of the seasonality of the Company’s business, more cash has typically been generated in
the third and fourth fiscal quarters than the first and second fiscal quarters. Greatest cash demands from operations
have historically occurred during the months of March through October, which can adversely affect the Company’s
liquidity during these periods.
Going forward, the Company’s principal sources of liquidity are expected to be cash on hand, cash from operations,
borrowings under the DIP Credit Agreement, and the sale of idled assets, principally closed facilities.
Cash flows used by operating activities was $154.6 million in fiscal 2014 compared to cash provided by operating
activities of $28.0 million in fiscal 2013, respectively. This increased usage primarily relates to Debtor Chapter 11
reorganization fees and accelerated timing of post-petition accounts payable payments generally required for
companies under Chapter 11 Bankruptcy protection. Also, accounts payable payments have been accelerated for
non-Debtor entities as well.
In addition, the Company generated $5.2 million and $19.0 million in cash from the sale of non-core assets in fiscal
2014 and fiscal 2013, respectively. The fiscal 2013 proceeds principally relate to the sale of the Company's
transportation Australasia business.
Total debt at March 31, 2014 was $308.0 million, excluding amounts included in liabilities subject to compromise, as
compared to $776.0 million at March 31, 2013. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
composition of such debt.
Cash provided by financing activities was $223.1 million and $1.5 million in fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, respectively.
The increase was primarily due to proceeds received under the DIP Credit Agreement, partially offset by DIP related
financing fees and a decrease in short-term borrowings under various local European facilities.
Cash flows used in investing activities primarily was capital expenditures of $81.8 million and $101.5 million in fiscal
2014 and fiscal 2013, respectively.
Total pension and other post-retirement employer contributions and direct benefit payments were approximately $18.3
million and $27.1 million in fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, respectively. In the U.S., the Company adopted the Moving
Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (“The MAP-21”) which essentially defers funding and eliminates additional
funding requirements for the Company’s U.S. plans through fiscal 2015. This legislation was signed into U.S. law on
July 6, 2012.
In June 2012, the Company announced an agreement to sell approximately 180 acres of undeveloped land surrounding
the Company’s Frisco, Texas recycling facility and to cease operation of and demolish the recycling facility. The buyer
has fully funded an escrow account with the $45.0 million purchase price, a portion was made available to the
Company to pay for certain demolition and remediation activities on the Company’s adjoining property. At the request
of regulators and others, the Company will allow interested parties to provide input on pre-closure remedial activities,
which may include one or more notice and comment periods. The Company is currently in discussions with regulators
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regarding the scope of remedial activities on the Company's adjoining property (i.e., the former recycling facility),
which may be funded with a portion of the sale proceeds. Consequently, the Company is uncertain of the timing and
certainty of closing, and cannot predict the amount of net proceeds to be received. Under the Company's indenture for
the Notes, proceeds received, would be required to be invested in future U.S. capital expenditures or toward the
repurchase of any Notes outstanding. Under the DIP Credit Agreement, proceeds received, are expected to be used to
repay outstanding borrowings under the ABL Facility. To the extent that net proceeds following completion of the
remedial activities do not exceed the carrying value of the assets, the Company would be required to recognize a loss
on impairment, although management currently believes that a loss will not be incurred.
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On January 10, 2014, the SCAQMD adopted an amended rule that contained new emissions and equipment
requirements with varying compliance dates, including an April 10, 2014 deadline that would require the Company to
operate the furnaces at the Vernon facility under continuous "negative pressure" ("Rule 1420.1"). In response, the
Company initiated two separate related proceedings on February 7, 2014: (i) a Petition for Variance before the
SCAQMD Hearing Board, requesting a delay of the negative pressure requirement until December 31, 2014, and (ii) a
Writ of Mandamus in Superior Court of Los Angeles County, seeking to invalidate the negative pressure requirement
of Rule 1420.1. Additionally, on February 21, 2014, the Company filed a request for a preliminary injunction that
would temporarily suspend the April 10, 2014, deadline until such time as the Superior Court could conduct a trial on
the Writ of Mandamus.
On April 7, 2014, the Los Angeles County Superior Court denied the Company's preliminary injunction. Additionally,
on April 8, 2014, the SCAQMD Hearing Board denied the Company's variance request. As a result of these two
decisions, the Company suspended operations at the Vernon facility until such time as the Company can design,
engineer, permit, install, and test new equipment needed to achieve the new standard under Rule 1420.1.
On July 10, 2014 the SCAQMD Hearing Board approved a resolution of the Company's pending administrative
matters with the SCAQMD through the issuance of the Stipulated OAs. The Stipulated OAs require the Company: (i)
to refrain from resuming operations of the Vernon facility furnaces until it installs certain air quality control
improvements required to comply with the newly-adopted Rule 1420.1 standards in accordance with SCAQMD issued
permits and applicable SCAQMD rules; and (ii) to install those improvements in accordance with an SCAQMD
approved dust mitigation plan. Concurrently, in a settlement agreement, the Company agreed to dismiss its Writ of
Mandamus legal action. The Company currently estimates the full operation of the furnaces under continuous negative
pressure will not occur until after installation of the aforesaid equipment expected to be completed in or about
December 2014 should the Company decide to proceed.
The Company will need to continue to find alternative sources of lead to ensure adequate supply of this critical raw
material component in its products.  If the Company is unable to find such sources of lead or if it procures such
sources of lead at significantly higher cost, such circumstances would result in a material adverse affect on the
Company's business, financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
Risks and uncertainties could cause the Company’s performance to materially differ from management’s estimates. As
discussed above under “Factors Which Affect the Company’s Financial Performance – Seasonality and Weather,” the
Company’s business is seasonal. During the Company’s first and second fiscal quarters, the Company builds inventory
in anticipation of increased sales in the winter months. This inventory build increases the Company’s working capital
needs. During these quarters, because working capital needs are already high, unexpected decreases in cash flows or,
unexpected increases in costs beyond predicted levels could adversely affect the Company’s near term liquidity.
Employee Benefit Plans
Accounting and Significant Assumptions
The Company accounts for pension and post-employment benefits using the accrual method. The accrual method of
accounting for pensions and post-employment benefits involves the use of actuarial assumptions concerning future
events that impact estimates of the amount and timing of benefit obligations and future benefit payments.
Significant assumptions used in calculating the Company’s pension and post-employment benefit obligations and
related expense are the discount rate, rate of compensation increase, and the expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets. The Company establishes these underlying assumptions in consultation with its actuaries. Depending on the
assumptions used, pension obligations and related expense could vary within a range of outcomes and have a material
affect on the Company’s results, benefit obligations, and cash funding requirements.
The discount rates used by the Company for determining benefit obligations are generally based on high quality
corporate bonds and reflect the expected cash flows of the respective plans. The assumed rates of compensation
increases reflect estimates of the projected change in compensation levels based on future expectations, general price
levels, productivity, and historical experience, among other factors. In evaluating the expected long-term rate of return
on plan assets, the Company considers the allocation of assets and the expected return on various asset classes in the
context of the long-term nature of pension obligations.
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At March 31, 2014, the Company had decreased the discount rates used to value its pension benefit obligations to
reflect the decrease in yields on high quality corporate bonds. The aggregate affect of these changes increased the
present value of projected benefit obligations as of March 31, 2014.
A one-percentage point increase or decrease in the weighted average expected return on plan assets for defined benefit
plans would increase or decrease net periodic benefit cost by approximately $5.2 million in fiscal 2014. A
one-percentage point increase in the weighted average discount rate would decrease net periodic benefit cost for
defined benefit plans by
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approximately $0.8 million in fiscal 2014. A one-percentage point decrease in the weighted average discount rate
would increase net periodic benefit cost for defined benefit plans by approximately $0.4 million in fiscal 2014.
Plan Funding Requirements
Cash contributions to the Company’s pension plans are generally made in accordance with minimum regulatory
requirements. The Company expects its cumulative minimum future cash contributions to its pension plans will total
approximately $104.2 million from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2019, including $22.4 million in fiscal 2015. In addition, the
Company expects that cumulative contributions to its other post-retirement benefit plans will total approximately $8.1
million from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2019, including $1.7 million in fiscal 2015.
Financial Instruments and Market Risk
From time to time, the Company has used forward contracts to hedge certain commodity price exposures, including
lead. The forward contracts are entered into for periods consistent with related underlying exposures and do not
constitute positions independent of those exposures. The Company expects that it may increase the use of financial
instruments, including fixed and variable rate debt as well as swap, forward and option contracts to finance its
operations and to hedge interest rate, currency and certain commodity purchasing related risks in the future. The swap,
forward, and option contracts would be entered into for periods consistent with related underlying exposures and
would not constitute positions independent of those exposures. The Company has not entered into, and does not intend
to enter into, contracts for speculative purposes nor be a party to any leveraged instruments. For further discussion of
the Company’s financial instruments, see Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Company’s ability to utilize financial instruments may be restricted because of tightening, and/or elimination of
unsecured credit availability with counter-parties. If the Company is unable to utilize such instruments, the Company
may be exposed to greater risk with respect to its ability to manage exposures to fluctuations in foreign currencies,
interest rates, lead prices, and other commodities.
Accounts Receivable Factoring Arrangements
In the ordinary course of business, the Company utilizes accounts receivable factoring arrangements in countries
where programs of this type are typical. Under these arrangements, the Company may sell certain of its trade accounts
receivable to financial institutions. The arrangements in virtually all cases do not contain recourse provisions against
the Company for its customers’ failure to pay. The Company sold approximately $87.5 million and $93.3 million
accounts receivable at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Changes in the level of receivables sold from year to
year are included in the change in accounts receivable within cash flow from operations in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The Company’s contractual obligations and commercial commitments at March 31, 2014 are summarized by fiscal
year in which the payments are due in the following table:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 and
beyond Total

(In thousands)
Short-term borrowings $4,058 $— $— $— $— $— $4,058
DIP Obligation 284,625 — — — — — 284,625
Other term loans 3,761 2,336 2,404 2,495 2,246 6,052 19,294
Interest on DIP Obligation 13,826 — — — — — 13,826
Interest on other term
loans 924 830 704 573 439 1,104 4,574

Operating leases 21,819 14,678 9,247 6,432 3,805 4,138 60,119
Other noncurrent
liabilities (1) 14,060 5,469 4,894 4,894 4,894 30,282 64,493

Total (2) $343,073 $23,313 $17,249 $14,394 $11,384 $41,576 $450,989

(1)Other noncurrent liabilities include amounts on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2014 (amountsthat have been discounted are reflected as such on the table above).
(2)
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Pension and other post-retirement benefit obligations are not included in the table above. The Company expects
that cumulative contributions to its pension plans will total approximately $104.2 million from fiscal 2015 to fiscal
2019, including $22.4 million in fiscal 2015. In addition, the Company expects that cumulative contributions to its
other post-retirement benefit plans will total approximately $8.1 million from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2019, including
$1.7 million in fiscal 2015. See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Liabilities subject to compromise are not included in the table above. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks
The Company is exposed to market risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, certain commodity prices
and interest rates. The Company does not enter into contracts without the intent to mitigate a particular risk, nor is it a
party to any leveraged instruments.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk related to volatility to which future earnings or asset and liability
values are exposed due to operating cash flows and various financial instruments that are denominated in foreign
currencies. More specifically, the Company is exposed to foreign currency risk in most European countries,
principally Germany, France, the United Kingdom, Spain, Italy, and Poland. It is also exposed, although to a lesser
extent, to foreign currency risk in Australia and countries in the Pacific Rim. Movements of exchange rates against the
U.S. Dollar can result in variations in the U.S. Dollar value of non-U.S. sales. In some instances, gains in one currency
may be offset by losses in another. In prior years the Company entered into foreign currency forward contracts to
mitigate the affect of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on certain transactions subject to foreign currency
risk. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Commodity Price Risk
Lead is the primary material used in the manufacture of lead-acid batteries, representing approximately 43.7% of the
Company’s cost of goods sold. The market price of lead fluctuates. Generally, when lead prices decrease, customers
may seek disproportionate price reductions from the Company, and when lead prices increase, customers may resist
price increases. The Company occasionally enters into certain lead and non-lead commodity hedging instruments to
mitigate the affect of price fluctuations in those commodities. See Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Interest Rate Risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on its short-term borrowings and a portion of its long-term debt. The
following table presents the expected outstanding debt balances and related interest rates, excluding capital lease
obligations and the DIP, under the terms of the Company’s borrowing arrangements in effect at March 31, 2014.
The Chapter 11 filing constituted an event of default on substantially all debt obligations, including the Senior
Secured Notes. The creditors are, however, stayed from taking any action as a result of the default under Section 362
of the Bankruptcy Code. The Senior Secured Notes continue to accrue interest at the applicable contract rate as
paid-in-kind interest, which is capitalized to the principal of the Senior Secured Notes on each interest payment date.
Variable components of interest rates based upon market rates at March 31, 2014. See Note 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
The following table presents the expected debt maturities of debt not subject to compromise under the terms of the
Company’s current and amended borrowing arrangements.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 and
beyond

(In thousands)
Other term loans $15,533 $13,197 $10,793 $8,298 $6,052 $3,442
Fixed interest rate 3.5 % 5.1 % 5.2 % 5.1 % 4.3 % 9.4 %
Effects of Inflation
Inflation has not had a material impact on the Company’s operations. The Company generally has been able to partially
offset the effects of inflation with cost-reduction programs, operating efficiencies, and pricing actions.
Future Environmental Developments
As a result of its multinational manufacturing, distribution and recycling operations, the Company is subject to
numerous federal, state, and local environmental, occupational safety, and health laws and regulations, and similar
laws and regulations in other countries in which the Company operates. For a discussion of the legal proceedings
relating to environmental matters, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV, Item 15 - Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s chief executive officer and
chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of senior management, including the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer, of
the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e). Based upon this evaluation, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). The Company’s internal control
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Management, together with our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, has completed its evaluation of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2014 based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on our assessment and on those criteria, we determined that, as of March
31, 2014, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.
The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2014 has been audited by
KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter
ended March 31, 2014 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Report of the Audit Committee
Purpose
The Audit Committee reviews the Company's financial reporting process on behalf of the Board. The purpose,
authority and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are specified in its charter, which most recently was revised in
fiscal 2013, and is available on our website at http://ir.exide.com/committees.cfm.
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Communications
The Audit Committee discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2014, KPMG LLP,
matters required to be discussed pursuant to Auditing Standard No. 16 (Communications with Audit Committees), as
adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), including, among other things,
management judgments and accounting estimates, as well as whether there were any significant audit adjustments, any
disagreements with management or any difficulties encountered in performing the audit. The Audit Committee also
discussed with its independent registered public accounting firm matters relating to its independence, which
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discussion included a review of the firm's audit and non-audit fees, as the fees may be modified or supplemented from
time to time. In connection with such discussions, the Audit
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Committee received and reviewed the written disclosures and letter from its independent registered public accounting
firm required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the
independent registered public accounting firm's communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence.
The Audit Committee met separately at least quarterly with its independent registered public accounting firm, without
management present. 
Internal Controls
During fiscal 2014, the Audit Committee discussed with management its assessment of the effectiveness of our
internal controls over financial reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and whether any
deficiencies existed. The Audit Committee also discussed with the Company's independent registered public
accounting firm its evaluation of management's assessment of our internal controls.
Review of Periodic Reports
The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with management and the independent registered public accounting
firm each of our quarterly and annual reports for fiscal 2014, including our audited Consolidated Financial Statements,
which review included a discussion regarding accounting principles, practices and judgments.
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
Based on its review of the audited Consolidated Financial Statements, as well as its discussions with management and
the independent registered public accounting firm, including those discussions mentioned above related to
independent registered public accounting firm communications, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board and
the Board approved the inclusion of our audited Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for fiscal 2014 for filing with the SEC.
Members of the Audit Committee*
Michael P. Ressner, Chairman
Herbert F. Aspbury
Michael R. D'Appolonia
David S. Ferguson
John O'Higgins
*Mr. D'Appolonia served on the Audit Committee until June 29, 2013. Mr. Ressner was appointed to the Audit
Committee, and designated Audit Committee Chairman on June 29, 2013.

Item 9B. Other Information
None
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance
The name, age at May 31, 2014, and position of each of our executive officers and directors are presented below.
Name Age Position
Robert M. Caruso 51 President and Chief Executive Officer
Edgar W. Mosley, Jr. 37 Chief Restructuring Officer

Bruce Cole 51 Executive Vice President and President Industrial and Recycling Americas and
Asia Pacific, EVP Strategy and Business Development

Phillip A. Damaska 59 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Barbara A. Hatcher 59 Executive Vice President and General Counsel
Louis E. Martinez 48 Vice President, Corporate Controller, and Chief Accounting Officer
Michael Ostermann 48 Executive Vice President and President, Exide Europe
Herbert F. Aspbury 69 Director
Michael R. D'Appolonia 65 Director
David S. Ferguson 69 Director
John O'Higgins 50 Director
John P. Reilly 70 Director
Michael P. Ressner 65 Director
Carroll R. Wetzel, Jr. 70 Director
Officers
Robert M. Caruso is the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Caruso is a Managing Director with
Alvarez & Marsal ("A&M"). Pursuant to an agreement with the Company, A&M provided restructuring advisory
services relating to our Chapter 11 proceedings. Our agreement with A&M includes fees for Mr. Caruso's services.
The rate charged for Mr. Caruso's services was $825 per hour for the period May 1, 2013 through June 9, 2013, and
$130,000 per month thereafter. Since Mr. Caruso is not an employee of the Company, he does not participate in any of
the compensation programs or employee benefits arrangements discussed herein.
Edgar W. Mosley, Jr. is the Company’s Chief Restructuring Officer. Mr. Mosley is a Senior Director with A&M. Our
agreement with A&M includes fees for Mr. Mosley's services. The rate charged for Mr. Mosley's services was was
$625 per hour for the period May 1, 2013 through July 31, 2013 and $120,000 per month thereafter. Since Mr. Mosley
is not an employee of the Company, he does not participate in any of the compensation programs or employee benefits
arrangements discussed herein.
Bruce Cole is the Company's Executive Vice President and President, Industrial and Recycling Americas and Asia
Pacific, and EVP Strategy and Business Development. Mr. Cole joined the Company in September 2000 in connection
with the Company's acquisition of GNB. Mr. Cole joined GNB in 1989. Mr. Cole served as President, Transportation
Americas from August 2007 to April 2011, President, Exide Americas from April 2011 to November 2011 and prior
to that was Vice President and General Manager, North American Recycling. Mr. Cole has also served in a variety of
roles at the Company including Vice President, Manufacturing & Engineering for Industrial Energy Americas and
Vice President, Global Marketing, Industrial Energy.
Phillip A. Damaska is the Company's Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Damaska joined the
Company in January 2005 as Vice President, Finance, was appointed Vice President and Corporate Controller in
September 2005, was named Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller in March 2006, and was named
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer effective April 1, 2008. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Damaska served in numerous capacities with Freudenberg-NOK from 1996 through 2004, most recently as
President of Corteco, an automotive and industrial seal supplier that is part of the partnership's global group of
companies.
Barbara A. Hatcher is the Company's Executive Vice President and General Counsel. Ms. Hatcher joined the
Company in September 2000 in connection with the Company's acquisition of GNB. Ms. Hatcher has been Executive
Vice President and General Counsel since May 2006, after having served as Deputy General Counsel from April 2004
through April 2006. Ms. Hatcher previously served as GNB's Vice President & General Counsel.
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Louis E. Martinez is the Company's Vice President, Corporate Controller, and Chief Accounting Officer.
Mr. Martinez was appointed to this position in March 2008. Previously, Mr. Martinez served as the Company's
Assistant Corporate Controller since joining the Company in May 2005. Mr. Martinez served as Corporate Controller
for Airgate PCS, Inc., from March 2003 through May 2005. Mr. Martinez has also served as Corporate Controller for
Cotelligent, Inc., from March 2000 through February 2003 and as Director of Finance & Corporate Controller for
Aegis Communications Group from 1996 through February 2000.
Michael Ostermann is the Company's Executive Vice President and President, Exide Europe. Mr. Ostermann joined
Exide in January 2009 as President, Transportation Europe and was named President, Exide Europe in March 2010.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ostermann served in a variety of automotive industry and operational roles
including his most recent position as Management Board Member and Managing Director for Frauenthal Holding AG,
a European manufacturer of industrial ceramic products. Mr. Ostermann was responsible for establishing that
company's Automotive Division.
Directors
Herbert F. Aspbury has been a member of the Company's Board since August 2006. Mr. Aspbury is the former
Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Villanova University, a position he held from 2008 until his retirement in
December 2010. Mr. Aspbury previously served as the chair of the University's Audit and Finance Committee. He has
also served as an Adjunct Professor of the Fisher Graduate School of International Business of the Monterey Institute
of International Studies, and has lectured at Cornell University's joint MBA program with Queens University, Ontario.
Mr. Aspbury retired from Chase Manhattan Bank in 2000 where he served in a number of capacities, most recently as
the London-based Regional Executive for Europe, Africa and the Middle East. Mr. Aspbury was a member of Chase's
Management Committee, and also sat on the Management Committees of Chase's predecessor banks, Manufacturers
Hanover Trust Company and Chemical Bank. His overall banking career spanned 34 years, and was focused on
corporate and investment banking. Mr. Aspbury is also a past director of the Royal Oak Foundation, the U.S. arm of
Britain's National Trust, and served as its Chairman from 2004 through 2007. In April 2011, he joined the board of the
Turks & Caicos Banking Company, a private bank which manages money for residents of the islands. Mr. Aspbury is
a member of the Audit Committee, an audit committee financial expert under SEC rules and a member of the Finance
and Restructuring Committee.
Michael R. D'Appolonia has been a member of the Company's Board since May 2004. Mr. D'Appolonia served as the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Kinetic Systems, Inc., a global provider of process and mechanical solutions
to the electronics, solar and biopharmaceutical industries from 2006 until his retirement in September 2010. From
2001 through 2005, Mr. D'Appolonia was President of Nightingale & Associates, LLC, a global management
consulting firm providing financial and operational restructuring services to both publicly and privately held
middle-market companies. In his consulting capacity, Mr. D'Appolonia served as an executive officer of a number of
companies including Cone Mills Corporation, Moll Industries, Inc., McCulloch Corporation, Ametech, Inc., Halston
Borghese, Inc. and Simmons Upholstered Furniture Inc. Mr. D'Appolonia's recent public company board of directors
experience includes Westmoreland Coal Company (2008 - 2013) and The Washington Group (2001-2007). In addition
to his experience with public companies, Mr. D'Appolonia previously served as a member of the board of directors of
private companies including Kinetic Systems, Inc., and Reorganized Cone Mills Corporation. Mr. D'Appolonia is
Chairman of the Finance and Restructuring Committee and a member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee.
David S. Ferguson has been a member of the Company's Board since August 2005. Mr. Ferguson is the principal of
DS Ferguson Enterprises, LLC, a retail consulting business. From September 2000 through July 2003, Mr. Ferguson
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Walmart Europe. Prior to that, he was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Walmart Canada from February 1996 to September 2000. Mr. Ferguson was President and Chief
Operating Officer as well as a director of Stuarts Department Stores from August 1994 through October 1995. Mr.
Ferguson is a member of the board of directors of the Empire Company Limited, the parent company of Sobeys Inc., a
Canadian grocery chain, a member of the Advisory Board of Emerge Scholarships, Inc., a 501(c)(3) non-profit
organization that provides scholarships to women whose educations have been interrupted. Mr. Ferguson previously
served on the Dean's Advisory Board of the Business School at Morehouse College, the Board of Advisors for Miller
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Zell, Inc., and Vice-Chairman of the board of directors of NSB Retail Systems Plc. Mr. Ferguson is the Chairman of
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.
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John O'Higgins has been a member of the Company's Board since September 2010. Mr. O'Higgins is the Chief
Executive of Spectris plc, a UK-headquartered company that provides analytical measurement and industrial controls
for a variety of industries, and has served in that capacity since 2006. Mr. O'Higgins previously worked at Honeywell
International, Inc. from 1991 to 2005, most recently as President of Asia Pacific from 2002 to 2005. Mr. O'Higgins
began his career as a development engineer for Daimler Benz. Mr. O'Higgins is a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.
John P. Reilly has been a member of the Company's Board since May 2004. Mr. Reilly is the retired Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer of Figgie International. Mr. Reilly has more than thirty years of experience in
the automotive industry, where he has served as President and CEO of a number of automotive suppliers, including
Stant Corporation and Tenneco Automotive. He has also held leadership positions at the former Chrysler Corporation
and Navistar, and has served as President of Brunswick Corporation. Mr. Reilly's recent public company board of
directors experience includes Material Sciences Corporation (2008 - 2014) and Timken Company (2006 - present). In
addition to his experience with public companies, Mr. Reilly also serves as a member of the Board of Directors of
Marshfield Door Systems, Inc. Mr. Reilly serves as Chairman of the Board and a member of the Organization and
Compensation Committee.
Michael P. Ressner has been a member of the Company's Board since May 2004. Mr. Ressner is a retired Nortel
Networks executive who, between 1981 and 2003, served in a number of senior financial and operational management
positions. Mr. Ressner was an Adjunct Professor of Applied Financial Management at North Carolina State University
between 2002 and 2004. He has been an adviser within the College of Management at North Carolina State University
since 2004. Mr. Ressner's recent public company board of directors experience includes Magellan Health Services,
Inc. (2003 - present), Tekelec, Inc. (2006-2011), Entrust, Inc. (1999-2009), Riverstone Networks, Inc. (2003-2006)
and Proxim Corporation (2003-2005). In addition to his experience with public companies, Mr. Ressner previously
served on the board of Arsenal Digital Solutions. Mr. Ressner is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, an audit
committee financial expert under SEC rules, and a member of the Organization and Compensation Committee.
Carroll R. Wetzel, Jr. has been a member of the Company's Board since August 2006. Mr. Wetzel served as
non-executive Chairman of the Board of Directors of Safety Components International, Inc., a supplier of automotive
airbag fabric and cushions and technical fabrics from 2000 to 2005. From 1988 to 1996, Mr. Wetzel served as co-head
of the Merger and Acquisition Group at the Chase Manhattan Bank and previously as the head of the Mergers and
Acquisitions Group at Chemical Bank. Prior to 1988, Mr. Wetzel served as a corporate finance officer at Smith
Barney and at Dillon Read & Co., Inc. Mr. Wetzel's recent public company board of director experience includes PHH
Corporation (2010-present), Brinks Home Security (2008-2010), Laidlaw International, Inc. (2003-2007), and Vice
Chairman and lead director at Arch Wireless, Inc. (2002-2003). Mr. Wetzel also previously served as a director of
Brinks Company. Mr. Wetzel is Chairman of the Organization and Compensation Committee and a member of the
Finance and Restructuring Committee.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, executive officers, and persons who own more than 10.0%
of our common stock to file with the SEC reports regarding their ownership and changes in ownership. Based upon a
review of filings with the SEC and written representations that no other reports were required, we believe that all of
our directors, executive officers, and 10.0% stockholders complied during fiscal 2014 with the reporting requirements
of Section 16(a), with the exception of the following: Michael Ostermann filed two Form 4s reflecting the surrender of
shares to address tax obligations for grants of restricted stock units under the 2009 Stock Incentive Plan that vested on
March 27, 2014 and March 29, 2014, respectively. The forms were filed on April 25, 2013, twenty-five days late and
twenty-seven days late, respectively.
Director Independence
Our Corporate Governance Guidelines require that at least a majority of Board members qualify as independent under
the applicable listing standards of the NASDAQ Rules and Rule 10A-3(b)(1) under the Exchange Act. Each year, the
Board reviews information provided by the directors and any other relevant information and, based on this
information, makes an affirmative determination as to each director's independence. After considering the NASDAQ
Rules and Rule 10A-3(b)(1) under the Exchange Act, the Board determined that the following directors are
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independent: Messrs. Reilly, Aspbury, D'Appolonia, Ferguson, O'Higgins, Ressner, and Wetzel. James R. Bolch, who
served as a director until his resignation, effective July 31, 2013, due to his employment with the Company, was not
considered an independent director.
The Board has determined that all of the members of the Audit Committee, Organization and Compensation
Committee, Finance and Restructuring Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are
independent within the meaning of SEC regulations, the NASDAQ Rules and our Corporate Governance Guidelines.
The Board has determined that Messrs. Aspbury and Ressner are qualified as audit committee financial experts within
the meaning of SEC rules, and have financial sophistication within the meaning of the NASDAQ Rules.
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The Company has entered into indemnification agreements with each of its directors and executive officers that
provide for defense and indemnification against any judgment or costs assessed against them in the course of their
service to us, as well as for the advancement of expenses and contribution in the event of joint liability. It is uncertain
whether these indemnification agreements will be assumed or rejected while the Company is subject to Chapter 11 of
the Bankruptcy Code, The Company has included a description of these agreements to present a complete
understanding of the independence of its Board.
In particular, the indemnification agreements provide contractual indemnification for the indemnitee that is meant to
supplement the indemnification provided by our organizational documents. The indemnification agreements provide
that the Company will indemnify and hold harmless each indemnitee, to the fullest extent permitted by law, against
any and all expenses and losses, and any local or foreign stamp duties or taxes imposed as a result of the actual or
deemed receipt of any payments under the indemnity agreement, that are paid or incurred by the indemnitee in
connection with such proceeding. The Company will indemnify and hold harmless any indemnitee for all expenses
paid or incurred by indemnitee in connection with each successfully resolved claim, issue or matter. The
indemnification agreements further provide that the Company will not provide indemnification for any proceeding
initiated or brought voluntarily by the indemnitee against the Company or its directors, officers or employees, or for
any accounting of profits made from the purchase and sale by the indemnitee of the Company's securities.
The indemnification agreements also provide that the Company will advance, to the indemnitee, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, any and all expenses paid or incurred by indemnitee in connection with any proceeding (whether
prior to or after its final disposition), provided that the indemnitee is otherwise entitled to indemnification under the
indemnification agreement.
The agreements do not permit indemnification for acts or omissions for which indemnification is not permitted under
Delaware law.
Audit Committee Financial Expert
We have a standing audit committee, or the Audit Committee, in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the
Exchange Act. The Audit Committee is comprised of Messrs. Ressner (Chairman), Aspbury, Ferguson, and
O'Higgins. The Board of Directors has determined that Messrs. Ressner, Aspbury, Ferguson, and O'Higgins are
“independent” as defined by the requirements of NASDAQ Listing Rules and that Messrs. Aspbury and Ressner qualify
as “audit committee financial experts” as defined under Item 407(d)(5)(ii) of Regulation S-K.
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
During fiscal 2014, Messrs. Reilly, Ressner, and Wetzel each served as a member of the Organization and
Compensation Committee (Mr. Pileggi served until his resignation from the Board effective May 29, 2013), none of
whom:
•is one of our current or former executive officers;

•
except for Mr. Pileggi, is or was a participant in a related person transaction in fiscal 2013 (for a description of this
related person transaction or our policy on related person transactions, see “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions”); and
•is an executive officer of another entity of which one of our executive officers serves on the board of directors.
There were no interlocking relationships between any of the Organization and Compensation Committee's members
and the Company's executive officers during fiscal 2014.
Code of Ethics
We are committed to maintaining the highest standards of business conduct and corporate governance, which we
believe are essential to running our business efficiently, serving our stockholders well and maintaining our integrity in
the marketplace. We maintain a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for directors, officers (including the principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar
functions) and all of our employees (the “Code of Ethics”). We also maintain Corporate Governance Guidelines, which,
in conjunction with our Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and committee charters, form the framework for our
governance. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines and Code of Ethics are available on the Investor Relations page of
our website http://www.exide.com. We will post on this website any amendments to the Code of Ethics or waivers of
the Code of Ethics for directors and executive officers and will disclose waivers of the Code of Ethics in a Current
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Report on Form 8-K. Stockholders may request free printed copies of the Code of Ethics from: Exide Technologies,
13000 Deerfield Parkway, Building 200, Milton, Georgia 30004, Attn: Corporate Secretary.
We make available free of charge on our Internet web site at http://www.exide.com, and in print to any shareholder
who requests, our Code of Conduct, Corporate Governance Guidelines, Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee Charter, Audit Committee Charter, Finance and Restructuring Committee Charter, and Organization and
Compensation Committee Charter. Requests for copies may be directed to the Investor Relations Department at our
corporate headquarters.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Introduction
The Compensation Discussion and Analysis provides information regarding the compensation paid to our President
and Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and certain other executive officers who were the most highly
compensated in fiscal 2014. These individuals, referred to collectively as “named executive officers” or “NEOs”, are
identified below:

•Robert M. Caruso - President and Chief Executive Officer
•Phillip A. Damaska - Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
•Barbara A. Hatcher - Executive Vice President and General Counsel
•Edgar W. Mosley, Jr. - Chief Restructuring Officer
•Michael Ostermann - Executive Vice President and President, Exide Europe
Additionally, the Company is providing disclosure for James R. Bolch, the Company’s former President and Chief
Executive Officer who resigned effective July 31, 2013.
Executive Summary
This Compensation Discussion and Analysis summarizes the Company's executive compensation programs and the
decisions on compensation for our NEOs for fiscal 2014. On June 10, 2013, the Company filed a voluntary petition
for relief under the Bankruptcy Code. As a result, the continued performance of the Company's obligations under all
executive compensation plans and any agreements with our NEOs are subject to review under the Chapter 11 Case.
Key decisions and practices relating to compensation in fiscal 2014 were:

•Our NEOs did not receive any merit increases in their compensation for fiscal 2014;
•Our NEOs did not receive any payout under the fiscal 2012 Performance Share or Performance Cash Awards;
•Our NEOs did not receive any equity grants in fiscal 2014;
•Our NEOs did not receive the Company’s matching and safe harbor contributions to the 401(k) plan in fiscal 2014;

•Based on the Company's performance in fiscal 2014, our NEOs will receive payments under the fiscal 2014 AnnualIncentive Plan (the "2014 AIP") on or about August 15, 2014, in the amounts described below, and
•A Key Employee Incentive Plan ("KEIP" ) was approved.
During the Chapter 11 reorganization, our primary goals were to motivate current executives to lead us through our
Chapter 11 reorganization and deliver superior performance, as well as attract and motivate highly qualified
executives. Prior to our Chapter 11 reorganization filing, we designed our compensation programs to reward our
named executive officers for the achievement of short-term and long-term strategic and operational goals and the
achievement of increased total shareholder return, while at the same time discouraging unnecessary or excessive
risk-taking. Our named executive officers' total compensation is comprised of a mix of base salary, short-term cash
incentives and long-term incentives (which historically included a combination of time-vested restricted stock and
performance-based cash awards).
As noted in this Executive Summary and elsewhere in the CD&A, the Organization and Compensation Committee
believes that the executive compensation programs appropriately align executive compensation with the Company's
performance. In fiscal 2014, the Company achieved certain pre-established financial targets under the 2014 AIP and
named executive officers employed by the Company will receive payments under the 2014 AIP on or about August
15, 2014. However, performance for the three-year cycle ending in fiscal 2014 under the Company's long-term
incentive plan (“LTIP”) failed to meet threshold performance and no awards were earned under the fiscal 2012
performance share or performance cash awards. Consequently, total executive cash compensation was below the
median pay for executives within our peer group. Our peer group companies are described under Benchmarking
section of this CD&A.
The following table presents key financial performance indicators for the past three fiscal years. The Company
believes that these measures are useful to investors and management in evaluating and comparing the Company's
performance for different periods. Operating Income, Consolidated Free Cash Flow and earnings per share (“GAAP
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EPS”) were metrics upon which fiscal 2012 and 2013 short-term incentive pay for named executive officers was based.
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, Interest and Restructuring (“EBITDA”) and Consolidated Free Cash
Flow were metrics upon which fiscal 2014 short term incentive pay for named executive officers was based.
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Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2014
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (“GAAP EPS”) $0.69 $(2.89 ) $(2.80 )
Consolidated Operating (Loss) Income 78.9 (53.4 ) (9.0 )
Consolidated Free Cash Flow(1) (17.4 ) (51.3 ) (43.9 )
Consolidated EBITDA(2) 179.3 103.9 127.4

(1)Cash from operating activities less cash from investing activities. For fiscal 2014, the definition was amended toexclude fees and expenses for all bankruptcy-related professionals.

(2)

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and restructuring, and excludes the impact of one-time
events, such as non-operating gains and losses, asset impairments, up to $5.0 million of fiscal 2014 environmental
remediation charges and reorganization-related expenses. Fiscal 2014 also excludes the costs of various incentive
plans approved by the Bankruptcy Court (“Consolidated EBITDA”).

Our financial results are described in more detail in Part II, Item 7.
Compensation Decisions for 2014
The Compensation Committee believes that the following compensation decisions made in fiscal 2014 were
appropriate in light of the Company's consolidated results and Chapter 11 status:

•Base salary:  The base salaries of our named executive officers were unchanged.

•

Short-term cash incentive:  Following the Chapter 11 filing, the Board approved a revised fiscal 2014 Annual
Incentive Plan that defined Consolidated and Regional EBITDA and Consolidated and Regional Free Cash Flow as
the key metrics for our named executive officers' fiscal 2014 short-term cash incentive awards. The Committee
determined that these metrics provide for a balanced approach to measuring annual Company performance in light of
certain financial maintenance covenants in its Debtor-in-Possession (“DIP”) financing agreement. Based on the
Company’s performance, awards were earned under the 2014 AIP for achievement pursuant to the Corporate and
Region EBITDA metric and European Regional cash flow metric.

•

Long-term incentive:  Long-term incentive compensation traditionally made up the largest portion of the
compensation for each of our named executive officers and was comprised of both stock and cash-based awards, the
latter of which is earned as a result of the Company's financial performance and has value that is closely linked to the
Company's total shareholder return. As a result of three-year stock performance and cumulative Adjusted EBITDA (as
described under the caption “Elements of Compensation - Long-Term Equity and Other Incentive Compensation”) for
the period, no payment was earned for the fiscal 2012 performance stock or performance cash awards.

•

Key Employee Incentive Plan (“KEIP”): In light of the Company’s inability to provide long-term equity incentive grants
during the Chapter 11 Case, the Company believes it is important to encourage management to position the Company
to timely emerge from Chapter 11 as quickly as possible. The Bankruptcy Court approved the KEIP, an incentive
program to maximize financial performance and successfully execute an emergence from Chapter 11.
Compensation Practices and Corporate Governance
The Company believes its compensation programs must support sound corporate governance. Therefore, we adhere to
the following practices:

•The Committee considers external and internal pay equity when making compensation determinations.

•
The Committee uses tally sheets that provide information as to all compensation that is potentially available to our
named executive officers, as well as the amount of wealth that our named executive officers have accumulated under
our compensation programs.
•Perquisites are a minimal part of our compensation program.
•We do not provide substantial post-retirement benefits.

•
Our strong risk management program, which includes the Committee's significant oversight of the ongoing evaluation
of the relationship between our compensation programs and risk, is designed to prevent our incentive compensation
plans from incentivizing or rewarding inappropriate risk taking.
•
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The Company maintains a policy permitting the Company to recoup any incentive compensation paid to a named
executive officer for the preceding three fiscal years that was based on Consolidated Financial Statements that require
a restatement due to any act, intentional or otherwise.

•The Company prohibits Company personnel, including the named executive officers, from engaging in hedgingactivities, as well as any short-term, speculative securities transactions, including purchasing securities on margin,
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engaging in short sales, buying or selling put or call options, and trading in options (other than those granted by the
Company) of the Company's securities.

•The Committee engages an independent compensation consultant to advise it in regard to executive compensation andrelated governance issues.
The Committee believes that the compensation program and performance goals described herein provide appropriate
incentives for the named executive officers to drive improvements in our financial performance and increase
stockholder value. The Company did not conduct an annual meeting of its shareholders. Consequently, no advisory
vote on fiscal 2014 was submitted to the shareholders.
Compensation Committee Activities
The Committee's responsibilities have historically included reviewing and approving the goals and objectives relevant
to the compensation of our CEO and, based on the evaluation of the CEO's performance against these goals and
objectives, recommending the CEO's compensation to the Board. Since our current CEO is an employee of A&M, his
compensation is not set by the Committee or Board, but the fees for which the Company is charged for his services
were negotiated between the Board and A&M. With the exception of the Company’s Chief Restructuring Officer, who
is also an A&M employee, the Committee is also responsible for reviewing and approving the compensation for all
other named executive officers and certain other key employees, overseeing the administration of our compensation
and benefits plans, including both our short-term cash incentive and long-term equity incentive compensation plans,
and making recommendations to the Board regarding director compensation.
The Committee's responsibilities are enumerated in full detail in the Committee's charter, which is reviewed annually.
The charter, originally adopted on May 12, 2004, was most recently amended on March 27, 2013. A copy of the
charter can be found under the Investor Relations page of our website: http://ir.exide.com/committees.cfm.
Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions
Annually, the CEO, historically in consultation with the Executive Vice President - Human Resources and
Communications (“EVP-HR”), recommends to the Committee any adjustments to compensation for named executive
officers based on the CEO's assessment of each named executive officer and market data for similarly positioned
executives. Materials supporting any named executive officer compensation recommendations, including, among
other data, division and the corporate-level results, market survey data, peer group analysis and salary history for
named executive officers are provided to the Committee for its review and consideration in consultation with the
Committee's independent compensation consultant, Pearl Meyer & Partners (“PM&P”). The CEO attends the
Committee's meetings to present management's recommendations. The Committee reviews with the CEO and
(historically) the EVP-HR, any such recommendations, and based on these reviews and the information provided,
approves or alters the proposed compensation. Historically, the CEO has not been present when the Committee
reviews the CEO's compensation and the EVP-HR does not make recommendations regarding adjustments to her
compensation and is not present when the Committee reviews her compensation. All final decisions regarding
compensation for the CEO and compensation for named executive officers other than the CEO are ultimately made by
the Board and the Committee, respectively. As noted herein, Messrs. Caruso and Mosley are employees of Alvarez &
Marsal. Negotiation of the monthly fees for their services were negotiated by the Board of Directors upon their
appointments to the positions of President & CEO and Chief Restructuring Officer, respectively.
Independent Compensation Consultants
The Committee engages an independent compensation consultant to provide advice and data regarding prevailing
market conditions, as well as to review and make recommendations to the Committee regarding the companies
included in the Company's peer group. In addition, the Committee engages its independent compensation consultant to
review director compensation and recommend adjustments. In February 2011, the Committee retained PM&P as its
independent compensation consultant for fiscal 2012. The Committee most recently reviewed the Company's
relationship with PM&P and PM&P's retention by management to provide executive compensation advice during
fiscal 2014, and concluded that PM&P is independent in providing advice and recommendations to the Committee.
The fees for the independent consultant are paid directly by the Company pursuant to the Committee's charter. The
Committee annually reviews the performance and retention of its independent compensation consultant and intends to
continue its retention of PM&P through fiscal 2015. The independent consultant reports directly to the Committee and
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acts at the Committee's request.
Upon request of the Committee, the independent consultant provides peer group and market survey compensation data
and related metrics. The independent consultant periodically coordinates with the Human Resources Department
regarding compensation packages for proposed new named executive officers and other senior personnel, as well as
providing metrics for evaluating and scaling long-term equity incentive compensation for named executive officers.
The independent consultant also provides the Committee with recommendations concerning market survey data for
any non-U.S. named executive officers.
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In addition to the Committee’s consultant, the Company engaged Mercer to assist with the design of certain
compensatory plans submitted to the Bankruptcy Court for approval. Fees paid to Mercer for these fiscal 2014
services totaled $190,184.
Philosophy Regarding Executive Compensation
The Committee is responsible for designing a compensation program that attracts, motivates and retains a strong
leadership team, and that rewards named executive officers based upon achievement of the Company's short-term and
long-term strategic and operational goals and the achievement of increased shareholder return, while at the same time
not incentivizing or rewarding inappropriate risk-taking. The Committee’s primary goal in fiscal 2014 was to attract
and motivate highly qualified executives focused on successfully steering the Company to a planned exit from
Chapter 11 restructuring and delivering successful financial performance. Specific objectives of our compensation
program include the following:
•Recruit, retain, and motivate executive officers;

•Provide total compensation that is significantly weighted toward the achievement of performance-based objectives;and
•Align performance goals with greater stockholder value.
The Committee believes that it has designed a compensation program for the named executive officers that provides
considerably greater compensation if the Company achieves superior financial performance. A core strategy of the
executive compensation program is to link each named executive officer's compensation to the Company's overall
performance, the performance of the named executive officer's regional business and/or functional responsibilities, as
applicable, and the named executive officer's individual performance. The elements of named executive officer
compensation are based, in part, on the Company's performance objectives, as well as external competitive market
analysis that use a variety of sources, including the compensation market survey data compiled by the Committee's
independent compensation consultant.
Historically, the Committee believes that performance-based compensation, principally in the form of long-term
incentive compensation, and short-term annual cash incentive compensation, should represent approximately
two-thirds of a named executive officer's total compensation. The Committee believes that performance-based
compensation encourages superior performance, serves to retain key employees and better aligns executive
compensation with the interests of the Company's stockholders. With the implementation of the KEIP, the Committee
believes that the majority of named executive officer compensation remains tied to financial performance goals.
 As a result of the Committee Company’s Chapter 11 Case, and the inability to provide traditional long-term equity
compensation, named executive officer compensation in fiscal 2014 fell below the 50th percentile of its peer
companies. However, the Committee may set any individual component of total compensation, above or below the
50th percentile based on performance, years of experience, current compensation, scope of responsibility when
compared to similar positions, the Committee's ability to target appropriate future base salaries, and any other factors
that the Committee deems appropriate.
The Committee generally does not believe perquisites should represent a significant portion of named executive
officer compensation. Named executive officers receive benefits aligned with benefits received by other employees
under company-sponsored plans. Limited perquisites are selectively utilized to support the named executive officers'
business needs and are not intended to be competitive with others in our peer group.
Benchmarking
The Committee's independent compensation consultant provides compensation data for named executive officers
using general market survey data, as well as peer group data.
Market Survey Data
The Company's market survey data consists of several sources. Specifically, the Company uses Top Management
Compensation Calculator by Towers Watson Data Services, our peer group data discussed below, and proprietary
market survey data provided by PM&P to benchmark base salary and total cash compensation for our named
executive officers. The Towers Watson market survey data is comprised of data from more than 1,500 organizations
representing a variety of industries, sizes of companies and geographic areas. The Company utilizes survey data for
the position or positions that most closely matches the job description of each named executive officer or executive

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

97



officer position, and for the companies that are most closely aligned with characteristics of the Company, including
comparable industry, comparable size (revenue and employees), geography and other measures of comparison as
appropriate and available.
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Peer Group Data
The criteria for the selection of the peer group include industry, size (based on revenue, market capitalization, total
assets and number of employees), business models, type of operations and complexities. During fiscal 2014, the
Committee evaluated the Company's peer group and, given its status as a Chapter 11 debtor, did not make any
adjustments to its peer group. The companies comprising the peer group for fiscal 2014 are listed below:
American Axle & Manufacturing Holdings, Inc. (NYSE:AXL) Hubbel Incorporated (NYSE:HUB)
AMETEK Inc. (NYSE:AME) Meritor, Inc. (NYSE:MTOR)
Amphenol Corporation (NYSE:APH) Modine Manufacturing Co. (NYSE: MOD)
Borg Warner Inc. (NYSE:BWA) Molex Incorporated (NASDAQ:MOLX)
Brunswick Corporation (NYSE:BC) Regal Beloit Corporation (NYSE: RBC)
Cooper Tire & Rubber Co. (NYSE:CTB) Tenneco Inc. (NYSE:TEN)
Crane Company (NYSE: CR) The Timken Company (NYSE:TKR)
Dana Holding Corporation (NYSE:DAN) Tower International, Inc. (NASDAQ:TOWR)
Energizer Holdings, Inc. (NYSE:ENR) Woodward, Inc. (NASDAQ: WWD)
EnerSys (NYSE:ENS)
In addition to its role in generating market survey data, the Committee uses peer company data to evaluate the
appropriateness of the components of our compensation program, including the following: director compensation; the
allocation of various forms of long-term compensation awards; and the type of financial metrics used for short-term
cash incentive awards and long-term equity compensation awards. The Committee uses this peer group data so that
the components of compensation programs are competitive with those of our peer group, will encourage superior
performance and attract and retain qualified employees. Using the criteria discussed above, the Committee routinely
reviews and evaluates, with assistance from its independent compensation consultant, the appropriateness of the
companies comprising the peer group.
Elements of Compensation
As noted elsewhere herein, payments under a number of our executive compensation programs are affected by the
Chapter 11 Case and cannot be made without the Bankruptcy Court’s approval. Total annual compensation is
comprised of the following:
•base salary;
•short-term cash incentive compensation;
•long-term cash incentive compensation; and
•personal benefits and perquisites.
Each of these elements is further explained below.
Base Salary
The Committee adheres to the principle that base salary should represent a key component of a named executive
officer's total compensation. In order to hire and retain highly qualified candidates, the Committee generally sets base
salaries for named executive officers at the prevailing median base salary of similarly situated executives based on
market survey data, which typically results in base salary near the 50th percentile based on market survey data.
Executives assigned to foreign countries typically incur a change in their overall tax liability because most of the
components of assignment compensation that are provided in addition to base salary are taxable in the home country
and in the country in which they perform a substantial portion of their work. In an effort to take advantage of
favorable tax treatments legally available to Mr. Ostermann, a significant portion of his base salary is allocated to
certain expatriate payments. For additional detail regarding Mr. Ostermann's compensation, please see Item 11 -
Summary Compensation Table.
The Committee establishes, and periodically modifies each named executive officer's base salary through an
evaluation of several factors, including individual performance, current market conditions, years of experience,
industry specific experience, national and local salaries for comparable positions (internally and externally), level of
responsibility and the recommendations of the CEO and, historically, the EVP-HR. Each year, the Committee, based,
in part, on the review of information obtained from its independent compensation consultant and the CEO's and,
historically, the EVP-HR's recommendations, reviews and modifies, as it deems appropriate, the base salaries for the
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Company's named executive officers other than the CEO. The Committee did not approve merit increases for fiscal
2014 for any other named executive officers.
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Short-Term Cash Incentive Compensation
The Committee currently targets short-term cash incentive compensation payouts at 50-60% of a named executive
officer's base salary, which is at or near the 50th percentile based on market survey data. The Committee believes that
any payout above the 50th percentile of market survey data should reflect exceptional performance.
2014 Annual Incentive Plan (the "2014 AIP")
On March 27, 2013, the Committee approved fiscal 2014 performance measures for awards under the amended and
restated annual incentive plan. However, following the Company’s Chapter 11 filing, the Committee and Board
adopted the 2014 AIP and no awards were made under the pre-petition amended and restated annual incentive plan.
The 2014 AIP was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on August 15, 2013. Consistent with the prior year's AIP plan,
awards to non-regional named executive officers were based on the following performance measures:

•

Consolidated corporate EBITDA ("Consolidated EBITDA"), is defined as earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization and restructuring, and excludes the impact of one-time events, such as non-operating gains
and losses, asset impairments, up to $5.0 million of environmental remediation charges and reorganization-related
expenses. Corporate EBITDA also excludes the costs of various incentive plans approved by the Bankruptcy Court;
and

•
Consolidated corporate free cash flow (“Consolidated FCF”) defined as cash from operating activities as determined
from the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows in the audited Consolidated Financial Statements, excluding fees and
expenses for all bankruptcy-related professionals.
In addition to these measures, fiscal 2014 AIP awards to the named executive officer who oversee the Company's
regional operations in Europe (Mr. Ostermann) included the applicable region's EBITDA (“Regional EBITDA”) and the
region's free cash flow ("Regional FCF”). Regional AIP participants have 20.0% of their incentive awards determined
based on Consolidated EBITDA and 80.0% on Regional EBITDA and Regional FCF. Threshold, target and maximum
goals for the various metrics were established by the Committee based on the fiscal 2014 operating plan goals
consistent with the DIP Credit Agreement covenants approved by the Board and are summarized in the table below.
FISCAL 2014 AIP PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Performance Metrics
Weight Metric Payout

Corporate Performance
Measures

70%
30%

Consolidated EBITDA
Consolidated FCF <Threshold Performance = 0% of Target Payout

Threshold Performance = 50% of Target Payout
Target Performance = 100% of Target Payout
Max. Performance = 150% of Target Payout
Super Max. Performance = 200% of Target PayoutRegion Performance Measures

50%
30%
20%

Regional EBITDA
Regional FCF
Consolidated EBITDA

The Committee also established a threshold Consolidated EBITDA target below which no earned fiscal 2014 AIP
award would be paid.
Payments under the fiscal 2014 AIP are expected to occur on or about August 15, 2014 following the completion of
the audit of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. On a consolidated basis, the Company’s target
Consolidated EBITDA was $140.0 million and the Company achieved $127.4 million, or 91% of the target. However
Consolidated FCF fell below the threshold of $26.0 million. Payments to the named executive officers under the 2014
AIP are detailed in the table below.
FISCAL 2014 AIP PAYOUT
Named Executive Officer Threshold Target Actual
Robert M. Caruso(1) N/A N/A N/A
Phillip A. Damaska $130,500 $261,000 $105,183
Barbara A. Hatcher $96,408 $192,816 $77,705
Edgar W. Mosley, Jr.(1) N/A N/A N/A
Michael Ostermann (2)(3) $169,988 $339,977 $328,418
(1)Messrs. Caruso and Mosley are not employees of the Company and are not eligible to participate in the AIP.
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(2)
Mr. Ostermann’s division achieved Regional EBITDA of $74.6 million, which exceeded the target level of $68.7
million. His division achieved Regional FCF threshold of $(18.4) million, which was better that the threshold of
$(22.3) million, but fell below the target of $(3.3) million.
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(3)Mr. Ostermann's compensation, which is paid in Euros, reflects the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate of 1.38/1.00 atMarch 31, 2014.
The Committee believes the targets established for the named executive officers for fiscal 2014 AIP awards were
appropriately challenging, requiring significant performance at both the region and corporate level, consistent with the
operating plan established under the DIP Credit Agreement, and consistent with the Committee's philosophy on pay
for performance.
Long-Term Equity and Other Incentive Compensation
Historically, the Committee has granted long-term equity grants under the 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (the "2009
Plan") and targeted payouts under long-term equity compensation awards for named executive officers, other than the
CEO, at or near the 50th percentile based on market survey data in the fiscal year and between the 50th and 75th
percentile based on market survey data for the CEO. The 2009 Plan authorizes the issuance of up to four million
shares of common stock (subject to certain limitations) issuable in the form of options, restricted stock, restricted
stock units (“RSUs”) and performance unit awards, the performance unit awards being payable in cash or stock. The
Committee oversees the administration of the 2009 Plan.
Prior to the Chapter 11 Case, the Committee believed that long-term equity incentive compensation issued under the
2009 Plan should be a significant element of total compensation for the Company's named executive officers because
the Committee believed that equity aligned management's performance with long-term stockholder value, principally
through the issuance of time vested restricted stock and performance share awards. Our named executive officers did
not receive an annual long-term equity grants in fiscal 2014, as the Committee determined that no new equity would
be issued during the Chapter 11 Case because such equity awards would not provide sufficient value to be a useful
component of total compensation. Our named executive officers did not receive any compensation in lieu of the
long-term equity awards resulting in each of their total direct compensation falling significantly below median total
direct compensation based on national survey data and our peer group.
Key Employee Incentive Plan
Since filing for Chapter 11, our executive compensation program has been redesigned to reward achievement of
certain pre-determined financial goals and milestones in our Chapter 11 Case. On July 25, 2013, the Board adopted
the KEIP, which established a cash incentive tied to successful emergence from Chapter 11 and achieving significant
results based on financial metrics identical to those included in the 2014 AIP: Consolidated EBITDA and
Consolidated FCF. On September 17, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court approved the KEIP.
Pursuant to the terms of the KEIP, KEIP payouts will be based on attainment of metrics consisting of 70.0% based on
fixed trailing twelve month Consolidated EBITDA metric if the Chapter 11 emergence occurs on or before June 30,
2014, and a sliding scale of trailing twelve month Consolidated EBITDA if such determination date occurs after June
30, 2014 and 30.0% based on cumulative cash flows calculated from June 1, 2013 through the end of the month in
which the Company emerges from Chapter 11. No KEIP payout will be made if Corporate EBITDA is less than the
minimum amount provided in the DIP Credit Agreement.
KEIP target compensation recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board was based on a percentage of
each named executive officer base salary as follows: Phillip A. Damaska, 116.0%; Barbara A. Hatcher 100%; and
Michael Ostermann, 80.0%.
KEIP PERFORMANCE MEASURES
Performance Metrics
Weight Metric Payout

70%
30%

Consolidated EBITDA
Consolidated FCF

Below Threshold Performance = 0% of Target Payout
Threshold Performance = 50% of Target Payout
Target Performance = 100% of Target Payout
Max. Performance = 125% of Target Payout
Super Max. Performance = 150% of Target Payout
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KEIP PAYOUT TARGETS
Named Executive Officer Threshold(1) Target(1) Maximum(1) Super Maximum(1)

Robert M. Caruso(2) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Phillip A. Damaska $252,300 $504,600 $630,750 $756,900
Barbara A. Hatcher $192,816 $385,632 $482,040 $578,448
Edgar W. Mosley, Jr.(2) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Michael Ostermann(3) $226,651 $453,303 $566,629 $679,954
(1)     Assumes financial targets for Consolidated EBITDA and Consolidated FCF are met.
(2)     Messrs. Caruso and Mosley are not employees of the Company and are not eligible to participate in the KEIP.
(3)     Mr. Ostermann's compensation, which is paid in Euros, reflects the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate of 1.38/1.00
at March 31, 2014.
Other Awards
Prior to the Chapter 11 Case, the Committee periodically approved lump sum payments to new employees or to
existing employees, including the named executive officers, upon assumption of additional responsibilities. While the
Company operates in Chapter 11 lump sum payments to named executive officers require Bankruptcy Court approval
and no such payments have been proposed.
Personal Benefits and Perquisites
The Company generally provides the same benefits to named executive officers as are provided to other employees,
including health and welfare benefits. Personal benefits and perquisites are not an important part of our compensation
program for our named executive officers. However, medical evacuation insurance is provided for the Company's
named executive officers, as well as to certain other senior level employees with significant international travel. This
benefit is extended to the spouse of a named executive officer if the executive is on a long-term assignment living
outside his or her home country. Additionally, named executive officers receive a monthly automobile allowance
between $950 and $1,000.
401(k) Plan
The Company maintains an employee funded 401(k) plan under which the Company matches up to 50.0% of the
employee's contributions to the 401(k) plan up to the first 6.0% of such employee's base salary, subject to the
maximum contribution levels established by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”). The Company's matching
contributions vest ratably over five years. Effective January 1, 2008, the Company amended its 401(k) plan to create a
safe harbor plan for all salaried U.S. workers, as well as hourly workers not subject to collective bargaining
agreements, to provide for Company contributions equal to 3.0% of the employee's annual base salary, regardless of
whether the employee contributes to the 401(k) plan. As a result of the limited participation of those employees
eligible to participate in the 401(k) plan, the safe harbor plan was adopted so that individuals defined as “highly
compensated employees” under applicable IRS and the United States Department of Labor standards, could make the
maximum individual contributions to their 401(k) accounts. The Company contributions to the safe harbor plan, which
are made at the time of each bi-weekly pay period and are allocated pursuant to the employees' existing investment
elections, are 100.0% vested at the time of the contribution. Effective June 1, 2013, the Company suspended the
Company contribution and the safe harbor payments for all U.S. salaried workers, as well as hourly workers not
subject to collective bargaining agreements. Effective April 1, 2014, the safe harbor payments for calendar 2014 were
reinstated, but such payments for the January through March 2014 period will not be made until December 2014.
Other Compensation Related Agreements
Cash Balance and Pension Plans
The Company also maintains a Cash Balance Plan, under which the Company contributed to the Plan 5.0% of each
U.S. employees' annual base salary. Contributions to an employee's Cash Balance Plan vest equally over five years.
Based on changes to ERISA regulations, effective January 1, 2008, the Company reduced the vesting period for the
Company's match to three years with 20.0% vested after the first year, 40.0% vested after two years and 100.0%
vested after three years. The Company's contributions to the Cash Balance Plan were frozen as of May 15, 2006. The
Committee will continue to evaluate the Cash Balance Plan based on future competitive market conditions for
employee compensation. GNB Industrial, which the Company acquired in 2000, operated a pension plan. This plan is

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

105



managed by the Company but additional contributions to the plan were frozen as of December 31, 2000.
Employment Agreements and Severance Arrangements
The Company currently has a formal employment agreement with Mr. Ostermann only, which establishes certain
compensation terms as well as the terms of any severance arrangements. The Committee has not authorized
employment agreements with any other named executive officers, but adopted the Exide Technologies Change in
Control Severance Plan
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(the “Severance Plan”) on February 5, 2012. For further discussion of the Severance Plan, see “Change in Control
Agreements” below.
James R. Bolch Employment Agreement
Mr. Bolch served as our President and CEO pursuant to an employment agreement dated June 10, 2010. The
agreement provided for Mr. Bolch's employment for a two-year period which commenced on July 26, 2010 (the “Bolch
Commencement Date”). At the end of the two-year period and each anniversary thereafter, the agreement provided that
the term would be automatically extended for one additional year unless either party provides ninety day advance
written notice of non-renewal.
Mr. Bolch's employment agreement provided for base salary of $850,000 for the first year and $900,000 for the
second year. Mr. Bolch would receive target annual short-term incentive compensation of 125.0% of base salary and
an annual long-term incentive grant of 300.0% of base salary.
Mr. Bolch's employment agreement included a cash inducement of $4,213,200 for joining the Company, $1,500,000
was paid on the Bolch Commencement Date, $1,000,000 was paid on July 26, 2011 and $1,713,200 was paid on
December 31, 2012, and was subject to Mr. Bolch's continued employment through such date (collectively, the
"Inducement Bonus").
On the Bolch Commencement Date, Mr. Bolch was also granted an inducement equity award of 750,000 shares of
restricted stock, which vest on the third anniversary of the Bolch Commencement Date. Mr. Bolch also received a
fiscal 2011 LTIP award that included 84,915 shares of restricted stock under the Company's 2009 Stock Incentive
Plan that vest ratably over three years and 170,085 performance shares under the 2009 Plan.
On July 25, 2013, Mr. Bolch announced his resignation from the Company effective July 31, 2013 and the Company
and Mr. Bolch entered into a Transition Services and General Release Agreement (the "Transition Agreement").
Pursuant to the Transition Agreement, Mr. Bolch did not receive any severance in accordance with his employment
agreement and forfeited all outstanding equity and incentive awards. He agreed to serve as a consultant to the
Company from August 1, 2013 until November 29, 2013 and agreed to a general release of claims, including any
rights or claims that Mr. Bolch had under his employment agreement with the Company. The Transition Agreement
required the Company to pay Mr. Bolch an aggregate of $300,000 payable in four equal monthly installments of
$75,000. The Company also continued to pay its portion of medical premiums through November 29, 2013 and
medical benefits under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended from time to time.
The Transition Agreement was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on August 15, 2013.
Michael Ostermann Employment Agreement
Mr. Ostermann entered into an employment agreement (the “Ostermann Agreement”), with Exide Technologies GmbH
on January 1, 2009, when he commenced employment as the Company's President-Transportation Europe. The
Ostermann Agreement sets forth Mr. Ostermann's initial base salary of Euro 290,000, which is subject to adjustment
annually. Mr. Ostermann's base salary for fiscal 2010 increased to Euro 365,000 effective March 1, 2010 upon his
promotion to President of Europe which included Transportation and Industrial Divisions. The Ostermann Agreement
includes terms related to the provision of sick pay, a company car, accident and death insurance policies, and annual
pension plan payments. The Company also agreed to permit Mr. Ostermann to participate in the Company's long-term
incentive plan and other incentive plans. The Ostermann Agreement is terminable (i) upon six months advance written
notice from Exide Technologies GmbH, (ii) upon the resolution of Exide Technologies GmbH's shareholders, (iii)
upon the attainment of age 65 by Mr. Ostermann, (iv) upon Mr. Ostermann's resignation, or (v) immediately, for cause
or behavior-related grounds if Mr. Ostermann is subject to the provisions of the German Termination Protection Act.
Upon termination of Mr. Ostermann's employment by the Company without cause, Mr. Ostermann is entitled to the
payment of one full year base salary. The Ostermann Agreement includes confidentiality, non-competition and
non-solicitation provisions.
The Ostermann Agreement was amended effective February 8, 2012 to clarify that any severance obligations due
under the employment agreement with Exide Technologies GmbH will offset any obligations otherwise available
under the Severance Plan adopted by the Board on February 5, 2012.
Change in Control Agreements
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The Board adopted a Severance Plan on February 5, 2012. The Severance Plan provided named executive officers
certain benefits in the event any such named executive officer's employment is terminated by the Company or a
subsidiary without “Cause,” or for “Good Reason,” within two years following a “Change in Control” (as each such term is
defined in the Severance Plan).
Pursuant to the terms of the Severance Plan, the Company's named executive officers would receive the following
benefits: (i) any Chief Executive Officer of the Company would receive 250.0%, and other named executive officers
would receive 200.0%, of the sum of such employee's annual base salary and target short-term annual incentive; (ii)
acceleration of any outstanding unvested equity awards; and (iii) paid coverage under the Company's health plan for a
period of 18
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months. Benefits under the Plan would be subject to customary confidentiality and non-disparagement provisions, as
well as a non-compete clause for a period not to exceed one year. The Company has not yet decided whether to
assume or reject these agreements as part of its Chapter 11 Case.
Other Severance Arrangements
The Company's other named executive officers are generally provided severance in an amount equal to twelve months
salary paid over a twelve-month period following the date of termination of employment with the Company for any
reason other than a “for cause” termination. As a result of the Chapter 11 Case, named executive officers may not
receive severance under the Severance Plan unless approved by the Bankruptcy Court.
Stock Ownership Guidelines
In October 2007, the Committee recommended and the Board approved stock ownership guidelines (“Ownership
Guidelines”). The Ownership Guidelines were adopted, in part, to align directors and named executive officers with
stockholders, by encouraging named executive officers, certain other selected members of senior management and
non-employee directors to maintain a significant holding of the Company's common stock. Pursuant to the Ownership
Guidelines, the CEO, other named executive officers, other selected members of senior management and
non-employee Board members, are required to achieve and maintain certain levels of beneficial ownership in the
Company's common stock based on a multiple of their annual base salary. The Committee consulted with its
independent compensation consultant in an effort to design Ownership Guidelines consistent with those of the
Company's peer group. Non-employee directors are also required to maintain stock ownership at levels based on their
annual cash retainer. The Ownership Guidelines are as follows:
•Chief Executive Officer                    5 Times Annual Base Salary
•Executive Vice Presidents     3 Times Annual Base Salary
•Division Presidents                    3 Times Annual Base Salary            
•Other Section 16 Officers          1.5 Times Annual Base Salary        
•Non-Employee Board Members                5 Times Base Annual Cash Retainer
The Board set December 31, 2012 as the initial deadline for achieving the required stock ownership levels, and five
years from the date of any individual's appointment, retention or promotion into one of the aforementioned positions.
In light of the Company's Chapter 11 Case, achievement of the Stock Ownership Guidelines is no longer possible and
such requirements are currently inapplicable to our directors and named executive officers.
Tax and Accounting Considerations
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code generally disallows a tax deduction to public corporations for
compensation over $1,000,000 paid for any fiscal year to the corporation's Chief Executive Officer and the three other
most highly compensated executive officers (other than the Chief Financial Officer) as of the end of any fiscal year.
However, the statute exempts qualifying performance-based compensation from the deduction limit if certain
requirements are met.
The Committee generally designs components of executive compensation to ensure full deductibility. The Committee
believes, however, that stockholder interests are best served by not restricting the Committee's discretion and
flexibility in crafting compensation programs, even though such programs may result in certain non-deductible
compensation expenses. Accordingly, the Committee has, from time to time, approved elements of compensation for
certain officers that are not fully deductible, and may do so in the future in appropriate circumstances.
The Company accounts for stock based compensation, including awards made under the 2004 Plan, in accordance
with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 718. In making compensation decisions, the Committee considers
the impact of different forms of compensation from an accounting standpoint.
Clawbacks
Under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, in the event of misconduct that results in a financial restatement that would reduce a
previously paid incentive amount, the Company can recoup those improper payments from the CEO and CFO. In
addition, the Company implemented a recoupment policy on March 27, 2012, in anticipation of the SEC's
implementation of requirements under the Dodd-Frank Act. The Exide Technologies Incentive Compensation
Recoupment Policy allows the Company to recoup any incentive compensation paid to a named executive officer for
the preceding three fiscal years that was based on Consolidated Financial Statements that require a restatement due to
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any act, intentional or otherwise. The Company will modify the policy, as necessary, to comply with final rules
implemented.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the above Compensation Discussion and Analysis with the
Company's management. Based on the review and discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the
Company's Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the proxy statement.
Members of the Compensation Committee
Carroll R. Wetzel, Jr. (Chair)
John P. Reilly
Michael P. Ressner

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and
Principal Position

Fiscal
Year

Salary
($)(1)

Bonus
($)(3)

Stock
Awards
($)(4)

Non-Equity
Incentive
Plan
Compensation
($)(5)

Non-qualified
Deferred
Compensation
Earnings
($)(6)

All Other
Compensation
($)(7)

Total
($)

Robert M. Caruso
President and Chief
Executive Officer

2014 $1,534,075 $— $— $— $— $— $1,534,075

James R. Bolch
Former President and
Chief Executive
Officer

2014 $300,000 $— $— $— $— $ 307,736 $607,736
2013 $900,000 $1,713,200 $— $— $— $ 33,765 $2,646,965

2012 $884,264 $1,000,000 $899,010 $— $— $ 50,657 $2,833,931

Phillip A. Damaska
Executive Vice
President and Chief
Financial Officer

2014 $435,000 $— $— $105,183 $355 $ 19,277 $559,815
2013 $435,000 $— $— $— $638 $ 29,736 $465,374

2012 $409,166 $— $197,820 $— $1,728 $ 29,153 $637,867

Barbara A. Hatcher
Executive Vice
President and General
Counsel

2014 $385,632 $— $— $77,705 $2,379 $ 17,985 $483,701
2013 $384,396 $— $— $— $10,943 $ 29,183 $424,522

2012 $369,900 $— $154,350 $— $20,655 $ 28,864 $573,769

Edgar W. Mosley, Jr.
Chief Restructuring
Officer

2014 $1,546,750 $— $— $— $— $— $1,546,750

Michael Ostermann
Executive Vice
President and President
Exide Europe (2)

2014 $400,776 $— $— $328,418 $— $ 243,938 $973,132
2013 $373,964 $— $— $— $— $ 225,611 $599,575

2012 $376,769 $— $176,085 $— $— $ 239,224 $792,078

(1)

This column reports the base salary paid to each of our named executive officers. Mr. Caruso, a Managing Director
of A&M, has served as our President and CEO since August 1, 2013. Mr. Mosley, a Senior Director of A&M has
served as our Chief Restructuring Officer since August 1, 2013. Messrs. Caruso's and Mosley's services are
provided pursuant to an agreement between the Company and A&M. We do not compensate Messrs. Caruso and
Mosley directly. Rather, Messrs Caruso and Mosley are compensated directly by A&M. Under our agreement with
A&M, in fiscal 2014, we incurred $1,534,075 for Mr. Caruso's services and $1,546,750 for Mr. Mosley's services.
Mr. Caruso billed 331 hours at $825 per hour for the period May 1, 2013 through June 9, 2013 and $130,000 per
month thereafter. Mr. Mosley billed 939 hours at $625 per hour for the period May 1, 2013 through July 31, 2013
and $120,000 per month thereafter. See "Compensation Discussion and Analysis - Base Salary" for a complete
discussion and analysis of base salary levels.

(2)Mr. Ostermann's compensation is paid in Euros and reflects the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate of 1.38/1.00 as ofMarch 31, 2014, 1.28/1.00 as of March 31, 2013, and 1.33/1.00 as of March 31, 2012.
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(3)On December 31, 2012 and July 26, 2011, Mr. Bolch received cash inducement payments of $1,713,000 and$1,000,000, respectively.

(4)

The amounts reported in the “Stock Awards” column of the table above represent the grant date fair value of the
stock awards, including restricted stock, RSUs and performance share awards, granted for each year calculated in
accordance with ASC Topic 718. Amounts for performance share awards included in the “Stock Awards” column
above reflect the most probable outcome award value at the date of grant in accordance with ASC Topic 718. If the
performance share awards were computed at the highest performance levels, the following amounts would be
included in the table for each named executive officer with respect to such performance share awards.

Name Fiscal Year Performance Share Awards at the
Highest Performance Level ($)

James R. Bolch 2012 $1,273,320
Phillip A. Damaska 2012 $289,980
Barbara A. Hatcher 2012 $337,740
Michael Ostermann 2012 $273,780
Assumptions used in calculation of these amounts are included in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.
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(5)The amount shown in this column represent cash incentive awards made to the NEOs under the 2014 AIP. See"Compensation Discussion and Analysis - 2014 Annual Incentive Plan" for a complete discussion of the 2014 AIP.

(6)The fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 calculations are measured at March 31, 2014, March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012,respectively. See Fiscal 2014 Pension Benefits Table.

(7)

The Company provides various forms of compensation related to expatriate assignment that may include foreign
service premium, foreign assignment tax equalization, location pay, housing and utilities, leave and travel, and a
goods and services allowance. In order to minimize the tax impact resulting from Mr. Ostermann's work in France,
a significant portion of Mr. Ostermann's fixed salary is allocated to his expatriate benefits. These items have been
broken out separately in the following table which describes each component of the “All Other Compensation”
column in the Fiscal 2014 Summary Compensation Table. Additionally, Mr. Bolch received payments totaling
$300,000 pursuant to a Transition Services Agreement. For further information see "Other Compensation Related
Agreements - Employment and Severance Agreements" in the CD&A.

Name
Executive
Relocation
($)

Automobile
Reimbursement
($)

Tax
Reimbursements
($)

Company
Contribution to
Retirement and
401(k) Plans
($)(1)

Expatriate
Payments
($)(2)

Life
Insurance
($)

Total
($)

James R. Bolch $— $ 4,000 $ — $1,500 $— $2,236 $7,736
Phillip A. Damaska $— $ 11,400 $ — $4,350 $— $3,527 $19,277
Barbara A. Hatcher $— $ 11,400 $ — $3,856 $— $2,729 $17,985
Michael Ostermann(3) $— $ 34,757 $ — $40,470 $168,711 $— $243,938

(1)
Mr. Ostermann's benefits in this column include $6,045 in contributions to a social insurance plan provided under
common law and a payment of $34,425 to his private pension plan established pursuant to his employment
agreement.

(2)
Expatriate payments made to Mr. Ostermann for his time spent in Gennevilliers, France include the following for
fiscal 2014: $66,181 housing allowance for reimbursement of housing expenses; and goods and services allowance
of $102,530.

(3)The payments are paid in Euros and reflect the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate of 1.38/1.00 at March 31, 2014.
See the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis - Employment Agreements and Severance Arrangements” for details
regarding the Employment Agreements with Mr. Bolch and Mr. Ostermann.

FISCAL 2014 GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS TABLE
The following table provides information regarding equity and non-equity awards granted to the named executive
officers in fiscal 2014. In light of the Company’s Chapter 11 Case, no long-term equity awards were granted for fiscal
2014.

Name Grant Date Grant Type Threshold Target Maximum Super
Maximum

Robert M. Caruso N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
James R. Bolch(1) AIP $562,500 $1,125,000 $2,250,000 N/A

Phillip A. Damaska AIP $130,500 $261,000 $522,000 N/A
KEIP $252,300 $504,600 $630,750 $756,900

Barbara A. Hatcher AIP $96,408 $192,816 $385,632 N/A
KEIP $192,816 $385,632 $482,040 $578,448

Edgar W. Mosley, Jr. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Michael Ostermann AIP $169,988 $339,972 $679,954 N/A
KEIP $226,651 $453,303 $566,629 $679,954

(1)
Mr. Bolch received an Annual Incentive Plan grant on March 27, 2013, which did not incorporate the concept of a
Super Maximum payment. Any resulting award deriving from that grant was canceled upon the Company’s Chapter
11 filing. Mr. Bolch resigned from the Company prior to the Bankruptcy Court’s approval of the 2014 AIP.
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See the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis - 2014 Annual Incentive Plan" and "Compensation Discussion and
Analysis - Key Employee Incentive Plan" for details regarding the AIP and KEIP, respectively.
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FISCAL 2014 OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END TABLE
 This table provides information on the holding of stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units for the
named executive officers as of March 31, 2014.

Name

Option Awards Stock Awards

Option
Grant Date

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(Exercisable)
(#)(1)

Option
Exercise
Price
($)(1)

Option
Expiration
Date

Stock
Grant
Date
(2)

Number of
Shares
Or Units of
Stock
That have
Not
Vested
(#)(3)

Market Value
of
Shares or
Units
of Stock That
Have Not
Vested
($) (3)

Number of
Shares That
Have Not
Been Earned
Under FY12
Performance
Share Award
(4)

Robert M.
Caruso N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

James R.
Bolch(5) 3/29/2011 19,650

Phillip A.
Damaska

1/31/2005 12,000 $13.41 8/29/2015
11/29/2005 16,000 $4.46 11/29/2015
9/21/2006 34,900 $3.66 9/21/2016
3/22/2007 16,795 $8.84 3/22/2017
5/15/2008 31,310 $14.87 5/15/2018
5/4/2009 21,948 $6.29 5/4/2019

3/29/2011 4,475
3/27/201220.934 $4,815

Barbara A.
Hatcher

10/13/2004 10,500 $13.41 10/13/2014
11/29/2005 9,954 $4.46 11/29/2015
9/21/2006 56,100 $3.66 9/21/2016
3/22/2007 26,991 $8.84 3/22/2017
5/15/2008 24,153 $14.87 5/15/2018
5/4/2009 19,753 $6.29 5/4/2019

3/29/2011 3,475
3/27/201216,334 $3,757

Edgar W.
Mosley, Jr. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Michael
Ostermann

5/4/2009 24,124 $6.29 5/4/2019
3/29/2011 4,225
3/27/201218,634 $4,286

(1)

The 2004 Plan was amended effective August 22, 2007 to provide that the exercise price would be equal to the
closing price of the Company's common stock on the grant date or the average closing price of our common stock
for the ten days preceding the grant date, whichever is higher. On February 18, 2008, the executive officers and
directors executed amendments to the option awards approved by the Board and granted to non-employee directors
and executive officers where the exercise price was lower than closing price of the Company's common stock on
the grant date.

(2)
All stock grants listed in this column represent restricted stock, with the exception of grant of restricted stock units
for Mr. Ostermann's awards. Awards vest in three equal tranches on March 27, 2013, March 27, 2014 and March
27, 2015.

(3)The market value of unvested restricted stock is based on the $0.23 closing price of our stock on the NASDAQGlobal Market on March 31, 2014.
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The number of options granted is based, in part, on the theoretical value of the options. The Committee has
traditionally used the Black-Scholes Valuation Model ("BSVM"). The BSVM uses a complex calculation designed to
provide the theoretical value of an option at the date of grant. The BSVM calculates a probability distribution of future
stock prices at a future exercise date by using an expected return equal to the risk-free rate of return. The return varies
with the volatility of the security calculated as of the date of grant. Probability-weighted future payouts are then
discounted back to present day dollars based on a risk-free rate of return. The parameters used in valuations include:
•Volatility: The tendency of the market price of the security underlying the option to fluctuate either up or down.
•Risk-Free Rate: The theoretical rate of return attributed to an investment with zero risk.
•Term: The expected life of a stock option held by a Company employee before exercise or cancellation.
•Grant Price: Market value of stock price on day stock option was granted.

(4)Represents achievement of threshold values under fiscal 2012 Performance Shares that would have been earnedhad the Company met threshold performance levels.
(5)Mr. Bolch forfeited any unvested shares as of the July 31, 2013 effective date of his resignation.
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FISCAL 2014 OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED TABLE
The following table provides information for the named executive officers, on (i) stock option exercises during fiscal
2014, including the number of shares acquired upon exercise and the value realized and (ii) the number of shares
acquired upon the vesting of stock awards and the value realized.

Name

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Shares
Acquired on Exercise
(#)

Value Realized
on Exercise
($)

Number of Shares
Acquired on Vesting
(#)(4)

Value Realized
on Vesting
($)(5)

Robert M. Caruso N/A N/A N/A N/A
James R. Bolch N/A N/A N/A N/A
Phillip A. Damaska(1) — $— 28,371 $7,423
Barbara A. Hatcher(2) — $— 22,101 $5,775
Edgar W. Mosley, Jr. N/A N/A N/A N/A
Michael Ostermann(3) — $— 24,267 $5,581

(1)Mr. Damaska forfeited 10,876 of the shares listed above to pay withholding tax obligations related to the vestedshares.

(2)Ms. Hatcher forfeited 8,473 of the shares listed above to pay withholding tax obligations related to the vestedshares.

(3)Mr. Ostermann forfeited 10,921 of the shares listed above to pay withholding tax obligations related to the vestedshares.

(4)All vested stock listed in this column represents restricted stock and vested, non-forfeitable restricted stock units(whether shares have been delivered or not delivered).

(5)
Values based on the closing price of our common stock on the respective exercise or vesting dates. Where the
vesting date occurred on a Saturday or Sunday, value is based on the closing price on the last market date prior to
the vesting date.

FISCAL 2014 PENSION BENEFITS TABLE
The table below sets forth information on the pension benefits for the named executive officers.

Name Plan Name
Number of Years
Credited Service
(#)

Present Value
of Accumulated
Benefit
($)(1)

Actual Cash
Balance Account
($)

Payments During
Last Fiscal Year
($)

Robert M. Caruso — — $— $— $—
James R. Bolch — — $— $— $—

Phillip A. Damaska Cash Balance
Plan 9 $— $21,601 $—

Barbara A. Hatcher(2)
Cash Balance
Plan 13 $— $74,201 $—

GNB 3.33 $82,379 $— $—
Edgar W. Mosley, Jr. — — $— $— $—
Michael Ostermann — — $— $— $—

(1)Consistent with the Company's adoption of ASC Topic 715, benefits are valued based on years of service as ofMarch 31, 2014.

(2)Ms. Hatcher participated in a pension plan with GNB Industrial, which merged with the Company in 2000. Thisplan is managed by the Company but was frozen as of December 31, 2000.
See the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis - Cash Balance and Pension Plans" for details regarding the Cash
Balance plan and GNB plan.

FISCAL 2014 POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL TABLE
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The tables and narratives below describe the potential payments to each named executive officer upon termination. In
accordance with SEC rules, all information described in this section is presented as if a triggering event occurred on
March 31, 2014. On March 31, 2014, the Company was subject to Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, which limits
the amount that would have otherwise been payable in the event of termination. The Company is disclosing amounts
that would have been payable to each named executive officer assuming that the Company was not subject to the
limitations under the Bankruptcy Code on March 31, 2014, which the Company believes provides a transparent
disclosure of its compensation practices and philosophy. Amounts payable to our named executive officers would be
significantly less under the Bankruptcy Code.
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Name Benefit

Termination
w/o Cause or
by employee
for Good
Reason

Termination
w/Cause or
by
employee
w/o 
Good Reason

Termination
w/o Cause
within 24
months after a
Change in
Control

Death Disability

Robert M.
Caruso N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Edgar W.
Mosley, Jr. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Phillip A.
Damaska

Base Salary(1) $435,000 $870,000
AIP $261,000 $522,000 $261,000
KEIP $504,600 N/A $504,600 $504,600
Stock Options(2)
Restricted Shares(3) $4,815
Performance Unit Share
Award(4) $4,117 $4,117 $4,117

Performance Unit Cash
Award(5) $590,000 $457,667 $457,667

COBRA(6) $27,841

Barbara A.
Hatcher

Base Salary(1) $385,632 $771,264
AIP $192,816 $385,632 $192,816
KEIP $257,088 N/A $257,088 $257,088
Stock Options(2)
Restricted Shares(3) $3,757
Performance Unit Share
Award(4) $4,796 $4,796 $4,796

Performance Unit Cash
Award(5) $459,000 $356,000 $356,000

COBRA(6) $24,141

Michael
Ostermann

Base Salary(1) $566,628 $1,133,256
AIP $339,977 $679,954 $339,977
KEIP $302,202 N/A $302,202 $302,202
Stock Options(2)
Restricted Shares(3) $4,286
Performance Unit Share
Award(4) $3,887 $3,887 $3,887

Performance Unit Cash
Award(5) $535,000 $417,667 $417,667

(1)

Upon termination without cause by the Company, Messrs. Damaska and Ostermann and Ms. Hatcher would
receive one year of severance, regardless of whether they obtain employment elsewhere during such year. Upon a
termination following a change in control, Messrs. Damaska and Ostermann and Ms. Hatcher would receive
200.0% of their respective annual base salary. This asumes there would be no change in severance policy after a
change in control. Mr. Ostermann's compensation is paid in Euros and reflects the Euro/U.S. Dollar exchange rate
of 1.38/1.00 at March 31, 2014.

(2)
Values shown were determined by multiplying the number of “in the money” options that would vest upon
termination by the difference between the exercise price and the closing price of our stock on March 31, 2014.
Excludes valuation of shares otherwise exercisable at March 31, 2014.

(3)
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Values based on the number of shares not vested at March 31, 2014 multiplied by the $0.23 closing price of our
common stock on March 31, 2014. Excludes valuation of shares otherwise vested or non-forfeitable at March 31,
2014.

(4)

Value assumes target level is reached for performance share awards with a measurement date of March 31, 2014
and pro-rated for shares with a measurement date of March 31, 2015 multiplied by the $0.23 closing price of our
common stock on March 31, 2014, except for a termination under a change in control, in which event all granted
shares would be paid at assumed target level.

(5)Value assumes that target level reached for unit cash awards with a measurement date of March 31, 2014 andpro-rated for shares with a measurement date of March 31, 2015.
(6)Based on rates in effect as of March 31, 2014 and assumes full 18 months of COBRA eligibility.
(7)For purposes of this table, the termination without cause assumes termination is due to job elimination.
(8)The KEIP does not contemplate payment on a change of control.
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FISCAL 2014 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE
Directors who are employees receive no additional compensation or retirement benefits for serving on the Board or its
committees. In fiscal 2014, we provided the following annual compensation to our non-employee directors:

Name Fees Earned or Paid in  Cash
($)(1)

John P. Reilly, Chairman $218,000
Herbert F. Aspbury $127,750
Michael R. D'Appolonia $122,500
David S. Ferguson $128,500
John O'Higgins $116,500
Dominic J. Pileggi $19,500
Michael P. Ressner $138,250
Carroll R. Wetzel, Jr. $142,000

(1)This column represents the amount of cash compensation earned by the non-employee directors for meeting fees,annual retainer, Chairman retainer and Committee Chair retainers.

(2)

The following meeting fees earned from May 1, 2013 through June 9, 2013 were determined to be pre-petition
obligations of the Company and were not paid to the directors: (Mr. Aspbury--$11,000, Mr. D’Appolonia--$11,000,
Mr. Ferguson--$9,000, Mr. O’Higgins--$8,000, Mr. Pileggi--$4,000, Mr. Reilly--$9,000, Mr. Ressner--$9,000, and
Mr. Wetzel, $11,000).

Prior to the Chapter 11 Case, each non-employee director received an annual cash retainer of $50,000 payable
prospectively in quarterly cash installments. Each non-employee director would also receive annual equity
compensation of $80,000 in the form of restricted stock unit awards and each new director would receive restricted
stock units valued at $50,000 that vest ratably over two years beginning with the first Annual Meeting following one
year of service. Such awards would accelerate if the director is nominated but not re-elected at a stockholder meeting.
The restricted stock units become non-forfeitable at the conclusion of the director's annual service, but stock
certificates will not be issued until each director's retirement from the Board. As a result of the Chapter 11 filing, on
July 25, 2013, the Board increased the annual cash retainer to $100,000 and discontinued the issuance of equity
effective for the quarter beginning July 1, 2014. Additionally, the Chairman of the Board receives an annual retainer
of $100,000, payable prospectively in quarterly installments. The Chairman of each of the Finance Committee and the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee receives an additional annual cash retainer of $10,000. Each
member of the Board also receives $1,500 for each Board or committee meeting attended in person and $1,000 for
each Board or committee meeting attended telephonically.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The following table sets forth the number of shares of the Company's common stock beneficially owned as of May 31,
2014, unless otherwise noted, of the following:
•each person whom we know beneficially owns more than five percent of our common stock;
•each of our directors and nominees for the Board;
•each of our named executive officers; and
•all of our directors and executive officers as a group.
Unless otherwise noted below, the address of each beneficial owner is c/o Exide Technologies, 13000 Deerfield
Parkway, Building 200, Milton, GA 30004.
Except as indicated by the footnotes below, we believe, based on information furnished to our company, that the
persons and entities named in the table below have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of
common stock that they beneficially own, subject to applicable community property laws.
Applicable percentage ownership is based on 79,078,088 shares of common stock outstanding at June 2, 2014. In
computing the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of
that person, in accordance with the rules of the SEC we included outstanding shares of common stock subject to
options, warrants or restricted stock units held by that person that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60
days of May 31, 2014. We did not deem these shares outstanding, however, for purposes of computing the percentage
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ownership of any other person.
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The information provided in the table below is based on our records, information filed with the SEC and information
provided to us, except where otherwise noted.

Name of Beneficial Owner Number of Shares
Beneficially Owned

Percent
of Class

Officers and Directors (4)
Herbert F. Aspbury 102,926 *
Michael R. D'Appolonia 122,759 *
David S. Ferguson 118,079 *
John O'Higgins 67,852 *
John P. Reilly 128,760 *
Michael P. Ressner 116,996 *
Carroll R. Wetzel, Jr. 137,982 *
Robert M. Caruso — *
Phillip A. Damaska 288,180 *
Barbara A. Hatcher 270,295 *
Edgar J. Mosley, Jr. — *
Michael Ostermann 103,823 *
All Directors and executive officers as a group (15 persons) 1,722,485 2.29

(1)

Includes shares of our common stock that may be acquired by exercise of stock options or in connection with
vesting of restricted stock units within 60 days of May 31, 2013 for directors and executive officers as follows: Mr.
Aspbury, 96,132 shares; Messrs. D'Appolonia, Reilly, and Ressner, 103,917 shares each; Messrs. Ferguson and
Wetzel, 101,805 shares each; Mr. O'Higgins, 67,852 shares; Mr. Damaska, 132,953 shares; Ms Hatcher, 147,451
shares; Mr. Ostermann, 24,124 shares; and all directors and executive officers as a group, 1,089,983 shares.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Pursuant to our Corporate Governance Guidelines, as well as the written Related Party Transaction Policy adopted by
the Board on March 22, 2007, the Audit Committee is responsible for the review of “related person transactions”
between the Company and related persons, including directors, executive officers, director nominees, 5.0%
stockholders of the Company, as well as the immediate family members of each of the foregoing individuals. These
related person transactions apply to any transaction or series of transactions in which we or one of our subsidiaries is a
participant, the amount involved exceeds $120,000 and a related person has a direct or indirect material interest.
The Company annually solicits information from its directors and executive officers in order to monitor potential
conflicts of interest. Director nominees are also requested to provide the Company the foregoing information. The
Audit Committee considers whether any proposed related person's transaction is on terms and conditions that are
reasonable under the circumstances and in the best interest of stockholders.
In the first quarter of fiscal 2014, the period during which Mr. Pileggi served as a member of the Board of Directors of
the Company, the Company billed to, or received from Thomas & Betts and its subsidiaries, including JT Packard, the
principal assets of which were purchased by Thomas & Betts in 2010, payments in the amount of approximately
$17,500 for the supply of batteries, including new battery systems and temporary battery systems, and the service of
those battery systems. Mr. Pileggi, a director until May 29, 2013, was the Chairman and former Chief Executive
Officer of Thomas & Betts Corporation, a subsidiary of ABB, Ltd. At the time the Company began supplying JT
Packard, Mr. Pileggi was not one of the Company's directors. The Audit Committee and Board ratified and confirmed
the related person transactions discussed above, and approved future supply and service to Thomas & Betts and all its
consolidated subsidiaries in accordance with the Company's related party transaction policy up to a maximum amount
of $10.0 million per year (above which further audit committee and board approval will be required).
See Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which is incorporated herein by reference, for further
discussion of certain relationships and related transactions.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table presents fees billed for professional services rendered by KPMG LLP ("KPMG") for the audit of
the Company's annual Consolidated Financial Statements and internal control over financial reporting for fiscal 2014
and 2013.

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013
Audit fees (1) $5,543,000 $4,293,000
Tax fees 12,000 —
Total $5,555,000 $4,293,000

(1)

Fees billed for professional services performed for the audit of our annual Consolidated Financial Statements and
review of Consolidated Financial Statements, quarterly reviews, and services that are normally provided in
connection with statutory regulatory filings or engagements, including incremental procedures performed due to
the Chapter 11 filing. Fees billed also included an audit of our internal control over financial reporting.

All audit, audit-related and tax services were pre-approved by the Audit Committee, which concluded that the
provision of such services by KPMG LLP was compatible with the maintenance of KPMG LLP's independence in the
conduct of its auditing functions. The Audit Committee's charter provides that individual engagements must be
separately approved. The policy also requires specific approval by the Audit Committee if total fees for audit-related
and tax services would exceed total fees for audit services in any fiscal year. The policy authorizes the Audit
Committee to delegate to one or more of its members pre-approval authority with respect to permitted services.
Pursuant to the Audit Committee charter, the Audit Committee must approve all audit engagement fees including
other significant compensation to be paid to the independent auditor and the terms of such engagement. Additionally,
the Audit Committee must pre-approve any non-audit services to be provided by the independent auditor.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules
(a)Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(b)Exhibits Required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

See Index to Exhibits.
(c)Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on July , 2014.

EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES

By: /s/    PHILLIP A. DAMASKA        
Phillip A. Damaska
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities stated, in each case, on July , 2014.

By: /s/     ROBERT M. CARUSO By: /s/    DAVID S. FERGUSON
Robert M. Caruso
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

David S. Ferguson
Director

By: /s/    PHILLIP A. DAMASKA By: /s/    JOHN O’HIGGINS
Phillip A. Damaska
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(principal financial officer)

John O’Higgins
Director

By: /s/    LOUIS E. MARTINEZ By: /s/    JOHN P. REILLY 
Louis E. Martinez
Vice President, Corporate Controller, and
Chief Accounting Officer
(principal accounting officer)

John P. Reilly
Chairman of the Board of Directors

.
By: /s/    HERBERT F. ASPBURY By: /s/    MICHAEL P. RESSNER 

Herbert F. Aspbury
Director

Michael P. Ressner
Director

By: /s/    MICHAEL R. D’APPOLONIA By: /s/    CARROLL R. WETZEL, JR.
Michael R. D’Appolonia
Director

Carroll R. Wetzel, Jr.
Director
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

2.1
Joint Plan of Reorganization of the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors and the 2002 Debtors,
dated March 11, 2004, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Report on Form
8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated May 6, 2004.

2.2

Amended Technical Amendment to (I) Joint Plan of Reorganization of the Official Committee of
Unsecured Creditors and the 2002 Debtors and (II) Plan Supplement for Joint Plan of Reorganization
of the Official Committee of the Unsecured Creditors and the 2002 Debtors, dated April,27, 2004,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Company's Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263)
dated May 6, 2004.

2.3
Order confirming the Joint Plan of Reorganization of the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors
and the 2002 Debtors entered April 20, 2004, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the
Company's Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated May 6, 2004.

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (file no. 001-11263) dated November 8, 2007.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, effective June 1, 2012, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated June 7, 2012.

4.1
Indenture, dated as of March 18, 2005, by and between the Company and SunTrust Bank relating to
the floating rate Convertible Notes due 2013, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated March 25, 2005.

4.2

Registration Rights Agreement, dated September 18, 2006, between Exide Technologies, Tontine
Capital Partners, L.P., Tontine Partners, L.P., Tontine Overseas Associates, L.L.C., Tontine Capital
Overseas Master Fund, L.P., Arklow Capital, LLC and Legg Mason Investment Trust, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263)
dated September 19, 2006.

4.3
Rights Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2008, by and between the Company and American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement in Form 8-A (file no. 001-11263) dated December 8, 2008.

4.4
Indenture, dated as of January 25, 2011, by and between Exide Technologies and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Report on
Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated January 25, 2011.

4.5 Form of 8 5/8% Senior Secured Notes due 2018 (included as Exhibit A in Exhibit 4.5).

4.6

Registration Rights Agreement, dated January 25, 2011, by and between the Exide Technologies and
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as representative of the several initial purchasers, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated January 25,
2011.
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4.7
Security Agreement dated as of January 25, 2011, by Exide Technologies in favor of Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as collateral agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated January 25, 2011.

4.8
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 25, 2011, by and between Exide Technologies and U.S.
Bank, National Association, as successor trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated January 25, 2011.
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4.9

Credit Agreement, dated as of January 25, 2011, by and among Exide Technologies, Exide Global
Holding Netherlands C.V., various financial institutions named therein, and Wells Fargo Capital
Finance, LLC, as administrative agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated January 25, 2011.

4.10
U.S. Security Agreement dated as of January 25, 2011, by and among Exide Technologies, and Wells
Fargo Capital Finance, LLC, in its capacity as agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated January 25, 2011.

4.11
U.S. General Continuing Guaranty, dated as of January 25, 2011, by Exide Technologies, in favor of
Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC, as agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated January 25, 2011.

4.12

Intercreditor Agreement dated as of January 25, 2011, by and among Exide Technologies, Wells
Fargo Capital Finance, LLC, as agent under the credit agreement dated January 25, 2011 and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee and collateral agent under the indenture dated January
25, 2011, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no.
001-11263) dated January 25, 2011.

†10.30 Form of Restricted Share Units Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated March 27, 2007.

†10.31
Form of Exide Technologies Employee Restricted Shares Award Agreement, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated October
20, 2004.

†10.32 Form of Exide Technologies Employee Stock Option Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated October 20, 2004.

†10.33 Form of Non-Employee Director Stock Option Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated October 20, 2004.

†10.34 Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Shares Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated October 20, 2004.

†10.35
Exide Technologies’ 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as further amended and restated effective August 22,
2007, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Report on Form 10-Q (file no.
001-11263) dated November 8, 2007.

†10.36
Amendment to Stock Option Award Agreement between Exide Technologies and Phillip A.
Damaska, dated February 18, 2008, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s
Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated February 20, 2008.

†10.37 Exide Technologies 2009 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated September 21, 2009.

†10.38 Form of Performance Share Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated March 31, 2010.#

†10.39
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Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated March 31, 2010.

†10.40
Employment Agreement between Exide Technologies and James R. Bolch, dated June 10, 2010,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K
(file no. 001-11263) dated June 15, 2010.

†10.41
Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated July 26, 2010, by and between Exide Technologies and
James R. Bolch, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file
no. 001-11263) dated July 26, 2010.

†10.42 U.K. form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated September 20, 2010.

†10.43
U.K. form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award for New Directors, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated
September 20, 2010.

†10.44
U.S. form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award for New Directors, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated
September 20, 2010.
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†10.45 Form of Indemnification Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated November 10, 2010.

†10.46 Form of Performance Share Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated April 4, 2011.

†10.47 Form of Performance Unit Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated April 4, 2011.#

†10.48
Offer of Employment to R. Paul Hirt, Jr., dated September 16, 2011, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (file no. 001-11263) dated February 9,
2012.

†10.49
Amendment to Employment Agreement between Exide Technologies and James R. Bolch dated
February 6, 2012, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Report on Form 8-K
(file no. 001-11263) dated February 9, 2011.

†10.50 Employment Agreement between Exide Technologies, GmbH and Michael Ostermann dated
January 1, 2009.

†10.51 Assignment Agreement between Exide Technologies, GmbH and Michael Ostermann dated January 1,
2009.

†10.52
Amendment to Employment Agreement between Exide Technologies, GmbH and Michael Ostermann
dated February 8, 2012, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Report on Form
8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated February 9, 2011.

†10.53 Performance Unit Award Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2012 by and between the Company and
James R. Bolch. +

†10.54 Performance Unit Award Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2012 by and between the Company and
Phillip A. Damaska. +

†10.55 Performance Unit Award Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2012 by and between the Company and
Barbara A. Hatcher. +
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†10.56 Performance Unit Award Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2012 by and between the Company and R.
Paul Hirt, Jr. +

†10.57 Performance Unit Award Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2012 by and between the Company and
Michael Ostermann. +

†10.58 Fiscal 2013 Annual Incentive Plan, amending and restating the Fiscal 2010 Short-Term Incentive Plan.

10.59 Supply Agreement between Daramic, LLC and Exide Technologies, dated September 4, 2012,
incorporated by reference to the Report on Form 10-Q (file no. 001-11263) dated November 9, 2012.#

10.60
Amendment No. 1 to Fiscal 2013 Annual Incentive Plan, amending and restating the Fiscal 2010
Short-Term Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to the Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263)
dated December 7, 2012.

10.61

Superpriority Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of June 9, 2013, by and among Exide
Technologies, a Debtor and a Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as U.S.
Borrower, Exide Global Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower, the lenders from time to time
party thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent.

10.62

Amended and Restated Superpriority Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of July 12,
2013, by and among Exide Technologies, a Debtor and a Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code, as U.S. Borrower, Exide Global Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower,
the lenders from time to time party thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated July 18,
2013.

†10.63
Transition Services and General Release Agreement dated July 25, 2013 by and between James R.
Bolch and Exide Technologies, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Report on
Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated July 26, 2013.

†10.64
Letter Agreement dated July 25, 2013 by and between Alvarez & Marsal North America, LLC and
Exide Technologies, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Report on Form 8-K
(file no. 001-11263) dated July 26, 2013.

†10.65
Engagement Letter Agreement dated June 9, 2013 by and between Alvarez & Marsal North America,
LLC and Exide Technologies, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Report on
Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated July 26, 2013.

†10.66 Key Employee Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Report on
Form 10-Q (file no. 001-11263) dated November 8, 2013.

10.67

Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Superpriority Debtor-in-Possession Credit
Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2013, by and among Exide Technologies, a Debtor and a
Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as U.S. Borrower, Exide Global
Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower, the lenders from time to time party thereto and JP
Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s
Report on Form 10-Q (file no. 001-11263) dated November 8, 2013.
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10.68

Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Superpriority Debtor-in-Possession Credit
Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2013, by and among Exide Technologies, a Debtor and a
Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as U.S. Borrower, Exide Global
Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower, the lenders from time to time party thereto and JP
Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated October 15, 2013.

*†10.69 Key Employee Incentive Plan.
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10.70

Amendment No. 3, dated as of May 28, 2014, to the Amended and Restated Superpriority
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2013, by and among Exide Technologies,
a Debtor and a Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as US Borrower,
Exide Global Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower, the lenders from time to time party
thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263), dated May 28, 2014.

10.71

Amendment No. 4, dated as of June 27, 2014, to the Amended and Restated Superpriority
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2013, by and among Exide Technologies,
a Debtor and a Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as US Borrower,
Exide Global Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower, the lenders from time to time party
thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263), dated June 30, 2014.

10.72

Amendment No. 5, dated as of June 27, 2014, to the Amended and Restated Superpriority
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2013, by and among Exide Technologies,
a Debtor and a Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as US Borrower,
Exide Global Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower, the lenders from time to time party
thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263), dated June 30, 2014.

10.73

Amendment No. 6, dated as of July 22, 2014, to the Amended and Restated Superpriority
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2013, by and among Exide Technologies,
a Debtor and a Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as US Borrower,
Exide Global Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower, the lenders from time to time party
thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263), dated July 28, 2014.

10.74

Amendment No. 7, dated as of July 25, 2014, to the Amended and Restated Superpriority
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2013, by and among Exide Technologies,
a Debtor and a Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as US Borrower,
Exide Global Holding Netherlands C.V., as Foreign Borrower, the lenders from time to time party
thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263), dated July 28, 2014.

16.1
Letter dated June 13, 2012 from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to the Securities and Exchange
Commission regarding a change in the Company's Certifying Accountants, incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 16.1 to the Company's Report on Form 8-K (file no. 001-11263) dated June 14, 2012.

*21 Subsidiaries of Exide Technologies.

*23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

*23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

*31.1 Certification of Robert M. Caruso, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*31.2
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Certification of Phillip A. Damaska, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to
Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*32.1 Certifications pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*101.INS XBRL Instance Document.

*101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
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*101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

*101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

*101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

*101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

* Filed with this Report.
† Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

+
Pursuant to a request for confidential treatment, portions of this exhibit have been redacted from the publicly
filed document and have been furnished separately to the Securities and Exchange Commission as required by
Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

#
Pursuant to a request for confidential treatment, which has been granted, portions of this exhibit have been
redacted from the publicly filed document and have been furnished separately to the Securities and Exchange
Commission as required by Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Exide Technologies:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Exide Technologies and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss,
stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended March 31, 2014. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the consolidated financial
statement schedule for 2014 and 2013 listed in the accompanying index. We also have audited Exide Technologies'
internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). Exide Technologies' management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements and consolidated
financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule and an opinion on Exide Technologies' internal control over
financial reporting based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Exide Technologies and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended March 31, 2014, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule for 2014
and 2013, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly,
in all material respects, the information set forth therein. Also in our opinion, Exide Technologies maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2014, based on criteria established
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in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO).
The accompanying consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule have been prepared assuming
that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company's bankruptcy filing and related matters raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in note 1. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
/s/ KPMG LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
July 31, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Exide Technologies:

In our opinion, the consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive loss, of stockholders' equity (deficit) and
of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2012 present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and
cash flows of Exide Technologies and its subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2012, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial
statement schedule for the year ended March 31, 2012 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audit. We conducted our audit of
these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Atlanta, GA
June 7, 2012
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EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Net sales $2,855,433 $2,971,698 $3,084,650
Cost of sales 2,470,973 2,564,403 2,599,822
Gross profit 384,460 407,295 484,828
Selling and administrative expenses 365,483 389,161 395,075
Restructuring and impairments, net 27,989 71,495 10,878
Operating income (loss) (9,012 ) (53,361 ) 78,875
Other (income) expense, net (5,471 ) 2,527 5,111
Interest expense, net 114,442 65,635 71,804
Income (loss) before reorganization items, net (117,983 ) (121,523 ) 1,960
Reorganization items, net 93,589 1,653 1,209
Income (loss) before income taxes (211,572 ) (123,176 ) 751
Income tax provision (benefit) 6,158 99,915 (55,203 )
Net income (loss) (217,730 ) (223,091 ) 55,954
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 80 308 (785 )
Net income (loss) attributable to Exide Technologies $(217,810 ) $(223,399 ) $56,739
Earnings (loss) per share
Basic $(2.80 ) $(2.89 ) $0.73
Diluted $(2.80 ) $(2.89 ) $0.69
Weighted average shares
Basic 77,925 77,270 77,667
Diluted 77,925 77,270 82,081

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands) 

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Net income (loss) $(217,730 ) $(223,091 ) $55,954
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 23,745 (17,359 ) (22,420 )
Gain (loss) on derivatives qualifying as hedges, net — 127 (117 )
Change in defined benefit liabilities, net 12,245 (13,719 ) (43,050 )
Total comprehensive loss (181,740 ) (254,042 ) (9,633 )
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling
interests 80 302 (339 )

Comprehensive loss attributable to Exide Technologies $(181,820 ) $(254,344 ) $(9,294 )
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $103,711 $104,289
Accounts receivable, net 495,447 504,795
Inventories 483,218 488,221
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 47,874 33,316
Deferred income taxes 16,339 11,470
Total current assets 1,146,589 1,142,091
Property, plant and equipment, net 576,412 558,115
Other assets:
Goodwill and intangibles, net 142,381 145,310
Deferred income taxes 116,736 107,865
Other noncurrent assets 50,670 51,049
Total other assets 309,787 304,224
Total assets $2,032,788 $2,004,430
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings $4,058 $22,017
Current maturities of long-term debt 288,386 60,131
Accounts payable 268,828 435,736
Accrued expenses 263,904 281,432
Deferred income taxes 4,435 8,721
Total current liabilities 829,611 808,037
Long-term debt 15,533 693,864
Noncurrent retirement obligations 166,692 233,404
Deferred income taxes 25,332 17,171
Other noncurrent liabilities 64,493 98,022
Liabilities not subject to compromise 1,101,661 1,850,498
Liabilities subject to compromise 950,643 —
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued and
outstanding — —

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000 shares authorized, 79,083 and 79,253
shares issued and outstanding 791 793

Additional paid-in capital 1,139,850 1,139,030
Accumulated deficit (1,157,124 ) (939,312 )
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (11,449 ) (47,439 )
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) attributable to Exide Technologies (27,932 ) 153,072
Noncontrolling interests 8,416 860
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (19,516 ) 153,932
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) $2,032,788 $2,004,430
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) 
(In thousands)

Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Defined
Benefit Plans

Derivatives
Qualifying
as Hedges

Cumulative
Translation
Adjustment

Non-
controlling
Interest

As of March 31, 2011 $775 $1,127,124 $(772,652 ) $(26,893 ) $ (10 ) $ 76,443 $1,102
Net income (loss) — — 56,739 — — — (785 )
Defined benefit plans, net
of tax of $15,472 — — — (43,050 ) — — —

Translation adjustment — — — — — (22,866 ) 446
Net recognition of
unrealized loss on
derivatives, net of tax of
$49

— — — — (117 ) — —

Common stock
issuance/other 8 1,141 — — — — (205 )

Stock compensation — 5,152 — — — — —
As of March 31, 2012 $783 $1,133,417 $(715,913 ) $(69,943 ) $ (127 ) $ 53,577 $558
Net income (loss) — — (223,399 ) — — — 308
Defined benefit plans, net
of tax of $2,436 — — — (13,719 ) — — —

Translation adjustment — — — — — (17,354 ) (5 )
Net recognition of
unrealized loss on
derivatives, net of tax of
$49

— — — — 127 — —

Common stock
issuance/other 10 (11 ) — — — — (1 )

Stock compensation — 5,624 — — — — —
As of March 31, 2013 $793 $1,139,030 $(939,312 ) $(83,662 ) $— $ 36,223 $860
Net income (loss) — — (217,810 ) — — — 80
Defined benefit plans, net
of tax $788 — — — 12,245 — — —

Translation adjustment — — — — — 23,745 —
Common stock
issuance/other (2 ) (769 ) (2 ) — — — 7,476

Stock compensation — 1,589 — — — — —
As of March 31, 2014 $791 $1,139,850 $(1,157,124) $(71,417 ) $— $ 59,968 $8,416
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $(217,730 ) $(223,091 ) $55,954
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 81,280 80,187 84,353
Unrealized gain on warrants — — (68 )
Loss on asset sales / impairments, net 2,946 60,152 3,773
Non-cash reorganization items 12,301 — —
Deferred income taxes (1,987 ) 93,178 (77,913 )
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,270 1,284 1,529
Non-cash stock compensation 1,589 5,624 5,152
Amortization of deferred financing costs 25,694 4,266 4,289
Currency remeasurement (gain) loss (4,321 ) 2,883 10,036
Changes in assets and liabilities
Receivables 28,665 (1,655 ) (9,899 )
Inventories 22,057 (33,644 ) 20,025
Other current assets (17,285 ) (2,144 ) 866
Payables (110,043 ) 57,375 (9,099 )
Accrued expenses 48,643 12,812 13,131
Other noncurrent liabilities (23,003 ) (26,193 ) (25,236 )
Other, net (4,687 ) (3,017 ) 14,875
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (154,611 ) 28,017 91,768
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (81,769 ) (101,501 ) (109,836 )
Insurance proceeds 4,432 3,290 —
Proceeds from asset sales 5,176 18,965 635
Net cash used in investing activities (72,161 ) (79,246 ) (109,201 )
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings (16,000 ) 2,965 12,408
Increase in other debt 269,664 — 5,409
Financing fees and other (30,542 ) (1,505 ) (544 )
Net cash provided by financing activities 223,122 1,460 17,273
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3,072 (1,310 ) (5,835 )
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (578 ) (51,079 ) (5,995 )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 104,289 155,368 161,363
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $103,711 $104,289 $155,368

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the period:
Interest $27,912 $68,872 $69,194
Income taxes (net of refunds) 10,169 10,452 23,907
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
DEBTOR-IN-POSSESSION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2014 

(1) PROCEEDINGS UNDER CHAPTER 11 OF THE BANKRUPTCY CODE
Reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Exide Technologies (referred to together with its
subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise, as "Exide" or the "Company") and all of its majority-owned
subsidiaries. Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context otherwise requires, references to "fiscal year" refer to
the period ended March 31 of that year (e.g. "fiscal 2014" refers to the period beginning April 1, 2013 and ending
March 31, 2014).
On June 10, 2013, Exide Technologies filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code, in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware under the caption In re Exide
Technologies, case number 13-11482. The Company's subsidiaries, foreign and domestic, have been excluded from
the Chapter 11 Case, continue to operate their businesses without supervision from the Bankruptcy Court, and are not
subject to the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code.
The Company filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 as it offered the most efficient alternative to restructure the
Company's balance sheet and access new working capital while continuing to operate in the ordinary course of
business. Factors leading to the reorganization included the Company's significant debt burden, the adverse impact of
economic conditions on the Company's markets, particularly the U.S. and European markets, ongoing competitive
pressures, loss of key customers over several years, the unplanned production shut down of one of the Company's
facilities, and higher commodity costs including lead and purchased spent batteries. These factors contributed to
higher costs and lower revenues and have resulted in significant operating losses and material adverse reductions in
cash flows, severely affecting the Company's financial condition and its ability to make debt payments coming due.
Downgrades of the Company's credit rating and loss of credit insurance used by certain suppliers adversely affected
supplier trade credit terms, further affecting the Company's liquidity.
Exide is currently operating as a debtor-in-possession under the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and the
applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code. In general, as a debtor-in-possession, Exide is authorized to continue to
operate as an ongoing business but may not engage in transactions outside the ordinary course of business without the
prior approval of the Bankruptcy Court.
Exide received Bankruptcy Court approval for, among other things, access to a $500.0 million debtor-in-possession
financing facility ("DIP Credit Facility") on the terms set forth in the Amended and Restated Superpriority
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement ("DIP Credit Agreement"), the ability to pay pre-petition and post-petition
employee wages, salaries and benefits, and to honor customer warranty, sales returns and rebate obligations.
Subsequent to the Petition Date, the Company received approval from the Bankruptcy Court to pay or otherwise honor
certain pre-petition obligations generally designed to stabilize the Company's operations including employee
obligations, taxes, and from limited available funds, pre-petition claims of certain critical vendors, certain customer
programs, limited foreign supplier obligations, adequate protection payments, and certain other pre-petition claims.
Additionally, the Company has been paying and intends to continue to pay undisputed post-petition obligations in the
ordinary course of business.
The DIP Credit Agreement is used to supplement cash flows from operations during the reorganization process
including the payment of post-petition ordinary course trade and other payables, the payment of certain permitted
pre-petition claims, working capital needs, letter of credit requirements, and other general corporate purposes. The
DIP Credit Facility contains certain financial covenants. Failure to maintain compliance with these covenants would
result in an event of default which would restrict the availability of funds necessary to maintain the Company's
operations and assist in funding the Company's reorganization plans.
The Chapter 11 petition triggered defaults on substantially all debt obligations of the Company and, as a result, the
Company's Senior Secured Notes and Convertible Notes have been accelerated and are due and payable. Under
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Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code, actions to collect pre-petition indebtedness, as well as most other pending
litigation, are stayed. Absent an order of the Bankruptcy Court, substantially all pre-petition liabilities are subject to
settlement under a plan of reorganization approved by the Bankruptcy Court. There can be no assurance that a plan
will be proposed by the Company or confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court or that any such plan will be successfully
implemented.
On August 9, 2013, the Company filed with the Bankruptcy Court schedules and statements of financial affairs setting
forth, among other things, the assets and liabilities of the Company as shown by the Company's books and records on
the
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petition date, subject to the assumptions contained in certain notes filed in connection therewith. The schedules and
statements of financial affairs are subject to further amendment or modification. On September 13, 2013, the
Bankruptcy Court entered an order which, among other things, established October 31, 2013, as the general bar date
for filing claims and December 9, 2013 as the bar date for claims by certain governmental authorities. The claims bar
date order was supplemented by a further order on October 24, 2013 extending the bar date to January 31, 2014 solely
with respect to personal injury claims related to the Company's secondary lead recycling facility in Vernon,
California. As the distribution to holders of allowed claims will likely be addressed by a plan of reorganization that
has not yet been filed, the amount of distribution with respect to allowed claims is not presently ascertainable.
At this time it is not possible to predict the ultimate effect of the Chapter 11 reorganization on our business, various
creditors and security holders, or when it may be possible to emerge from Chapter 11. The Company believes that
under any reorganization plan the Company's common stock would likely be substantially diluted or canceled in its
entirety. Accordingly, the Company urges that caution be exercised with respect to existing and future investments in
any of these securities or other Company claims. In addition, the Company's common stock has been delisted from
trading on the Nasdaq Stock Market ("NASDAQ"). Further, it is also expected that the Company's Senior Secured
Notes and Convertible Notes will suffer substantial impairment.
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes continuity of
operations and realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern is predicated upon, among other things, the confirmation of a reorganization
plan, compliance with the provisions of the DIP Credit Agreement, the ability of the Company to generate cash flows
from operations, and where necessary, obtaining financing sources sufficient to satisfy future obligations. As a result
of the Chapter 11 filing, and consideration of various strategic alternatives, including possible assets sales, the
Company expects that any reorganization plan will likely result in material changes to the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Given this uncertainty there is substantial doubt about our
ability to continue as a going concern.
The Consolidated Financial Statements do not include adjustments, if any, to reflect the possible future effects on the
recoverability and classification of recorded assets or the amounts and classifications of liabilities that may result from
the outcome of these uncertainties.
Reorganization Costs:
Reorganization items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements included costs directly related to the Chapter
11 proceedings, as follows:

For the Twelve Months
Ended
March 31, 2014
(In thousands)

Professional fees $77,889
Write off debt financing costs/other 12,301
Other direct costs 3,399

$93,589
Liabilities Subject To Compromise:
The amounts of the various liabilities that are subject to compromise are set forth below. These amounts represent the
Company's estimate of known or potential pre-petition claims to be resolved in connection with the Chapter 11
proceedings. Such claims remain subject to future adjustments which may result from: (i) negotiations; (ii) actions of
the Bankruptcy Court; (iii) disputed claims; (iv) rejection of executory contracts and unexpired leases; (v) the
determination as to the value of any collateral securing claims; (vi) proofs of claim; or (vii) other events. Such future
adjustments will likely be material. Liabilities
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subject to compromise include the following:
March 31, 2014
(In thousands)

Debt $788,376
Accrued interest 10,515
Accounts payable 72,275
Retirement obligations 52,864
Restructuring reserve 7,274
Other accrued liabilities 19,339

$950,643
While operating as a Debtor-in-Possession under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, the Debtor may sell, otherwise
dispose of, or liquidate assets, or settle liabilities, subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court or otherwise as
permitted in the ordinary course of business, in amounts other than those reflected in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Moreover, a plan of reorganization could materially change the amounts and classifications of assets and
liabilities in the historical Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Exide Technologies and all of its majority owned
subsidiaries in which it exercises control. Investments in affiliates of less than a 20.0% interest are generally
accounted for by the cost method. Investments in 20.0% to 50.0% owned companies are generally accounted for by
the equity method. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.
In fiscal 2012, the Company was apprised of allegations of intentional misstatement of production and inventory
entries at the Company's Portugal recycling facility. As a result of the investigation, the Company determined that
intentional misstatements of production and inventories were made, which resulted in overstatements of inventory and
understatements of cost of sales over a multi-year period. The Company concluded that the amounts necessary to
correct these errors were not material to fiscal 2012 full year results, and the Company concluded that the amounts
associated with each of the relevant prior fiscal periods impacted were not material. The Company's financial results
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 included a pre-tax out of period adjustment of $4.6 million for the
Transportation Europe and ROW segment.
Nature of Operations
The Company is one of the largest manufacturers and suppliers of lead-acid batteries for transportation and industrial
energy applications in the world. The Company manufactures industrial and transportation batteries in the Americas,
Europe, India, and Australia. The Company’s transportation batteries include starting, lighting and ignition batteries for
cars, trucks, off-road vehicles, agricultural and construction vehicles, motorcycles, recreational vehicles, marine, and
other applications. The Company markets its transportation batteries to a broad range of retailers and distributors of
replacement batteries and automotive OEM.
The Company’s industrial batteries consist of Motive Power batteries, such as those used in forklift trucks and other
electric vehicles, and Network Power batteries used for back-up power applications, such as those used for
telecommunication systems.
The Company has four reportable business segments: Transportation Americas, Transportation Europe and Rest of
World (“ROW”), Industrial Energy Americas, and Industrial Energy Europe and ROW. For a discussion of the
Company’s segments, see Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Major Customers and Concentration of Credit
The Company has a number of major end-user customers, retail and OEM, both in the Americas and Europe. No
single customer accounted for more than 10.0% of consolidated net sales during any of the fiscal years presented.
Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currencies of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are primarily the respective local currencies. Assets
and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries and affiliates are translated into U.S. Dollars at the year-end
exchange rate, and revenues and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates. Translation gains and
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component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency gains and
losses from certain intercompany transactions are also recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss). All other foreign currency gains and losses are included in other expense (income), net.
Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid instruments with maturities at the time of acquisition of three months or less.
Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity of these
instruments.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated probable losses resulting from the inability of
the Company’s customers to make required payments. The Company continues to assess the adequacy of the reserves
for doubtful accounts based on the financial condition of the Company’s customers and other external factors that may
impact collectibility. The majority of the Company’s accounts receivable are due from trade customers. Credit is
extended based on an evaluation of the Company’s customers’ financial condition and generally, collateral is not
required. Payment terms vary and accounts receivable are stated in the Consolidated Financial Statements at amounts
due from customers net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts outstanding for longer than the payment
terms are considered past due. The Company considers a number of factors in determining the allowance for doubtful
accounts, including the length of time trade accounts receivable are past due, the customers’ current ability to pay their
obligations to the Company, the Company’s previous loss history, and the condition of the general economy and the
industry as a whole. The Company writes off accounts receivable when they become uncollectible. The Company’s
accounts receivable balance at March 31, 2014 and 2013 reflects an allowance for doubtful accounts of $19.5 million
and $20.1 million, respectively.
Inventories
Inventories, which consist of material, labor and overhead, are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first-in,
first-out (“FIFO”) method. The Company writes down its inventory to estimated net realizable value (when below
historical cost) based on assumptions of future demand and market conditions.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The range of original
estimated useful lives is: buildings and improvements, 25-40 years; machinery and equipment, 3-14 years. Cost and
accumulated depreciation for property retired or disposed of are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss on
disposal is credited or charged to earnings. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as
incurred. Additions, improvements and major renewals are capitalized.
Deferred Financing Costs
Deferred financing costs are amortized to interest expense over the life of the related debt.
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets
The Company’s long-lived assets include property, plant and equipment and identified intangible assets. Long-lived
assets (other than indefinite lived intangible assets) are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, and are reviewed
for impairment whenever changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Recoverability
of asset groups to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of long-lived assets to future
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by these asset groups. If such asset groups are considered to be
impaired, the impairment recognized is the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset group exceeds the fair
value of the asset group. Assets held for sale are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
estimated costs of disposal and are no longer depreciated. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment on both an annual basis and whenever changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable. The fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assets is based upon the Company’s estimates of future cash
flows and other factors including discount rates to determine the fair value of the respective assets. If these long-lived
assets or their related assumptions change in the future, the Company may be required to record impairment charges.
Sales Returns and Allowances
The Company provides for an allowance for product returns and/or allowances. Based upon its manufacturing re-work
process, the Company believes that the majority of its product returns are not the result of product defects. The
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Company recognizes the estimated cost of product returns as a reduction of sales in the period in which the related
revenue is recognized. The product return estimates are based upon historical trends and claims experience, and
include an assessment of the anticipated lag between the date of sale and claim/return date.
Income Taxes
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The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method in accounting for deferred taxes. If it is more
likely than not that some portion, or all, of a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is
recognized.
Revenue Recognition
The Company records sales when revenue is earned. Shipping terms are generally FOB shipping point and revenue is
recognized when product is shipped to the customer. In limited cases, terms are FOB destination and in these cases,
revenue is recognized when product is delivered to the customer’s delivery site.
Accounting for Shipping and Handling Costs
The Company records shipping and handling costs incurred in cost of sales and records shipping and handling costs
billed to customers in net sales.
Advertising
The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.
Net Earnings (Loss) Per Share 
The Company computes basic earnings (loss) per share by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income
(loss) by diluted weighted average shares outstanding. Potentially dilutive shares include the assumed exercise of
stock options and the assumed vesting of restricted stock and stock unit awards (using the treasury stock method) as
well as the assumed conversion of the Company’s floating rate Convertible Notes, if dilutive. The potential dilutive
effect of the assumed conversion of convertible debt is determined using the if-converted method, and considers both
the impact of incremented common shares after an assumed conversion, and the related addition to net income (loss)
of the after-tax interest recognized during the period on the convertible debt.
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05, Foreign Currency Matters (Topic 830): Parent's Accounting for
the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a
Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity. The amendments in this update provide clarification regarding
the release of a cumulative translation adjustment into net income when a parent either sells a part or all of its
investment in a foreign entity or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets
within a foreign entity. The guidance will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2014, and interim periods within those annual periods. The guidance will be applied prospectively. We will adopt this
standard in our first quarter ending June 30, 2015.  We do not expect the standard to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.
In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax
Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. The
amendments in this update provide guidance on the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits and will better reflect
the manner in which an entity would settle, at the reporting date, any additional income taxes that would result from
the disallowance of a tax position when net operating loss carryforwards, similar tax losses, or tax credit
carryforwards exist. The guidance will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013,
and interim periods within those annual periods. The guidance will be applied prospectively. We will adopt this
standard in our first quarter ending June 30, 2014. We do not expect the standard to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.
(3) DEBTOR'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements reflect the results of operations, financial position, and cash flows of the Debtor only,
including certain amounts and activities between Debtor and non-Debtor subsidiaries of the Company, which were
eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Debtor's Statements of Operations
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For the Twelve Months
Ended
March 31, 2014
(In thousands)

Net sales $1,125,058
Cost of sales 978,061
Gross profit 146,997
Selling and administrative expenses 153,999
Restructuring and impairments, net 16,745
Operating loss (23,747 )
Other income, net (25,509 )
Loss in net earnings of subsidiaries 29,770
Interest expense, net 97,864
Loss before reorganization items (125,872 )
Reorganization items 91,769
Loss before income taxes (217,641 )
Income tax provision 169
Net loss attributable to Debtor $(217,810 )
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Debtor's Balance Sheet
March 31, 2014
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $17,349
Accounts receivable, net 133,384
Non-Debtor receivables 40,550
Inventories 196,129
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 37,594
Total current assets 425,006
Property, plant and equipment, net 228,297
Other assets:
Investments in non-Debtor subsidiaries 400,048
Non-Debtor loans 240,505
Other noncurrent assets 84,734
Total other assets 725,287
Total assets $1,378,590
LIABILITIES AND DEBTOR'S EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $284,625
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 110,812
Total current liabilities 395,437
Other noncurrent liabilities 60,442
Liabilities not subject to compromise 455,879
Liabilities subject to compromise 950,643
DEBTOR'S EQUITY

Total Debtor's equity (27,932 )
Total liabilities and Debtor's equity $1,378,590
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Debtor's Statements of Cash Flows
For the Twelve Months
Ended
March 31, 2014
(In thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net cash used in operating activities $(216,095 )
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (38,374 )
Proceeds from asset sales 169
Net cash used in investing activities (38,205 )
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Increase in debt 275,000
Financing fees and other (29,770 )
Net cash provided by financing activities 245,230
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (9,070 )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 26,419
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $17,349
(4) ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVES
The Company uses derivative contracts to hedge the volatility arising from changes in the fair value of certain assets
and liabilities that are subject to market risk, such as interest rates on debt instruments, foreign currency exchange
rates, and certain commodities. The Company does not enter into derivative contracts for trading or speculative
purposes.
The Company recognizes outstanding derivative instruments as assets or liabilities, based on measurements of their
fair values. If a derivative qualifies for hedge accounting, gains or losses in its fair value that offset changes in the fair
value of the asset or liability being hedged (“effective” gains or losses) are reported in accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income, and subsequently recorded to earnings only as the related variability on the hedged transaction is
recorded in earnings. If a derivative does not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in its fair value are reported in
earnings immediately upon occurrence, and the classification of cash flows from these instruments is consistent with
that of the transactions being hedged. Derivatives qualify for hedge accounting if they are designated as hedging
instruments at their inception, and if they are highly effective in achieving changes in fair value or cash flows that
offset the fair value / cash flow changes of the assets or liabilities being hedged. Regardless of a derivative’s
accounting designation, changes in its fair value or cash flows that are not offset by fair value / cash flow changes in
the asset or liability being hedged are considered ineffective, and are recognized in earnings immediately.
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The following tables set forth information on the presentation of these derivative instruments in the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheet March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Asset Derivatives:
Commodity swaps / forwards Current assets $— $141
Liability Derivatives:
Commodity swaps / forwards Current liabilities 1,709 —
Foreign exchange forwards Current liabilities — 25

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Foreign Exchange Forwards Other income, net
(Gain) / loss $(25 ) $(2,652 ) $(6,051 )
Commodity Swaps / Forwards
(Gain) / loss Cost of sales 1,587 1,302 3,970
Interest Rate Swap
(Gain) / loss Interest expense, net (94 ) (2,053 ) (1,820 )

(5) GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill and intangibles, net consisted of the following:

Goodwill
(not subject 
to
amortization)

Trademarks
and
Tradenames
(not subject to
amortization)

Trademarks
and
Tradenames
(subject to
amortization)

Customer
Relationships Technology Total

(In thousands)
As of March 31, 2014
Gross amount $916 $61,532 $13,996 $107,993 $26,030 $210,467
Accumulated amortization — — (10,961 ) (44,349 ) (12,776 ) (68,086 )

$916 $61,532 $3,035 $63,644 $13,254 $142,381

As of March 31, 2013
Gross amount $1,014 $60,105 $13,671 $104,534 $25,411 $204,735
Accumulated amortization — — (9,627 ) (38,591 ) (11,207 ) (59,425 )

$1,014 $60,105 $4,044 $65,943 $14,204 $145,310

Amortization of intangible assets for fiscal year 2014, 2013, and 2012 was $6.8 million, $6.9 million, and $8.2
million, respectively. Excluding the impact of any future acquisitions (if any), the Company anticipates annual
amortization of intangible assets for each of the next five years to be approximately $6.4 million. Intangible assets
have been recorded at the legal entity level and are subject to foreign currency fluctuation.
(6) INVENTORIES
Inventories, valued using the FIFO method, consist of:
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March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Raw materials $94,694 $89,925
Work-in-process 115,731 106,194
Finished goods 272,793 292,102

$483,218 $488,221
(7) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment, net consist of:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Land $54,725 $55,443
Buildings and improvements 255,034 253,960
Machinery and equipment 816,889 802,414
Construction in progress 53,455 59,176

1,180,103 1,170,993
Accumulated depreciation (603,691 ) (612,878 )
Property, plant and equipment, net $576,412 $558,115
Depreciation expense was $73.0 million, $71.8 million, and $74.1 million, for fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively.
(8) OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
Other noncurrent assets consisted of the following:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Deposits (1) $4,040 $3,885
Deferred financing costs 14,773 16,080
Investment in affiliates 549 1,877
Capitalized software, net 3,864 3,993
Loan to affiliate — 1,005
Retirement plans 14,941 17,655
Other 12,503 6,554

$50,670 $51,049

(1)
Deposits principally represent amounts held by beneficiaries as cash collateral for the Company’s contingent
obligations with respect to certain environmental matters, workers' compensation insurance, and operating lease
commitments.

(9) DEBT
At March 31, 2014 and 2013, short-term borrowings of $4.1 million and $22.0 million, respectively, consisted of
borrowings under various operating lines of credit and working capital facilities maintained by certain of the
Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries. Certain of these borrowings are collateralized by receivables, inventories and/or
property. These borrowing facilities, which are typically for one-year renewable terms, generally bear interest at
current local market rates plus up to one percent per annum. The weighted average interest rate on short-term
borrowings was approximately 7.1% and 5.5% at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Total long-term debt at March 31, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

DIP credit facility $284,625 $—
8 5/8% senior secured notes due 2018 (1) — 675,000
Floating rate convertible senior subordinated notes due 2013 (1) — 55,750
Other, including capital lease obligations (see Note 13) and other loans at
interest rates averaging approximately 6.2% due in installments through 2019 19,294 20,457

303,919 751,207
Fair value adjustments on hedged debt — 2,788

303,919 753,995
Current maturities (288,386 ) (60,131 )
Total long-term debt $15,533 $693,864

(1)The pre-petition debt of the Debtor was reclassified to liabilities subject to compromise. Refer to Note 1 to theConsolidated Financial Statements for additional information on the Chapter 11 proceedings.
Total debt, including short-term borrowings, at March 31, 2014 and 2013 was $308.0 million, excluding amounts
included in liabilities subject to compromise, and $776.0 million, respectively.
In connection with the Chapter 11 Case, the Bankruptcy Court has approved the DIP Credit Facility on the terms set
forth in the DIP Credit Agreement. The DIP Credit Agreement provides for senior secured super-priority
Debtor-in-Possession financing facilities in an aggregate amount of up to $500.0 million, consisting of a $225.0
million senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility (the "ABL revolving credit facility"), subject to a
borrowing base, and a $275.0 million "last out" term loan facility. Effective July 12, 2013, the DIP Credit Agreement
was amended and restated to provide a $25.0 million swingline facility sub-limit, as well as the creation of two
separate tranches in the $225.0 million revolver facility: (i) a $110.0 million facility under which only advances
denominated in U.S. Dollars can be drawn; and (ii) a $115.0 million facility under which advances denominated in
U.S. Dollars or Euros can be drawn.
Effective July 24, 2013, the DIP Credit Agreement was amended to permit an increase in the quarterly maximum
capital expenditure limits of $25.0 million by $2.5 million should the preceding quarter’s EBITDA exceed 110.0% of
the DIP budget, with the rolling four quarter maximum capital expenditures increased to $90.0 million for the four
quarters ending after March 31, 2014.
Effective October 9, 2013, a second amendment provided additional flexibility to the Company with regard to certain
non-core asset transactions and further clarified certain terms of the DIP Credit Agreement. The second amendment
revised the definition of "Permitted Liens" to permit contractual encumbrances in connection with certain permitted
dispositions under the DIP Credit Agreement. The second amendment further changed the definition of "Total
Adjusted Operating Cash Flow" to exclude the effect of Frisco Escrow Account receipts from "Total Adjusted
Operating Cash Flow."
Effective May 28, 2014, the Company entered into the third amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which, among
other things, extended to June 30, 2014 the milestone for the Company to file a plan of reorganization with the
Bankruptcy Court. The third amendment increased the quarterly and rolling four quarter capital expenditure limits
from $25.0 million and $90.0 million to $36.0 million and $120.0 million, respectively. The third amendment also
excluded from the definition of "Capital Expenditure" expenditures made in connection with the replacement,
substitution, restoration or repair of assets funded through the receipt of insurance proceeds or other compensation
awards paid on account of a casualty loss. Finally, the third amendment increased the European factoring basket to
Euro 100.0 million from Euro 75.0 million and expanded the subsidiaries whose receivables can be factored to include
subsidiaries domiciled in Belgium, Denmark, Finland, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, and Sweden.
Effective June 27, 2014, the Company entered into the fourth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which
extended to July 31, 2014 the deadline for filing a plan of reorganization and eliminating the milestone related to
soliciting acceptance of the plan of reorganization. The fourth amendment also increased to $85.0 million from $75.0
million the letters of credit sublimit.

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

162



Also, effective on June 27, 2014, the Company entered into the fifth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which,
among other things, extended to August 15, 2014 the date by which the Company is required to deliver annual audited
financial statements and the related Compliance Certificate for the fiscal year of the Company ended March 31, 2014.
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On July 22, 2014, the Company entered into the sixth amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which, among other
things, sought to modify the DIP Credit Agreement as follows:

• eliminate restrictions on capital expenditures, modify the definition of EBITDA and adjust the minimum
EBITDA covenant to address lower anticipated future period earnings, and provide other covenant relief;

•

extend the maturity date of the loans made under the DIP Credit Agreement to December 31, 2014 ("the
Extension Amendment") effective upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, including, among other things,
the Company and members of the Unofficial Committee of Senior Secured Noteholders ("UNC") holding a
majority in principal amount of the Company's Senior Secured Notes entering into a customary plan support
agreement with respect to an Acceptable Plan of Reorganization, as that term is defined in the amended DIP
Credit Agreement; and

•

provide for $60.0 million in additional term loan financing (the "Upsizing Amendment"), which will be funded
pursuant to a commitment letter executed by certain members of the UNC to provide additional term loan financing
with net cash proceeds of $60.0 million, subject to satisfaction of certain conditions including approval by the
Bankruptcy Court.
On July 28, 2014, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the Upsizing Amendment.
On July 25, 2014, Exide entered into the seventh amendment to the DIP Credit Agreement, which eliminated the
milestone related to filing a plan of reorganization.
On June 30, 2014, the Company received a non-binding POR Proposal from the UNC, whose members hold a
substantial majority of the term loan component of the DIP Credit Facility and pre-petition senior secured notes. The
POR Proposal, which is subject to completion of definitive documentation and certain other conditions, provides
approximately $485.0 million in new capital, and is currently expected to be comprised of the following:

•
A preferred convertible equity capital commitment of approximately $300.0 million (a portion of which will be in the
form of a rights offering backstopped by certain members of the UNC and another portion in the form of a direct
investment by certain members of the UNC);
•A $185.0 million bond issuance also backstopped by certain members of the UNC; and

•An asset based loan facility for which commitments would be obtained from potential lenders in conjunction with theplan confirmation process.
The maturity date of the loans made under the DIP Credit Agreement is the earliest to occur of: (i) December 31,
2014; (ii) the effective date of the Debtor plan of reorganization; and (iii) the acceleration of such loans. The revolving
loans bear interest at the rate of LIBOR plus 3.25% and the term loan bears interest at a rate of 9.0%. The obligations
of the Borrowers under the DIP Credit Agreement are unconditionally guaranteed by certain material foreign
subsidiaries. In addition, the U.S. Borrower unconditionally guarantees the obligations of the Foreign Borrower.
Subject to certain exceptions, the obligations of the Borrowers and the guarantors under the DIP Credit Agreement
and the other loan documents are secured by first priority liens on specified assets of the Borrowers and the foreign
guarantors and 100.0% pledge of the equity interests of certain of the Borrowers' direct and indirect subsidiaries. The
DIP Credit Agreement requires the Borrowers to comply with financial covenants as defined by the agreement
relating to minimum liquidity, maximum capital expenditures, cumulative total adjusted operating cash flows,
minimum cumulative EBITDA, and minimum twelve month trailing EBITDA.
Events of default under the DIP Credit Agreement include, among others, failure to pay any principal, interest or other
amount due under the applicable credit agreement, breach of specific covenants, and a change of control of the
Company. Upon an event of default, the requisite lenders may declare the outstanding obligations under the DIP
Credit Agreement to be immediately due and payable and exercise other rights and remedies provided for thereunder.
Annual principal payments required under the DIP Credit Agreement and other long-term debt obligations at March
31, 2014 are as follows:

2015 $288,386
2016 2,336
2017 2,404
2018 2,495
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2019 2,246
2020 and beyond 6,052
Total $303,919

(10) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS AND POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE
BENEFITS
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In the U.S., the Company has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan that, while currently frozen, covers
substantially all hourly and salaried employees. In Europe and ROW, the Company sponsors several defined benefit
plans that cover substantially all employees who are not covered by statutory plans. For defined benefit plans, charges
to expense are based upon underlying assumptions established by the Company in consultation with its actuaries. In
most cases, the Europe and ROW defined benefit plans are not required to be funded.
The Company also has defined contribution plans in North America and Europe and ROW with related expense of
$7.2 million, $21.8 million, and $19.3 million, for fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. The decrease in defined
contribution plan expense in fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013 is primarily the result of suspending employer
contributions to the Company's U.S. defined contribution plan beginning June 1, 2013.
The Company provides certain retiree health care and life insurance benefits to a limited number of employees. The
Company accrues the estimated cost of providing post-retirement benefits during the employees’ applicable years of
service.
The following tables set forth the plans’ funded status and the amounts recognized in the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements at March 31, 2014 and 2013: 
Pension Benefits: For the Twelve Months Ended

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $697,535 $686,725
Service cost 2,272 2,384
Interest cost 28,639 29,711
Actuarial loss 7,080 31,284
Plan participants’ contributions 164 221
Benefits paid (35,021 ) (35,392 )
Currency translation 23,760 (13,586 )
Settlements and other (3,190 ) (3,812 )
Benefit obligation at end of period $721,239 $697,535
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period $497,577 $472,316
Actual return on plan assets 35,906 47,348
Employer contributions 16,589 25,400
Plan participants’ contributions 164 221
Benefits paid (35,021 ) (35,392 )
Currency translation 14,006 (8,505 )
Settlements and other (1,642 ) (3,811 )
Fair value of plan assets at end of period $527,579 $497,577
Reconciliation of funded status:
Benefit obligation at end of period $721,239 $697,535
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 527,579 497,577
Funded status (under) / over $(193,660 ) $(199,958 )
Amounts recognized in statement of financial position:
Noncurrent other assets $14,941 $17,655
Accrued expenses (9,645 ) (8,340 )
Noncurrent retirement obligations (198,956 ) (209,273 )
Net amount recognized at end of period (1) $(193,660 ) $(199,958 )
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Prior service cost $792 $799
Net actuarial loss 107,178 108,916
Net amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss $107,970 $109,715
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(1)Amounts above are before $40.3 million reclassification to liabilities subject to compromise. See Note 1 to theConsolidated Financial Statements.
Other Post-Retirement Benefits: For the Twelve Months Ended

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $26,025 $25,153
Service cost 749 700
Interest cost 977 1,046
Actuarial loss (gain) (4,296 ) 1,097
Plan participants’ contributions 214 120
Benefits paid (1,967 ) (1,859 )
Currency translation (813 ) (232 )
Benefit obligation at end of period $20,889 $26,025
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period $— $—
Employer contributions 1,753 1,739
Plan participants’ contributions 214 120
Benefits paid (1,967 ) (1,859 )
Fair value of plan assets at end of period $— $—
Reconciliation of funded status:
Benefit obligation at end of period $20,889 $26,025
Fair value of plan assets at end of period — —
Funded status (under) / over $(20,889 ) $(26,025 )
Amounts recognized in statement of financial position:
Accrued expenses $(1,691 ) $(1,894 )
Noncurrent retirement obligations (19,198 ) (24,131 )
Net amount recognized at end of period (1) $(20,889 ) $(26,025 )
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Prior service credit $(2,460 ) $(2,950 )
Net actuarial loss 5,276 10,478
Net amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss $2,816 $7,528

(1)Amounts above are before $12.5 million reclassification to liabilities subject to compromise. See Note 1 to theConsolidated Financial Statements.

Pension Other Post-Retirement
Disclosure Assumptions: Benefits Benefits
Weighted-average assumptions for: March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Discount rate 4.1 % 4.2 % 4.0 % 4.0 %
Rate of compensation increase 2.5 % 2.5 % n/a n/a

Pension Other Post-Retirement
Expense Assumptions: Benefits / Expense Benefits / Expense
Weighted-average assumptions
for: FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012

Discount rate 4.2 % 4.5 % 5.4 % 4.3 % 4.3 % 5.1 %
Expected return on plan assets 6.2 % 6.2 % 7.1 % n/a n/a n/a
Rate of compensation increase 2.5 % 2.5 % 2.6 % n/a n/a n/a
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For fiscal year 2014 pension benefit expense, the Company assumed an expected weighted average return on plan
assets of 6.2%. In developing this rate assumption, the Company evaluated input from third-party pension plan asset
managers, including their review of asset class return expectations and long-term inflation assumptions.
The changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive (loss) income at March 31,
2014 are as follows:

Pension
Benefits

Post-retirement
Health and Other
Benefits

(In thousands)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Net (gain) loss arising during the period $1,545 $(4,296 )
Net prior service cost during the period (65 ) 490
Net loss recognized during the period (4,657 ) (673 )
Exchange rate gain (loss) recognized during the period 1,432 (234 )
Total $(1,745 ) $(4,713 )
The following amounts are expected to be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into net
periodic benefit cost in the next fiscal year are as follows:

Pension
Benefits

Post-retirement
Health and Other
Benefits

(In thousands)
Prior service cost/(credit) $66 $(490 )
Actuarial loss 3,015 346
Total $3,081 $(144 )

Net Periodic Benefit Cost
The following tables set forth the plans’ expenses recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements:

Pension Benefits
For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $2,272 $2,384 $2,231
Interest cost 28,639 29,711 33,076
Expected return on plan assets (30,371 ) (29,012 ) (31,214 )
Amortization of:
Prior service cost 65 62 88
Actuarial loss 3,125 2,019 665
Net periodic benefit cost $3,730 $5,164 $4,846
The above excludes the impact of settlement and curtailment net (loss) gain of $(0.1) million, $(0.2) million, and
$0.05 million in fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.
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Other Post-Retirement Benefits
For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost $749 $700 $516
Interest cost 977 1,046 1,123
Amortization of:
Prior service cost (490 ) (490 ) (490 )
Actuarial loss 673 642 498
Net periodic benefit cost $1,909 $1,898 $1,647
The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets for the pension plans
with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $547.4 million, $541.6 million and $338.8 million,
respectively, as of March 31, 2014 and $553.6 million, $548.0 million and $336.0 million, respectively, as of March
31, 2013.
The accumulated benefit obligation for the Company’s pension plans was $714.9 million as of March 31, 2014.
Expected future benefit payments are as follows:

Other Post-Retirement
Pension
Benefits

Gross Expected
Benefit Payments

Fiscal Year (In thousands)
2015 $43,965 $ 1,691
2016 39,706 1,666
2017 40,402 1,639
2018 41,631 1,595
2019 41,709 1,537
2020 to 2024 216,496 6,804
Pension Plan Investment Strategy
The Company’s pension plans are invested in a diversified portfolio of investments consisting primarily of equity and
fixed income securities. The target asset allocation for the plan portfolio is based on a combination of financial,
demographic, and actuarial considerations, along with the advice of the Company’s investment advisory firm. The
plans’ current target allocation is a mix of approximately 40.0% equity investments and 60.0% long duration
fixed-income investments. The Company believes this target allocation will be effective in achieving the plans’
long-term investment objectives of:
•protecting the plan’s funded status from volatility
•optimizing the long-term return on plan assets sufficient to accommodate current and future pension obligations
•maintaining an acceptable level of risk for each asset category
The Company utilizes a principal investment manager to actively manage the assets of its U.S. plan. Based on its
underlying risk parameters, the Company has established investment guidelines for each investment manager within
which they have agreed to operate. These guidelines include criteria for identifying eligible and ineligible securities as
well as diversification criteria. In addition, investment managers are required to seek approval prior to making
investments in certain commodity contracts, illiquid investments, or futures or options strategies, and are prohibited
from engaging in certain transactions including the short selling of securities, borrowing money, or engaging in
futures or options strategies for purposes of speculation or leverage.
The Company’s non-U.S. pension plans are also managed by investment managers who are appointed by the trustees
of those plans. The investment strategies of those plans are similar to those of the U.S. plan, but are in some instances
influenced by local laws and regulations.
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The asset allocation for the Company’s pension plans by asset category are as follows:
Percentage of Plan Assets at Year End
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 1.2 % 1.0 %
Equity securities 35.4 % 40.0 %
Fixed income securities 61.7 % 57.0 %
Other 1.7 % 2.0 %
Total 100.0 % 100.0 %
Plan Contributions
The estimated fiscal 2015 pension plan contributions are $22.4 million and other post-retirement contributions are
$1.7 million. Cash contributions to the Company’s pension plans are generally made in accordance with minimum
regulatory requirements.
The Company expects that cumulative contributions to its pension plans will total approximately $104.2 million from
fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2019, and contributions to its other post-retirement benefit plans will total approximately $8.1
million from fiscal 2015 to fiscal 2019.
Health Care Cost Trends
Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for other post-retirement
benefits. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects: 

One Percentage-
Point Increase

One Percentage-
Point Decrease

(In thousands)
Effect on total of service and interest cost components $369 $282
Effect on the post-retirement benefit obligation $2,232 $1,827

(11) STOCK BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
The Company accounts for stock based compensation by recognizing the cost resulting from all share-based payment
transactions in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company uses fair value as the basis for measuring the
cost of such compensation. The Company generally recognizes compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the
period the award is earned by the employee.
The Company’s stock incentive plan provides incentives and awards to employees and directors of the Company.
Under the plan, all employees are eligible to receive awards. The plan permits the granting of stock options, restricted
stock, restricted stock units, and performance awards.
Under the terms of the plan, stock options are generally subject to a three-year vesting schedule, and generally expire
10 years from the option grant date. Restricted stock and restricted stock units are generally subject to a three to
five-year vesting schedule. In addition, as part of their annual compensation, each non-employee member of the
Company’s Board of Directors receives restricted stock units. These awards are 100.0% vested one year after the grant
date, but are not deliverable until the director has completed his or her service on the board. The vesting schedules for
the awards are subject to certain change in control provisions, including full vesting if an employee is terminated
within 12 months of a change in control.
Total compensation cost related to stock compensation plans was $1.6 million, $5.6 million, and $5.2 million for
fiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. As of March 31, 2014, total compensation cost related to non-vested awards
not yet recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements was $1.0 million, which is expected to be
recognized in fiscal 2015. No new awards were granted in fiscal 2014.
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Stock Option Awards
The Company did not issue stock options during fiscal 2014, 2013, or 2012. The following table includes information
about stock options: 

Number of Stock
Options
(In thousands)

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual
Life (Years)

Shares under option:
Outstanding at March 31, 2011 3,100 $8.02 6.0
Forfeited (228 ) 9.01
Outstanding at March 31, 2012 2,872 $7.94 5.0
Forfeited (4 ) 6.29
Outstanding at March 31, 2013 2,868 $7.94 4.0
Forfeited (1,223 ) 7.96
Outstanding at March 31, 2014 1,645 $7.93 3.1
Vested and Exercisable at:
March 31, 2014 1,645 $7.93 3.1
March 31, 2013 2,868 $7.94 4.0
March 31, 2012 2,786 $7.99 4.9
Restricted Stock Awards
During fiscal 2013, and 2012, 0.2 million, and 1.4 million shares of restricted stock and/or restricted stock units were
approved to be granted to certain eligible employees.
Restricted stock transactions are as follows: 

Number of
Shares

Weighted-Average
Fair Value

(In thousands)
Outstanding (non-vested) at March 31, 2013 1,503 $4.24
Vested (985 ) $4.63
Forfeited (137 ) $3.44
Outstanding (non-vested) at March 31, 2014 381 $4.10
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(12) INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes includes federal, state and foreign taxes currently payable and those deferred because
of net operating losses and temporary differences between the Consolidated Financial Statements and tax bases of
assets and liabilities. The components of income (loss) before income taxes, and the provision (benefit) for income
taxes are as follows:

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Income (loss) before income taxes:
U.S. $(188,117 ) $(131,563 ) $(30,726 )
Foreign (23,455 ) 8,387 31,477

$(211,572 ) $(123,176 ) $751
Income tax provision (benefit):
Current
U.S. $2,279 $440 $(825 )
Foreign 5,866 6,297 23,535

8,145 6,737 22,710
Deferred
U.S. (2,172 ) 87,468 (9,809 )
Foreign 185 5,710 (68,104 )

(1,987 ) 93,178 (77,913 )
Total income tax provision (benefit) $6,158 $99,915 $(55,203 )
Major differences between the federal statutory rate and the effective tax rate are as follows: 

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Federal statutory rate 35.0  % 35.0  % 35.0  %
Dividend income — — (0.2 )
Withholding tax — (2.2 ) —
Change in tax rate — 0.2 (6.7 )
Change in uncertain tax positions 0.6 2.4 (312.1 )
Local income tax provision (benefit) (0.9 ) (1.4 ) 527.0
Change in valuation allowances (40.6 ) (123.3 ) (8,109.8 )
Revaluation of warrants — — (3.2 )
Rate differences on foreign subsidiaries 4.4 10.5 (1,795.2 )
Executive compensation — — 72.2
Thin cap disallowance (1.0 ) (0.7 ) 84.1
Spain tax settlement — — 1,787.0
Sub part F income — — 28.0
Other, net (0.4 ) (1.6 ) 343.3
Effective tax rate (2.9 )% (81.1 )% (7,350.6 )%
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The following is a summary of the significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities: 
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Deferred tax assets: (In thousands)
Operating loss and tax credit carryforwards $315,217 $289,895
Compensation reserves 59,984 66,709
Environmental reserves 9,014 9,235
Sales Returns 8,159 8,281
Other 43,157 11,837
Valuation allowance (286,931 ) (242,735 )

$148,600 $143,222
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant, and equipment $(6,002 ) $(11,151 )
Foreign exchange (917 ) (76 )
Intangible assets (38,373 ) (38,552 )

(45,292 ) (49,779 )
Net deferred tax assets $103,308 $93,443
The net deferred income tax asset is classified in the consolidated balance sheet as follows: 

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Current asset $16,339 $11,470
Current liability (4,435 ) (8,721 )
Noncurrent asset 116,736 107,865
Noncurrent liability (25,332 ) (17,171 )

$103,308 $93,443
As of March 31, 2014, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) for U.S. and state income tax
purposes of $475.8 million. These loss carryforwards will expire in years 2015 through 2034. The Company
determined that a Sec. 382 ownership change occurred during the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007 related to the
September 2006 rights offering. IRC Sec. 382 places annual limits on the amount of the Company's U.S. and state
NOLs that may be used to offset future taxable income. The Company has calculated its Sec. 382 limitation on U.S.
and state losses incurred prior to September 15, 2006 to approximate $5.0 million per year over the next 19 years.
At March 31, 2014, certain of the Company's foreign subsidiaries have NOLs for income tax purposes of
approximately $970.4 million, of which approximately $86.2 million expire in fiscal years 2015 through 2032. The
remaining NOLs are available for carryforward indefinitely.
Valuation allowances have been recognized in the U.S. and certain foreign tax jurisdictions to reduce the deferred tax
assets for loss carryforwards and deductible temporary differences for which it is more likely than not that the tax
benefits associated with those assets will not be realized. In other jurisdictions (primarily France and Germany), the
Company's net deferred tax assets include loss carryforwards and deductible temporary differences which
management believes are realizable through future taxable income. Each quarter, the Company reviews the need to
report the future realization of tax benefits of deductible temporary differences or loss carryforwards on its
Consolidated Financial Statements. All available evidence is considered to determine whether a valuation allowance
should be established against these future tax benefits or previously established valuation allowances should be
released. This review is performed on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis. As global market conditions and the
Company's financial results in certain jurisdictions change, the continued release and establishment of related
valuation allowances may occur.
During fiscal 2013, the Company determined that tax benefits from deferred tax assets relating to its United States
operations are not more likely than not to be realized, and established a valuation allowance on these deductible
temporary differences and loss carryforwards. This determination was based on the results of operations in recent
years and its expected profitability in the current and future years. The establishment of the valuation allowance
resulted in a non-cash income tax expense of $85.1 million. Also during fiscal 2013, the Company determined that it
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benefits from deferred tax assets relating to some of its India and Portugal operations would be realized and
established a valuation allowance on these deductible temporary differences and loss carryforwards. This
determination was based on the results of operations in recent years and their expected profitability in the current and
future years. Establishment of the valuation allowance resulted in a non-cash income tax charge in India and Portugal
aggregating $3.5 million.
During fiscal 2012, the Company determined that tax benefits from deferred tax assets relating to its France operations
are more likely than not, and reversed the valuation allowance on these deductible temporary differences and loss
carryforwards. This determination was based on the results of operations in recent years and its expected profitability
in the current and future years. Reversal of the valuation allowance resulted in a non-cash income tax benefit of $73.6
million. Also during fiscal 2012, the Company determined that it was not more likely than not that the tax benefits
from deferred tax assets relating to some of its India and Portugal operations would be realized and established a
valuation allowance on these deductible temporary differences and loss carryforwards. This determination was based
on the results of operations in recent years and their expected profitability in the current and future years.
Establishment of the valuation allowance resulted in a non-cash income tax charge in India and Portugal aggregating
$4.2 million.
During fiscal 2012, the Company recorded a $13.4 million settlement with the Spanish tax authorities regarding its
current and certain former Spanish subsidiaries. The settlement permanently closes income tax audits for fiscal years
2003 through 2010. As part of the settlement, the Company agreed to withdraw its appeal of audit results for the
periods 2003 through 2006. This withdrawal resulted in the forfeiture of the $13.4 million previously paid during the
appeal process.
As of March 31, 2014, the Company had not provided for withholding or U.S. Federal income taxes on current or
prior year undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries, since such earnings are expected to be reinvested
indefinitely or be substantially offset by available foreign tax credits and operating loss carry forwards. As of March
31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had approximately $26.4 million and $58.8 million, respectively, of undistributed
earnings in its foreign subsidiaries. It is not practicable to determine the amount of unrecognized deferred U.S. income
tax liability on these unremitted earnings.
The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions. The
Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for years ended before
March 31, 2011.
With respect to state and local jurisdictions and countries outside of the United States, with limited exceptions, the
Company and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to income tax audits for years ended before March 31, 2007.
Although the outcome of tax audits is always uncertain, the Company believes that adequate amounts of tax, interest
and penalties have been provided for any adjustments that could result from these years.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefit is as follows:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Beginning of year $34,962 $41,523
Increases for income tax positions taken during current period — —
Increases/(decreases) for currency fluctuation on tax positions 2,218 (849 )
Decreases for settlements with taxing authorities — (4,083 )
Decreases for lapse of the applicable statute of limitations (1,127 ) (1,629 )
End of year $36,053 $34,962
The amount, if recognized, that would affect the Company's effective tax rate at March 31, 2014 and 2013 is $32.2
million and $30.9 million, respectively.
The Company classifies interest and penalties on uncertain tax benefits as income tax expense. At March 31, 2014 and
2013, before any tax benefits, the Company had $1.0 million and $1.2 million, respectively, of accrued interest and
penalties on unrecognized tax benefits.
During the next twelve months, the Company does not expect the resolution of any tax audits which could potentially
reduce unrecognized tax benefits by a material amount. However, expiration of the statute of limitations for a tax year
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uncertain tax benefits would affect the Company's effective tax rate by $0.1 million.
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(13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Claims Reconciliation
On April 15, 2002, the “2002 Petition Date”, Exide Technologies, together with certain of its subsidiaries (the “2002
Debtors”), filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the
District of Delaware (the "Previous Cases" and the "2002 Bankruptcy Court"). The Debtors, along with the Official
Committee of Unsecured Creditors in the Previous Cases, filed a Joint Plan of Reorganization (the “2002 Plan”) with the
Bankruptcy Court on February 27, 2004 and, on April 21, 2004, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the 2002 Plan. On
May 5, 2004, the 2002 Plan went effective.
Under the 2002 Plan, holders of general unsecured claims were eligible to receive collectively 2.5 million shares of
common stock and warrants to purchase up to approximately 6.7 million shares of common stock at $29.84 per share.
Approximately 13.4% of such common stock and warrants were initially reserved for distribution for disputed claims
(the "Equity Reserve").  All distributions contemplated by the 2002 Plan have been made with the exception of 0.2
million shares that were being held in the Equity Reserve at the time the 2013 bankruptcy case was filed.
On June 17, 2004, this Court entered an order and final decree closing the 2002 Chapter 11 cases of the subsidiary
debtors. Thus, the only case that remained open is that of Exide Technologies (the "Main 2002 Case").  On March 11,
2014, Exide filed a motion to close the Main 2002 Case.  On March 28, 2014, the 2002 Bankruptcy Court entered an
order closing the Main 2002 Case, and the Main 2002 Case was marked as closed as of April 2, 2014.  As a result, the
two claims matters that remained pending in the 2002 Main Case will be addressed in the Chapter 11 Case, including
the disposition of the Equity Reserve, either in connection with any plan of reorganization or by subsequent motion.
Private Party Lawsuits and other Legal Proceedings
In 2003, the Company served notices in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware to reject certain
executory contracts with EnerSys, which the Company contended were executory, including a 1991 Trademark and
Trade Name License Agreement (the “Trademark License”), pursuant to which the Company had licensed to EnerSys
use of the “Exide” trademark on certain industrial battery products in the United States and 80 foreign countries.
EnerSys objected to the rejection of certain of those contracts, including the Trademark License. In 2006, the
Bankruptcy Court granted the Company's request to reject certain of the contracts, including the Trademark License.
EnerSys appealed those rulings. On June 1, 2010, the Third Circuit Court of Appeals reversed the Bankruptcy Court
ruling, and remanded to the lower courts, holding that certain of the contracts, including the Trademark License, were
not executory contracts and, therefore, were not subject to rejection. On August 27, 2010, acting on the Third Circuit's
mandate, the Bankruptcy Court vacated its prior orders and denied the Company's motion to reject the contracts on the
grounds that the agreements are not executory. On September 20, 2010, the Company filed a complaint in the
Bankruptcy Court seeking a declaratory judgment that EnerSys does not have enforceable rights under the Trademark
License under Bankruptcy Code provisions which the Company believes are relevant to non-executory contracts.
EnerSys filed a motion to dismiss that complaint, which the Bankruptcy Court granted on January 8, 2013.
On June 7, 2013, EnerSys Delaware Inc., formerly known as EnerSys, Inc. filed suit against the Company in the Court
of Chancery for the State of Delaware seeking an accounting and restitution for alleged benefits received by the
Company and alleged losses incurred by EnerSys allegedly as the result of the granting by the 2002 Bankruptcy Court
in 2006 of an Order which allowed the Company to reject the Trademark License and use the licensed "Exide"
trademark for Industrial battery products and the 2002 Bankruptcy Court's subsequent August 2010 Order vacating the
2006 Order and denying the Company's request to reject the Trademark License. On June 10, 2013, the Company filed
a voluntary petition for reorganization pursuant to Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the District of
Delaware, and the suit filed by EnerSys Delaware Inc. was automatically stayed pursuant to Section 362(a)(1) of the
Bankruptcy Code.
On April 15, 2013, David M. Loritz filed a purported class action lawsuit against the Company, James R. Bolch,
Phillip A. Damaska, R. Paul Hirt, Jr., and Michael Ostermann alleging violations of certain federal securities laws. On
May 3, 2013, Trevor Knopf filed a nearly identical complaint against the same named defendants in the same court.
These cases were filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California purportedly on behalf
of purchasers of the Company's stock between February 9, 2012 and April 3, 2013. On June 4, 2013, James Cassella
and Sandra Weitsman filed a substantially similar action in the same court, purportedly on behalf of those who
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purchased the Company's stock between June 1, 2011 and April 24, 2013, against the Company, Messrs. Bolch,
Damaska, Hirt, and Louis E. Martinez. On July 9, 2013, Judge Stephen V. Wilson consolidated these cases under the
Loritz v. Exide Technologies, Inc. caption, lead docket number 2:13-02607-SVW-E, and appointed Sandra Weitsman
and James Cassella Lead Plaintiffs of the putative class of former Exide stockholders. Judge Wilson ordered Lead
Plaintiffs to file their consolidated amended complaint on or before August 23, 2013. On July 17, 2013, Lead
Plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed their claims against the Company, without prejudice, to re-file at a future date. Lead
Plaintiffs have indicated that they intend to pursue their claims against the individual defendants during the pendency
of Exide's bankruptcy and may seek to reinstate their claims against the Company when it emerges from bankruptcy.
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On September 6, 2013, pursuant to an order extending the previous deadline, Lead Plaintiffs filed their Consolidated
Amended Complaint, naming as defendants Messrs. James R. Bolch, Phillip A. Damaska, R. Paul Hirt, Jr., Louis E.
Martinez, John P. Reilly, Herbert F. Aspbury, Michael R. D’Appolonia, David S. Ferguson, John O’Higgins, and
Dominic J. Pilleggi. Lead Plaintiffs did not name Mr. Ostermann as a defendant in the Consolidated Amended
Complaint. In the Consolidated Amended Complaint Lead Plaintiffs purport to state claims under Sections 10(b) and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on behalf of purchasers of the Company’s stock during the period June 1,
2011 and May 24, 2013. In addition, Lead Plaintiffs purport to state claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act and Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 on behalf of purchasers of the
Company’s Senior Secured Notes during the period August 8, 2011 through May 24, 2013. Lead Plaintiffs allege that
certain public statements made by the Company and its officers during these periods were materially false and
misleading. The Consolidated Amended Complaint does not specify an amount of damages sought. Defendants deny
all allegations against them and intend to vigorously pursue their defense. Defendants moved to dismiss all claims
against them and, on December 19, 2013, Judge Wilson granted defendants' motion to dismiss in its entirety, without
prejudice. Judge Wilson gave Lead Plaintiffs leave to file their Consolidated Second Amended Complaint on or before
January 30, 2014. On January 30, 2014, Lead Plaintiffs filed their Consolidated Second Amended Complaint, which is
nearly identical in every material respect to the Consolidated Amended Complaint. The Consolidated Second
Amended Complaint does not specify an amount of damages sought. Defendants deny all allegations against them and
intend to vigorously pursue their defense. On February 13, 2014, Defendants filed their Motion to Dismiss the
Consolidated Second Amended Complaint. On March 31, 2014, Judge Wilson heard oral argument on Defendants’
Motion to Dismiss and took the motion under advisement. Discovery is currently stayed pursuant to the discovery-stay
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
The Company's Netherlands subsidiary, Exide Technologies B.V. (“BV”), received notice from the Dutch competition
authorities that it was the subject of an investigation of a local trade association’s members in the traction/Motive
Power batteries segment. On July 9 and July 16, 2013, the authorities conducted an on-site inspection and requested
additional information and documentation, which the Company has provided. In December 2013, the Company
submitted to the Dutch Competition Authority (the "ACM") a leniency application for immunity or reduction of fines
that might be imposed as a result of the investigation. The Company was recently notified by the ACM of a
provisional grant of leniency in respect of certain conduct and that the Company did not receive provisional leniency
for certain other conduct. As required under the ACM's leniency program, the Company continues to cooperate with
the Dutch authority. The ACM has not issued a statement of charges to the Company or its subsidiaries. Accordingly,
the precise scope and time period at issue, as well as the final outcome of the Netherlands investigation, remains
uncertain.
In connection with BV’s cooperation with the above-described investigation, the Company discovered activities also in
different segments of its Industrial Energy division in Austria, Belgium and Germany that appeared to have occurred
in prior years that did not conform to the Company’s internal policies. Upon discovery of these facts, the Company
commenced an internal investigation led by independent outside counsel. While a majority of the activities had ceased
prior to the initiation of the internal investigation, the Company promptly stopped any remaining ongoing conduct.
The Company brought the matter to the attention of the appropriate competition authorities, and, in all affected
jurisdictions, the Company has been cooperating with them in further information gathering. As a result of this action,
the Company has been granted conditional immunity by regulators in Austria, Germany and Belgium. Additionally,
the authority in Austria has decided that the actions would likely have fallen outside any applicable statute of
limitations period and the authority has advised that it does not intend to pursue an investigation at this stage. The
grants of immunity in Belgium and Germany, which are conditioned on factors that include the Company’s continued
cooperation with authorities, should eliminate any governmental fines and penalties that could result if the reported
conduct is found to violate applicable law in such jurisdictions. Should immunity be revoked, these investigations
could result in significant penalties.
Further, even with the grants of conditional immunity in Austria, Germany, and Belgium, the Company might be
subject to disputes with private parties concerning alleged damages that are claimed to be a result of the Company’s
prior conduct. While the Company believes it would have defenses to any adverse allegations in private actions and
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would intend to vigorously defend itself in any such actions, litigation of this type is inherently uncertain, costly, and
complex, and the Company cannot be certain that it would prevail. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the
outcome of the Netherlands investigation or any private party disputes would not have a material adverse affect on the
business, financial condition, cash flows, and results of operations of the Company, despite the fact the Company has
been granted conditional immunity in Austria, Germany, and Belgium, and continues to cooperate with the applicable
regulatory authorities.
Environmental Matters
As a result of its multinational manufacturing, distribution, and recycling operations, the Company is subject to
numerous federal, state, and local environmental, occupational health, and safety laws and regulations, as well as
similar laws and regulations in other countries in which the Company operates (collectively, “EH&S laws”).

104

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

183



The Company is exposed to liabilities under such EH&S laws arising from its past handling, release, storage, and
disposal of materials now designated as hazardous substances and hazardous wastes. The Company previously has
received notification from the EPA, equivalent state and local agencies or others alleging or indicating that the
Company is or may be responsible for performing and/or investigating environmental remediation, or seeking the
repayment of the costs spent by governmental entities or others performing investigations and/or remediation at
certain U.S. sites under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act or similar state
laws.
The Company monitors and responds to inquiries from the EPA, equivalent state and local agencies and others at
approximately 50 federally defined Superfund or state equivalent sites. While the ultimate outcome of the
environmental matters described in this paragraph is uncertain due to several factors, including the number of other
parties that may also be responsible, the scope of investigation performed at such sites and the remediation
alternatives pursued by such federal and equivalent state and local agencies, the Company presently believes any
liability for these matters, individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse affect on the Company’s
financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
The Company is also involved in the assessment and remediation of various other properties, including certain
currently and formerly owned or operating facilities. Such assessment and remedial work is being conducted pursuant
to applicable EH&S laws with varying degrees of involvement by appropriate regulatory authorities. In addition,
certain environmental matters concerning the Company are pending in various courts or with certain environmental
regulatory agencies with respect to these currently or formerly owned or operating locations. In particular, the
Company’s Vernon, California recycling facility is currently unable to comply with certain recently enacted
regulations, and may not resume operations until the installation of certain equipment is completed in or about
December 2014 should the Company decide to proceed. Additionally, proposed legislation in California would require
regulatory authorities to make a final determination on the Company's application for a permanent hazardous waste
permit by December 31, 2015. If such legislation is enacted, the Company is uncertain whether it would be able to
obtain such permit. The ultimate outcome of the environmental matters described in this paragraph is uncertain, and
the Company’s failure to timely resume operations at the Vernon plant or obtain a permanent operating permit would
have a material adverse affect on the Company’s financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.
On April 12, 2013, the Company was served with a notification of violation and 60 day intent to sue regarding the
Company's Vernon, California facility from the California Communities Against Toxics (CCAT). CCAT alleges the
Company violated the warning requirement of the State of California's Proposition 65, the Safe Drinking Water and
Toxic Enforcement Act, regarding alleged community exposure to the chemical, 1,3-butadiene. Following the
Company’s Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing, CCAT submitted a Proof of Claim in the Bankruptcy Court. The matter
remains pending in the Bankruptcy Court.
On May 28, 2013, the Company was served with a Notice of Intent to Sue by CCAT pursuant to the federal Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA)'s citizens suit provision at 42 USC Section 6972, alleging that the Company
has created an imminent and substantial endangerment to health and the environment in and around the Company's
Vernon, California facility. Following the Company’s Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing, CCAT submitted a Proof of Claim
in the Bankruptcy Court. The matter remains pending in the Bankruptcy Court.
On March 26, 2014, the Company was served with a Proposition 65 notification of violation and 60 day intent to sue
regarding the Vernon, California facility from Shefa LMV LLC (Shefa). Shefa alleges that Exide failed to warn the
community regarding chemical exposures, and further alleges that Exide has released chemicals into a source of
drinking water. The Company is evaluating the claim.
On April 25, 2013, Zach Hernandez filed a purported class action lawsuit in the California Superior Court for the
County of Los Angeles against the Company and Does 1-100 seeking damages and medical monitoring for an alleged
class consisting of all Los Angeles County residents who allegedly have sustained physical or neurological injury or
toxic exposure allegedly as the result of the release of allegedly hazardous waste or chemicals from the Company's
facility located in Vernon, California. On June 10, 2013, the Company filed a voluntary petition for reorganization
pursuant to Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the District of Delaware, and the case is stayed.
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On October 18, 2013, the South Coast Air Quality Monitoring District ("SCAQMD") filed a petition seeking the
suspension of operations at the Vernon facility for alleged violation of an SCAQMD rule and related furnace control
equipment permit conditions until compliance is achieved. The Company contested the SCAQMD's petition. A
hearing on the SCAQMD’s petition commenced on December 14, 2013 and continued into calendar 2014.
On April 11, 2014, as a result of the Vernon facility allegedly exceeding the SCAQMD ambient air standard for lead,
the SCAQMD filed a second petition seeking an order that Exide “cease and desist” from violating air quality standards,
or in the alternative, to comply with other such conditions and increments of progress which the SCAQMD Hearing
Board deems appropriate.
On January 10, 2014, the SCAQMD adopted an amended rule that contained new emissions and equipment
requirements with varying compliance dates, including an April 10, 2014 deadline that would require the Company to
operate the furnaces at
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the Vernon facility under continuous "negative pressure" ("Rule 1420.1"). In response, the Company initiated two
separate related proceedings on February 7, 2014: (i) a Petition for Variance before the SCAQMD Hearing Board,
requesting a delay of the negative pressure requirement until December 31, 2014, and (ii) a Writ of Mandamus in
Superior Court of Los Angeles County, seeking to invalidate the negative pressure requirement of Rule 1420.1.
Additionally, on February 21, 2014, the Company filed a request for a preliminary injunction that would temporarily
suspend the April 10, 2014 deadline until such time as the Superior Court could conduct a trial on the Writ of
Mandamus.
On April 7, 2014, the Los Angeles County Superior Court denied the Company's preliminary injunction. Additionally,
on April 8, 2014, the SCAQMD Hearing Board denied the Company's variance request. As a result of these two
decisions, the Company suspended operations at the Vernon facility until such time as the Company can design,
engineer, permit, install, and test new equipment needed to achieve the new standard under Rule 1420.1.
On July 10, 2014 the SCAQMD Hearing Board approved a resolution of the Company's pending administrative
matters with the SCAQMD through the issuance of the Stipulated OAs. The Stipulated OAs require the Company: (i)
to refrain from resuming operations of the Vernon facility furnaces until it installs certain air quality control
improvements required to comply with the newly-adopted Rule 1420.1 standards in accordance with SCAQMD issued
permits and applicable SCAQMD rules; and (ii) to install those improvements in accordance with an SCAQMD
approved dust mitigation plan. Concurrently, in a settlement agreement, the Company agreed to dismiss its Writ of
Mandamus legal action. The Company currently estimates the full operation of the furnaces under continuous negative
pressure will not occur until after installation of the aforesaid equipment expected to be completed in or about
December 2014 should the Company decide to proceed.
On January 16, 2014, the Company and unnamed individuals (“DOE Defendants”), were named as defendants in a civil
lawsuit brought by the SCAQMD in the case captioned as People of the State of California, ex rel South Coast Air
Quality Management District, a Public Entity v. Exide Technologies, Inc., and DOE Defendants 1 through 50. The
SCAQMD alleges that the Company and the DOE Defendants failed to comply with several of the SCAQMD's rules
related to operation of equipment or lead and arsenic emissions at the Company's Vernon, California lead recycling
facility. The SCAQMD is seeking penalties in an amount not less than $40.0 million. The Company denies the
allegations in the lawsuit and intends to vigorously defend itself against such allegations. The matter is just entering
the discovery stage and the SCAQMD is amending its complaint to add additional factual allegations and causes of
action, but seeks the same magnitude of penalties.
On May 22, 2014, the Federal Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) served a Finding and Notice of Violation
(“Federal NOV”) on Exide, alleging that Exide violated air quality standards for lead at various times in 2013 and 2014;
the alleged violations are duplicative of those cited by the South Coast Air Quality Management District in its penalty
action. EPA seeks civil penalties for these alleged violations. An initial conference was convened with the EPA on
June 30, 2014 and discussions continue regarding a resolution to the notice.
On September 24, 2013, the Company received a Notice of Enforcement issued by the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) for alleged violations related to its Frisco, Texas recycling facility’s compliance with
Industrial Solid Waste and Municipal Hazardous waste requirements. The Company reasonably believes the
proceeding may result in monetary sanctions to be paid to TCEQ in excess of $0.1 million.
The Company has established liabilities for on-site and off-site environmental remediation costs where such costs are
probable and reasonably estimable and believes that such liabilities are adequate. As of March 31, 2014 and 2013, the
amount of such liabilities on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets was approximately $25.5 million and $25.9
million, respectively. Because environmental liabilities are not accrued until a liability is determined to be probable
and reasonably estimable, not all potential future environmental liabilities have been included in the Company’s
environmental liabilities. Therefore, changes in estimates or future findings could have a material adverse affect on the
Company’s financial condition, cash flows, or results of operations.
The sites that currently have the largest reserves include the following:
Tampa, Florida
The Tampa site is a former secondary lead recycling plant, lead oxide production facility, and sheet lead-rolling mill
that operated from 1943 to 1989. Under a RCRA Part B Closure Permit and a Consent Decree with the State of

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

186



Florida, Exide is required to investigate and remediate certain historic environmental impacts to the site. Cost
estimates for remediation (closure and post-closure) are expected to range from $13.0 million to $20.0 million
depending on final State of Florida requirements. The remediation activities are expected to occur over the course of
several years.
Columbus, Georgia
The Columbus site is a former secondary lead recycling plant that was taken out of service in 1999, but remains part
of a larger facility that includes an operating lead-acid battery manufacturing facility. Groundwater remediation
activities began in
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1988. Costs for supplemental investigations, remediation and site closure are currently estimated at $6.0 million to
$8.5 million.
Guarantees
At March 31, 2014, the Company had outstanding letters of credit with a face value of $64.7 million and surety bonds
with a face value of $56.0 million. The majority of the letters of credit and surety bonds have been issued as collateral
or financial assurance with respect to certain liabilities that the Company has recorded, including but not limited to
environmental remediation obligations and self-insured workers’ compensation reserves. Failure of the Company to
satisfy its obligations with respect to the primary obligations secured by the letters of credit or surety bonds could
entitle the beneficiary of the related letter of credit or surety bond to demand payments pursuant to such instruments.
The letters of credit generally have terms up to one year. Collateral held by the surety in the form of letters of credit at
March 31, 2014, pursuant to the terms of the agreement, was $53.8 million.
Certain of the Company’s European and Asia Pacific subsidiaries have bank guarantees outstanding as collateral or
financial assurance in connection with environmental obligations, income tax claims and customer contract
requirements. March 31, 2014, bank guarantees with an aggregate face value of $12.6 million were outstanding.
Sales Returns and Allowances
The Company provides for an allowance for product returns and/or allowances. Based upon product examination in
the manufacturing re-work process, the Company believes that the majority of its product returns are not the result of
product defects. The Company recognizes the estimated cost of product returns as a reduction of net sales in the
period in which the related revenue is recognized. The product return estimates are based upon historical trends and
claims experience, and include assessment of the anticipated lag between the date of sale and claim/return date.
Changes in the Company’s sales returns and allowances liability (in thousands) are as follows:

(In thousands)
Balance at March 31, 2012 $36,811
Accrual for sales returns and allowances 31,390
Settlements made (in cash or credit) and currency translation (32,882 )
Balance at March 31, 2013 $35,319
Accrual for sales returns and allowances 42,400
Settlements made (in cash or credit) and currency translation (44,946 )
Balance at March 31, 2014 $32,773
Leases
Future minimum lease payments under operating and capital leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease
terms in excess of one year at March 31, 2014, are: 
Fiscal Year Operating Capital

(In thousands)
2015 $21,819 $2,567
2016 14,678 775
2017 9,247 777
2018 6,432 798
2019 3,805 568
Thereafter 4,138 657
Total minimum payments $60,119 6,142
Less—interest on capital leases 71
Total principal payable on capital leases (included in long-term debt) $6,071
Under the Bankruptcy Code, the Debtors may assume or reject executory contracts including lease obligations,
therefore, the commitments shown above may not reflect actual cash outlays in the future.
Rent expense amounted to $46.2 million, $50.6 million, and $50.5 million, for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2014,
2013, and 2012, respectively.

107

Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

188



Edgar Filing: EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES - Form 10-K

189



(14) RESTRUCTURING AND IMPAIRMENTS, NET
The Company continued to implement operational changes to streamline and rationalize its structure in an effort to
simplify the organization and eliminate redundant and/or unnecessary costs. As part of these restructuring programs,
the nature of the positions eliminated range from plant employees and clerical workers to operational, sales
management, and divisional leadership.
During fiscal 2014, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $25.0 million, representing $17.4 million
severance and $7.6 million closure costs. These restructuring charges primarily represent consolidation efforts in the
Company’s workforce of approximately 218 positions. The impairments relate to closed facilities and other asset write
offs of $2.9 million.
The following summarizes restructuring reserve activity and gain on asset sales/impairments, net: 

Severance
Costs Closure CostsTotalRestructuring

Gain on Asset
Sales/Impairments,
net

Total
Restructuring /
Impairments, net

(In thousands)
Balance at March 31, 2011 $18,732 $ 4,607 $23,339
Expenses 7,858 (753 ) 7,105 $ 3,773 $ 10,878
Payments and currency translation (16,189 ) (507 ) (16,696 )
Balance at March 31, 2012 10,401 3,347 13,748
Expenses 8,451 2,892 11,343 $ 60,152 $ 71,495
Payments and currency translation (12,802 ) (2,663 ) (15,465 )
Balance at March 31, 2013 6,050 3,576 9,626
Expenses 17,428 7,615 25,043 $ 2,946 $ 27,989
Payments and currency translation (15,557 ) (4,477 ) (20,034 )

$7,921 $ 6,714 $14,635
Reclassified to liabilities subject to
compromise (7,274 )

Balance at March 31, 2014 $7,361
Remaining expenditures principally represent (i) severance and related benefits payable per employee agreements
and/or regulatory requirements, (ii) lease commitments for certain closed facilities, branches and offices, as well as
leases for excess and permanently idle equipment payable in accordance with contractual terms, and (iii) certain other
closure costs including dismantlement and costs associated with removal obligations incurred in connection with the
exit of facilities.
Restructuring and impairments, net by operating segment: 

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Transportation Americas $16,451 $57,104 $2,369
Transportation Europe & ROW 4,421 8,163 4,115
Industrial Energy Americas 417 1,136 652
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 6,321 4,613 2,301
Unallocated 379 479 1,441
Total $27,989 $71,495 $10,878
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(15) EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 
The Company computes basic earnings (loss) per share by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income
(loss) by diluted weighted average shares outstanding.
Potentially dilutive shares include the assumed exercise of stock options and the assumed vesting of restricted stock
and stock unit awards (using the treasury stock method) as well as the assumed conversion of the convertible debt, if
dilutive (using the if-converted method).  Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share are summarized as follows: 

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income (loss) attributable to Exide Technologies $(217,810 ) $(223,399 ) $56,739

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 77,925 77,270 77,667
Effect of dilutive securities:
Senior Subordinated Notes — — 3,697
Employee stock options — — 292
Employee restricted stock awards (non-vested) — — 425

— — 4,414
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 77,925 77,270 82,081

Basic earnings (loss) per share $(2.80 ) $(2.89 ) $0.73

Diluted earnings (loss) per share $(2.80 ) $(2.89 ) $0.69
Due to a net loss for fiscal years 2014 and 2013 certain potentially dilutive shares were excluded from the diluted
earnings (loss) per share calculation because their effect would be antidilutive:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Shares associated with convertible debt (assumed conversion) 3,697 3,697
Employee stock options 1,646 2,872
Restricted stock awards (non-vested) 388 1,502
Total shares excluded 5,731 8,071
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 approximately 1.6 million, 2.9 million, and 1.8 million
stock options, respectively, were excluded from the diluted earnings (loss) per share calculation because their exercise
prices were greater than the average market price of the related common stock for the period, and their inclusion
would be antidilutive. The remaining options were included in the treasury stock method calculation, and the resulting
incremental shares were included in the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share.

(16) INTEREST EXPENSE, NET
Interest income of $1.0 million, $1.0 million, and $1.5 million, is included in interest expense, net for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.
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(17) OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSE, NET 
Other (income) expense, net consist of:

For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Currency remeasurement loss (gain) (1) $(4,321 ) $2,883 $10,036
Gain on interest rate swap settlements — — (4,578 )
Other (1,150 ) (356 ) (347 )
Total other (income) expense, net $(5,471 ) $2,527 $5,111

(1)The currency remeasurement gain relates primarily to intercompany loans to foreign subsidiaries denominated inthe Belarus Ruble, the Euro, and the Australian dollar.

(18) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Company used available market information and appropriate methodologies believed to be appropriate to
estimate the fair value of its financial instruments. Considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to
develop these estimates. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that
the Company could realize in a current market exchange. Certain of these financial instruments are with major
financial institutions and expose the Company to market and credit risks and may at times be concentrated with
certain counterparties or groups of counterparties. The creditworthiness of counterparties is continually reviewed, and
full performance is currently anticipated.
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, DIP Credit Facility, and short-term
borrowings all have carrying amounts that are a reasonable estimate of their fair values. The carrying values and
estimated fair values of the Company’s long-term obligations and other financial instruments are as follows:

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

Carrying Value Estimated Fair
Value Carrying Value Estimated Fair

Value
(In thousands)

Asset (Liability):
Senior secured notes (1) $(734,474 ) $(560,955 ) $(675,000 ) $(580,500 )
Convertible senior subordinated notes
(1) (51,900 ) (12,988 ) (55,750 ) (52,864 )

Foreign currency forwards (2) — — (25 ) (25 )
Commodity swap / forward (2) (1,709 ) (1,709 ) 141 141
(1)Classified as liabilities subject to compromise

(2)These financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value, and are based on inputs as described in thethree-tier hierarchy that prioritizes inputs used in measuring fair value as of the reported date:
•Level 1 – Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;
•Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

•Level 3 – Inputs from valuation techniques in which one or more key value drivers are not observable, and mustbe based on the reporting entity’s own assumptions.
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The following table represents the Company's financial instruments that were measured at fair value at March 31,
2014 and 2013 and the basis for that measurement:

Total
Fair Value
Measurement

Quoted Price in
Active Markets
for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In thousands)
March 31, 2014:
Asset (Liability):
Commodity swap / forward $(1,709 ) $— $(1,709 ) $—

March 31, 2013:
Asset (Liability):
Foreign currency forward (25 ) — (25 ) —
Commodity swap 141 — 141 —
The Company uses a market approach to determine the fair values of all of its derivative instruments subject to
recurring fair value measurements. The fair value of each financial instrument was determined based upon observable
forward prices for the related underlying financial index or commodity price, and each has been classified as Level 2
based on the nature of the underlying markets in which those derivatives are traded.
The following table summarizes the investments that comprise the assets of the Company’s pension plans (see Note
10), all of which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, and the basis for that measurement: 

Total
Fair Value
Measurement

Quoted Price in
Active Markets
for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

(In thousands)
March 31, 2014
Cash and cash equivalents $6,235 $6,235 $— $—
Equity funds - U.S.-based companies 142,803 — 142,803 —
Equity funds - international-based
companies 43,840 — 43,840 —

Fixed income funds 325,648 — 325,648 —
Other 9,053 — 9,053 —
Total pension assets $527,579 $6,235 $521,344 $—
March 31, 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $11,536 $11,536 $— $—
Equity funds - U.S.-based companies 87,466 — 87,466 —
Equity funds - international-based
companies 113,655 — 113,655 —

Fixed income funds 282,582 — 282,582 —
Other 2,338 — 2,338 —
Total pension assets $497,577 $11,536 $486,041 $—
Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of excess cash balances in the plans’ investment accounts, and are
classified as Level 1. The fair value of the plans’ investment funds are based on net asset value, which is based on
quoted market prices of the underlying assets owned by the fund (reduced by its liabilities).
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(19) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Robert M. Caruso, the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer, and Edgar W. Mosley Jr., the Company's
Chief Restructuring Officer, are employed by Alvarez & Marsal North America, LLC ("Alvarez & Marsal" or
"A&M") as Managing Director and Senior Director, respectively. A&M has been retained by the Company in
connection with our Chapter 11 restructuring. Mr. Caruso, who has been associated with A&M since 2006, remains a
Managing Director of A&M while serving as the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Mosley has
been with A&M since 2008, and remains a Senior Director of A&M while serving as the Company's Chief
Restructuring Officer. In addition, Mr. Caruso holds a minority equity interest in A&M's parent company which
indirectly entitles him to a share of A&M's profits.
Pursuant to an Agreement dated June 9, 2013, as amended by a Letter Agreement dated July 25, 2013 between the
Company and A&M (the "Services Agreement"), the Company retained A&M in connection with it's Chapter 11
restructuring. Under the Services Agreement, the Company is charged monthly fees for the services of Mr. Caruso and
Mr. Mosley and hourly fees for the services of other temporary personnel of A&M and its affiliates who are providing
services to the Company (in an officer capacity or otherwise) and such temporary personnel (including Mr. Caruso
and Mr. Mosley) are compensated by A&M independently pursuant to their arrangements with A&M. The Services
Agreement also provides for payment of a one-time success fee to A&M as a result of our emergence from Chapter
11. The amount of the success fee could be up to $1.8 million, at the discretion of the Board of Directors and subject
to approval by the U.S. Bankruptcy Court. Fees and expenses the Company incurred under the Services Agreement
amounted to $22.6 million for the twelve months ended March 31, 2014.
The Company understands from Mr. Caruso and Mr. Mosley that they do not and will not, as applicable, directly
receive a portion of the fees paid by the Company to A&M in respect of their hourly fees, the overall fee, the success
fee or any other fees relating to any other aspect of the Company's engagement of A&M. However, Mr. Caruso and
Mr. Mosley may be entitled to discretionary bonuses at the end of each A&M fiscal year which may, similar to other
professional services firms, take into account revenues and expenses related to matters on which they have worked or
managed. A&M has disclosed that the ultimate amount of Messrs. Caruso's and Mosley's compensation, which has not
yet been determined, will depend on a number of factors related to, among other things, their performance as
employees, their contribution to the revenue generating activities (including but not limited to the engagement for the
Company) and A&M's overall financial results.

(20) SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
The accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income consisted of the following:

Defined
Benefit Plans (1)

Derivatives
Qualifying
as Hedges (2)

Cumulative
Translation
Adjustment

Total

(In thousands)
As of March 31, 2011 $(26,893 ) $(10 ) $76,443 $49,540
Other comprehensive (loss) income
before reclassifications (42,342 ) (4,018 ) (22,866 ) (69,226 )

Amounts reclassified from AOCI (708 ) 3,901 — 3,193
Net change in other comprehensive
(loss) income (43,050 ) (117 ) (22,866 ) (66,033 )

As of March 31, 2012 $(69,943 ) $(127 ) $53,577 $(16,493 )
Other comprehensive (loss) income
before reclassifications (11,332 ) (3,276 ) (17,354 ) (31,962 )

Amounts reclassified from AOCI (2,387 ) 3,403 — 1,016
Net change in other comprehensive
(loss) income (13,719 ) 127 (17,354 ) (30,946 )

As of March 31, 2013 $(83,662 ) $— $36,223 $(47,439 )
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Other comprehensive (loss) income
before reclassifications 15,602 — 23,745 39,347

Amounts reclassified from AOCI (3,357 ) — — (3,357 )
Net change in other comprehensive
(loss) income 12,245 — 23,745 35,990

As of March 31, 2014 $(71,417 ) $— $59,968 $(11,449 )
(1)See Note 10 for additional information on employee benefit plans.
(2)See Note 4 for additional information on derivatives.
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(21) SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company reports its results in four business segments: Transportation Americas, Transportation Europe and
ROW, Industrial Energy Americas and Industrial Energy Europe and ROW. The Company is a global producer and
recycler of lead-acid batteries. The Company’s four business segments provide a comprehensive range of stored
electrical energy products and services for transportation and industrial applications.
Transportation markets include OE and aftermarket batteries for cars, trucks, off-road vehicles, agricultural and
construction vehicles, motorcycles, recreational vehicles, marine, and other applications. Industrial markets include
batteries for Motive Power and Network Power applications. Motive Power batteries are used in the materials
handling industry for electric forklift trucks, and in other industries, including floor cleaning machinery, powered
wheelchairs, railroad locomotives, mining and the electric road vehicles market. Network Power batteries are used for
backup power for use with telecommunications systems, computer installations, hospitals, air traffic control, security
systems, utility, railway and military applications.
The Company’s four reportable segments are determined based upon the nature of the markets served and the
geographic regions in which they operate. The Company’s chief operating decision-maker monitors and manages the
financial performance of these four business groups. Costs of shared services and other corporate costs are not
allocated or charged to the business groups.
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Selected financial information concerning the Company’s reportable segments is as follows: 
For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Net sales
Transportation Americas $760,412 $879,831 $907,838
Transportation Europe & ROW 930,036 926,978 1,014,292
Industrial Energy Americas 365,633 368,386 339,328
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 799,352 796,503 823,192

$2,855,433 $2,971,698 $3,084,650
Operating income (loss) by segment
Transportation Americas $(7,739 ) $(23,158 ) $9,513
Transportation Europe & ROW 19,561 20,335 55,928
Industrial Energy Americas 25,185 28,266 41,657
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 16,004 21,787 14,435
Unallocated corporate (34,034 ) (29,096 ) (31,780 )

18,977 18,134 89,753
Restructuring and impairments, net (27,989 ) (71,495 ) (10,878 )

$(9,012 ) $(53,361 ) $78,875
Depreciation & Amortization
Transportation Americas $25,476 $28,465 $28,215
Transportation Europe & ROW 21,513 19,052 18,590
Industrial Energy Americas 11,514 10,963 11,701
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 18,024 17,386 21,039
Unallocated corporate 4,753 4,321 4,808

$81,280 $80,187 $84,353
Capital expenditures
Transportation Americas $27,709 $32,105 $38,872
Transportation Europe & ROW 33,242 36,323 40,195
Industrial Energy Americas 4,128 9,313 7,392
Industrial Energy Europe & ROW 12,896 16,120 15,915
Unallocated corporate 3,794 7,640 7,462

$81,769 $101,501 $109,836
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Geographic information is as follows:
Revenues from External Customers
For the Twelve Months Ended
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
(In thousands)

United States $1,126,045 $1,248,217 $1,247,166
France 190,112 190,730 200,456
Germany 393,314 382,521 434,051
Italy 236,416 217,403 229,271
Spain 263,583 238,235 252,801
Poland 114,388 105,813 107,519
Other 531,575 588,779 613,386
Total $2,855,433 $2,971,698 $3,084,650

Long-Lived Assets
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
(In thousands)

United States $228,861 $235,665
France 16,603 15,807
Germany 63,820 62,203
Italy 63,091 55,505
Spain 94,895 86,267
Poland 57,927 48,734
Other 51,215 53,934
Total $576,412 $558,115
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(22) SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of the Company’s quarterly consolidated results of operations: 

Three Months Ended

June 30, 2013 September 30,
2013

December 31,
2013 March 31, 2014

(In thousands, except per share data)
Net sales $682,242 $697,802 $759,666 $715,723
Gross profit 76,039 96,734 110,024 101,663
Operating income (loss) (24,854 ) 5,439 12,027 (1,624 )
Loss before income taxes (90,913 ) (36,990 ) (33,133 ) (50,536 )
Net loss attributable to Exide Technologies (91,133 ) (40,175 ) (34,692 ) (51,810 )
Loss per share:
Basic $(1.17 ) $(0.51 ) $(0.44 ) $(0.66 )
Diluted $(1.17 ) $(0.51 ) $(0.44 ) $(0.66 )

Three Months Ended

June 30, 2012 September 30,
2012

December 31,
2012 March 31, 2013

(In thousands, except per share data)
Net sales $693,438 $711,692 $804,879 $761,689
Gross profit 94,255 103,659 120,070 89,310
Operating income (loss) 1,054 6,836 4,726 (65,974 )
Loss before income taxes (14,656 ) (9,880 ) (11,639 ) (87,001 )
Net loss attributable to Exide Technologies (106,498 ) (13,878 ) (15,443 ) (87,580 )
Loss per share:
Basic $(1.38 ) $(0.18 ) $(0.20 ) $(1.13 )
Diluted $(1.38 ) $(0.18 ) $(0.20 ) $(1.13 )
The three months ended March 31, 2014 included a $2.5 million out of period correction to increase cost of sales,
decrease inventory, and increase net loss related to errors in the first three quarters of fiscal 2014 of $0.5 million, $0.4
million, and $1.6 million, respectively. There is no impact to cash flows. None of the out of period amounts are
material to any of the related quarters.
The Company recorded $55.1 million of restructuring and impairment in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.

EXIDE TECHNOLOGIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Schedule II

Balance at
Beginning
of period

Additions /
Adjustments
Charged to
Expense

Deductions/
Charge-
offs

Currency
Translation

Balance
at end
of period

(In thousands)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
For the Twelve Months Ended:
March 31, 2012 $29,227 1,529 (9,039 ) (1,378 ) $20,339
March 31, 2013 $20,339 1,284 (928 ) (592 ) $20,103
March 31, 2014 $20,103 1,270 (2,324 ) 440 $19,489
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Valuation Allowance on Deferred Tax
Assets
For the Twelve Months Ended:
March 31, 2012 $239,509 4,736 (125,983 ) (14,723 ) $103,539
March 31, 2013 $103,539 141,655 (1,793 ) (666 ) $242,735
March 31, 2014 $242,735 60,588 (17,671 ) 1,279 $286,931
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